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CORPORATE PROFILE
NREBER

Shougang Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”;
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) has
been listed on the Stock Exchange since April 1992.
Shougang Group (a state-owned enterprise under the direct
supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission) and its controlled
corporations, Bekaert and Li Ka Shing Foundation are the
substantial Shareholders.

The Group is primarily involved in the following activities:

1. manufacturing of steel cords for radial tyres

2. manufacturing of sawing wires and hose wires

CORPORATE GOALS

° create an influential “Eastern” brand recognition in
steel cord industry based on the principles of integrity,
pragmatism and efficiency

o gradually become an enterprise commanding an annual
manufacturing capacity in excess of 300,000 tonnes

of high-quality steel cords

° become one of the three major manufacturers of steel
cord industry in China

To learn more about Shougang Century, please visit
http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

BEMNEREERAR([HERE] REW
BAA - SBAITEE DR —AN=ZFMWA
R Em -EHEE(EREEEEEE
ERZECHEREBCRARE ) HETER
E5E Bekaert kTR HESE AT ERRE -

AEBEBNETHIER

1. BETFFRHBIEAMER

2. BUEYIBIMNAA KL BE A

NEIWEE

o AEWE BE SWWRANERERT
¥hiTEE —EEBERENNIRS S
h&

o  BEILBRENKA—(EWAE T E=300,00018
WA B RIRERRECE

o MATBRMEGTEN=-KREE®Z —

MHMTEERNREZEMN FAHE

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk °




CORPORATE INFORMATION
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As at 25 March 2022 A-_ZE-_—F=A_-+HH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)
Ye Qian

Li Jinping

Non-executive Director
Adam Touhig

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yip Kin Man, Raymond

Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Su Fanrong
Cheung Wa Ying

COMPANY SECRETARY
Cheung Wa Ying
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEER

As at 25 March 2022 RA-_ZE-_—_F=HA_-+HH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China CITIC Bank

Fubon Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Moore Advisory Services Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan,

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

WEBSITE FOR PUBLISHING

LISTING RULES RELATED ANNOUNCEMENTS
AND OTHER DOCUMENTS
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/shougangcentury/

HKEX STOCK CODE
103

LISTING DATE
9 April 1992
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

=

2021 2020 Change
—E—F —_TTF BE
Revenue from continuing REFECEER 2
operations (HK$’000) EEBE(BE T 2,694,810 2,041,553 +32.0%
Gross profit from continuing  RERFELEEEZEF
operations (HK$’000) (BH¥TT) 414,547 394,322 +5.1%
Profit for the year (HK$’000)  AFEaF| (BT L) 80,879 148,254 -45.4%
Earnings per Share for profit AA=E%HA ARG
for the year attributable to REFERHMz
the owners of the Company  &R&&F ()
(HK cents)
Basic R 4.26 7.76 -45.1%
Diluted e 4.11 6.77 -39.3%
Total equity (HK$’000) WS R (BT L) 1,732,946 1,645,571 +5.3%
Net asset value per Share BREEFECEE)
(HK$) 0.91 0.87 +4.6%
Proposed final dividend per EEARTRARECEW)
Share (HK cents) 1.5 1.5 N/ARE B
Gearing ratio (Note) BELE(H ) 24.1% 29.4% -5.3ppEDH

Note:

Gearing ratio represented total interest bearing borrowings less bank
balances and cash (including pledged bank deposits) divided by total

equity.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS
RREENER

SHARE INFORMATION

Board lot size: 2000 Shares

Number of Shares outstanding as 1,898,652,556 Shares
at the last trading day of 2021:
Market capitalisation as at HK$655,035,132
the last trading day of 2021:
Closing share price as at HK$0.345
the last trading day of 2021:

Basic earnings per HK4.26 cents

Share for 2021:

Dividend for 2021:

Interim Dividend :Nil

Final Dividend HK1.5 cents per Share

KEY DATE

Payment Date of 2021 29 July 2022
Final Dividend:

2022 Annual General Meeting: 27 June 2022

Closure of Register of 20 to 27 June 2022
Members for 2022
Annual General Meeting:

Announcement of 2021
Final Results:

25 March 2022

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Address Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2527 2218

Fax : (852) 2861 3527

E-mail address business_link@shougangcentury.com.hk
ir@shougangcentury.com.hk
schl@shougangcentury.com.hk

Website http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, e.g. transfer of
Shares, change of name or address, lost share certificates
and dividend warrants, should be sent in writing to:

Tricor Tengis L|m|ted

Address Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2980 1333

Fax : (852) 2810 8185
E-mail address is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website http://www.tricoris.com
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BUSINESS CONTACTS

EEH

JEsc Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. EE RS HBEEEGR AT

Address:

ok

Postal code:
iR
Telephone:
T

Fax:

BE -

Website:

A4k -

E-mail address:

B E AL -

1 Dong Fang Road, Jiaxing Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

R EIT & 22 B T A A A B (R SR T BR 157

314003

(86) 573 8222 2790

(86) 573 8221 3500

http://www.jesc.com.cn

jesc@jesc.com.cn

TEsc Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. MRS MELER QT

Address: 1 Dong Fang Road, Tengzhou Economic Development Zone
Shandong Province, PRC

HodIE - A B 1L BR A R T A R B B IR BR T B 1 95%

Postal code: 277500

B -

Telephone: (86) 632 525 2100

B

Fax: (86) 632 525 2111

BE -

Website: http://www.tesc.com.cn

A

E-mail address: tesc@tesc.com.cn

FEM AL

Shougang Century (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd. (formerly know as Shougang

% Concord Century (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd.)"

BEY(LE) EBERAR(ABIEREE(LEB)EEFARAA D

Address: Room 2505, Tower 1, SOHO Tianshan Plaza
No.421 Ziyun Road, Changning District, Shanghai, PRC

A - HE BT REREER4215:SOHOKX L EHT1-2505%

Postal code: 200051

BiR

Telephone: (86) 21 6291 8806

Fax: (86) 21 6291 8805

BE -

" For identification purpose only {245
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

Mr. Su Fanrong, aged 54, joined the Group as a deputy
general manager of the Company in January 2015 and was
appointed as the executive deputy managing Director on
1 December 2015. Mr. Su has re-designated as the chairman
of the Company and acted as the chairman and vice-
chairman of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company respectively since 18 January
2018, and he has been appointed as the managing Director
on 31 January 2018. At present, Mr. Su holds directorship
in all wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. He also
acts as the deputy general manager of Shougang HK. He
holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
Missouri State University and Bachelor degree specialising
in Pressure Processing from University of Science and
Technology Beijing. He joined Shougang Group in 1990
and has been working in various companies under Shougang
Group. Mr. Su has over 25 years of sales and management
experience in the steel industry.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Su and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023 to act as a Chairman
of the Company. At present, Mr. Su’s monthly salaries is
entitled to HK$220,000 which is determined with reference
to the financial position of the Company, the experience
and duties of Mr. Su, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

Mr. Ye Qian, aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 28 June 2019. Mr. Ye has re-designated as an
executive Director since 1 January 2020. He graduated from
the University of Wales with a Master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Shougang Fund, Mr. Ye had
held senior positions in Great Wall Motor Company Limited,
China Chamber of International Commerce and
Representative Office in Hong Kong & Macao of China
Council for the Promotion of International Trade. Since Mr.
Ye joined Shougang Fund in 2014, he had served as an
assistant to general manager of Beijing West Fund
Management Co., Ltd. and a deputy director of PPP Fund
of Shougang Fund. He has participated in establishment
and investment of numerous funds. He currently serves as
the managing director of Shougang Fund as well as the
chairman of Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng Investment
Management Co., Ltd. and Beijing West Fund Management
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ye was appointed as a supervisor of Beiqi
Foton Motor Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 600166), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
with effect from 25 February 2021. He was also appointed
as a non-executive director of BAIC Motor Corporation
Limited on 24 March 2021. In all, Mr. Ye has rich experience
in automobile OEM industry, government authorities and
foreign-related business management department and also
in corporate services and project investment.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Ye and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2020
and ending on 31 December 2022 to act as an executive
Director. Mr. Ye has voluntarily declined any director’s
emoluments.

BERE F=FT+tH RZ-ZTE—NLF~A
“t+N\BEZERFHTEF -EEAEB T
—EF-A-BREFECRINTES REXE
REBTAZ HETIHEEBEITSAM M
ABMESA BAESRRBTERDBR
pEFHEBEEEERFEREESRELZS
EHEBRIIRREETSABAL 8 ¥ XL
R-E—NEMAERES AR - S EEL
RATEIERERESETEERAFRLIZENIE
NEHESPPPACRIRE - HELMELIER
TR E -FERNETEMESESSE
IR A RIE R E LR A BB AR AR M
IRRAAEREECEREERARESER -
BEEEET - F A+ RHABEZEA
bAEAARERNBRAR(—ERLEES
RGMER LTz AE - BRI - 600166)
PEB-FBIRZTE—F-ATHARESE
FRIERAERNDBRAGB ZIFNITES -
BIEME  BEAAERNTE EHBRITE  BUTH
B OPINEBERBI CERBMBEERE
HEELEEL5H-

EEEERUTEFHRARRARI ZRBES
WoHRB-_ T _TFE-—A-HEE_T_—
FHTZA=+—HIE -EEECBRREER
EAESME -

£3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEHE

Mr. Li Jinping, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2020. Mr. Li was
graduated from Shandong University of Finance and
Economics with a Master degree in Accounting. He is a
senior accountant and a Public Valuer. Mr. Li had worked
in Beijing Supervision Bureau of Ministry of Finance of PRC
for approximately 18 years and held various senior positions
including the deputy division director and division director.
He was principally engaged in the work relating to
supervision, inspection, risk control management and so
on. In 2019, Mr. Li joined Shougang HK. He currently serves
as a financial controller of Shougang HK. In all, Mr. Li has
extensive experience and expertise in financial supervision
and risk control.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Li and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2020
and ending on 31 December 2022. Mr. Li has voluntarily
declined any director’s emoluments.

Mr. Adam Touhig, aged 53, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 15 January 2021. He was appointed
as the senior vice president of rubber reinforcement Asia
in Bekaert group on 1 June 2020.

Prior to joining Bekaert group, Mr. Touhig had held various
management positions including global account director,
vice president of commercial and program management,
regional senior vice president, company president, chairman
and board member in several companies for GKN Automotive
Limited, including GKN Driveline (India) Ltd, GKN Driveline
Japan Ltd, GKN Driveline Korea Ltd, Taiway Limited and
GKN Driveline Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.. He also held directorships
in the abovementioned companies. In all, Mr. Touhig has
over 30 years of extensive experience in the tier 1
automotive industry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

There is no service contract between Mr. Touhig and the
Company since he is nominated by Bekaert as a non-
executive Director according to the subscription agreement
entered into by the Company and Bekaert dated 22
September 2006 and further agreement between Bekaert
and the Company on 24 February 2015. At present, Mr.
Touhig is entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$150,000
per annum which is determined with reference to his
experience and duties, his role played in the Board, the
Company’s performance and profitability, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Alias: Ip Kin Man), aged 75,
holds a Bachelor degree in Arts with honors from the
University of Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 1993. He also serves
as the chairman of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee and acts as the vice-chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company since 18 May
2018. Mr. Yip has also acted as an independent non-
executive director of Shougang Grand from January 2007
until 31 December 2019. He also acts as an independent
non-executive director of BeijingWest Industries since 27
January 2014. Mr. Yip is a practising solicitor, notary public
and China-Appointed Attesting Officer. He has extensive
experience in legal profession.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Yip and
the Company for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2020. At present, Mr. Yip is entitled to receive
a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum which is
determined with reference to his experience and duties,
his role played in the Board, the Company’s performance
and profitability, the remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEHE

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 67, is a fellow member of each of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Chartered Accountants of Australia and New Zealand and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (“Polytechnic University”) with a higher diploma
in Accountancy in 1975. He was conferred an Honorary
Fellow of Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Lam was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a
member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company in
August 2015. He is also an independent non-executive
director of each of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Limited, Spring Real Estate Investment
Trust, Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, COSCO
SHIPPING Ports Limited, Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited, WWPKG Holdings Company Limited, CITIC Telecom
International Holdings Limited and Topsports International
Holdings Limited. Mr. Lam resigned as an independent non-
executive Director of Bestway Global Holding Inc. and Vital
Innovations Holdings Limited with effect from 31 December
2021 and 31 October 2020 respectively. Mr. Lam had taken
the position of an adjunct professor in the School of
Accounting and Finance of Polytechnic University until 31
August 2016. He was previously a member of the Listing
Committee and the Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of
the Stock Exchange from 1997 to 2003, a committee member
of HKICPA from 1994 to 2009, a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1993 to 2013 and a member
of the Finance Management Committee of the Hong Kong
Management Association until 7 July 2016. In all, Mr. Lam
has over 40 years of extensive experience in accounting,
auditing and business consulting.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Lam and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. At present, Mr. Lam is
entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Feng Yaoling, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each
of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
1 January 2020. Mr. Feng was a professor-level senior
engineer who is awarded special government subsidy by
the State Council of PRC as a specialist. He graduated
from Beijing University of Chemical Technology with a
Bachelor degree in Engineering in January 1982.

Mr. Feng is currently a deputy chief engineer of Eve Rubber
Institute Co., Ltd. and he has over 35 years of extensive
experience in the tyre manufacturing industry. Mr. Feng
was previously the chief engineer, senior engineer, deputy
general manager cum chief engineer and director of Aeolus
Tyre Co., Ltd. (“Aeolus Tyre”) from 1982 to 2017. Aeolus
Tyre was listed on the Main Board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in October 2003 (Stock code: 600469).

On 6 March 2015, Aeolus Tyre received the administrative
penalty decision including warnings and a fine of
RMB600,000 from the Henan regulatory bureau of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, due to its misstatement
of accounting information in the 2011 and 2012 annual
reports which violated the “Measures for the Administration
of Information Disclosure of Listed Companies”. Mr. Feng,
as a then senior management of Aeolus Tyre, among others,
also received the “Decision to Impose Training Order to
Zheng Yuli, Fan Rende and others in Total 7 Persons” and
the “Decision to Issue Warning Letters to Zheng Yuli, Fan
Rende and others in Total 10 Persons” (the “Decisions”).
Pursuant to the Decisions, Mr. Feng needed to participate
in the training of laws and regulations related to listed
companies, and was warned and recorded in the Integrity
Archive of Securities and Futures. Mr. Feng confirms that
(i) remedial actions have been taken by Aeolus Tyre which
include correcting and restating figures in the relevant
annual reports; (ii) the proceedings regarding the aforesaid
matter has been completely settled; and (iii) the Decisions
have been fully complied with and no further administrative
penalties or liabilities were outstanding by Aeolus Tyre or
Mr. Feng regarding the aforesaid matter.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Feng and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2020
and ending on 31 December 2022. At present, Mr. Feng is
entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
ETRFBRE

JEsc

Jiaxing Eastern
Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
(Zhejiang, PRC)
EERHER
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= - L
—— of Steel Cords _— (B - HT)

for Radial Tyres
BEF AW
AR TEsc
Tengzhou Eastern
Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
100% (Shandong, PRC)
PR N 3R 75 SH B 4%
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http://www.tesc.com.cn
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http://www.jesc.com.cn

Shougang Century —
Holdings Limited
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http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk
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(for Steel Cord Century (Shanghai)
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B EEEHE R (Shanghai, PRC)
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BEEABARY (RE - Li§)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERHEE

Dear Shareholders,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
| am pleased to present the audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year under review, in the face of multiple challenges
such as the complex and difficult international environment
and domestic COVID-19 epidemic, the China’s economy
continued to recover and grow, and achieved a promising
beginning to the 14th Five-Year Plan. Following the
implementation of large-scale and stringent control measures
in China, the COVID-19 epidemic began to be brought under
control in early 2021, production activities and other economic
activities gradually recovered and the economy restored to
positive growth, leading to a substantial resurgence in the
first half of 2021. However, with the advent of the new virus
variants, confirmed cases of these variants virus have begun
to emerge across China, and China’s economic recovery has
once again struggled, with the quarter-on-quarter gross
domestic product (“GDP”) growth rate gradually declining from
18.3% in the first quarter to 4.0% in the fourth quarter
according to data released by the National Bureau of Statistics
of China. However, China’s GDP reached RMB114.4 trillion
for the year of 2021, representing an increase of 8.1% as
compared with the previous year.

In 2021, the global economy gradually recovered from the
impact of COVID-19 epidemic, the China’s economy achieved
steady growth, showing strong growth momentum especially
in terms of import and export trade. Besides, our steel cord/
wire production capacity at TESC was expanded to reach an
annual capacity of 160,000 tonnes during the year under review.
Therefore, the total sales volumes of the Group grew by 10.6%
year-on-year in 2021, in which the volume of the export sales
of steel cords remarkably increased by 76.1%. In the second
half of 2021, the resurgence of the COVID-19 epidemic has
caused widespread economic and social disruptions, resulting
in the fluctuations in raw material prices, rising freight costs,
inflation pressure and energy prices. Accordingly, the gross profit
margin fell to 15.4% and the selling and distribution expenses
increased by 56.4%. The Group recorded the net profit of
HK$80,879,000 for the year, whereas basic earnings per Share
of HK4.26 cents for the year. The Group reported the net asset
value was HK$0.91 per Share at 31 December 2021, increased
by 4.6% as compared to HK$0.87 per Share at the end of
2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERBESF

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.5 cents per Share for the year ended 31 December
2021.

THE WAY FORWARD

The demand for replacement tyres grows steadily with the
rise in car ownership. Besides, in response to the
government’s regulations on energy conservation and
emission reduction, the constant increase in the production
of electric cars drives demand for their accessorial tyres
to grow remarkably, it is anticipated to expedite the market
expansion of domestic steel cords for radial tyres and bring
more room for development to steel cord industry in the
long term. Thus, the Group’s operations are promising.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERWHEE

However, | am of the view that the year of 2022 will still
be full of challenges. Faced with the complex situations
and increasingly competitive landscape in domestic and
foreign markets, we are committed to optimise our product
mix and improve upon our product quality at competitive
prices to meet the demanding requirements of our tyre
customers. Congruently, we will continue to sharpen our
competitive edge and grasp opportunities in both domestic
and international markets by adding to our product
innovation, research and development efforts. In February
2022, the Board has approved the Company’s dividend
distribution plan for the financial years from 2021 to 2023
which allows the Shareholders to participate in the Group’s
profits, thereby obtaining the continued support and
confidence of the Shareholders and recognising the value
of the Group serving the Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere
gratitude to all Shareholders, suppliers and customers for
their longstanding support. | would also like to thank my
fellow members on the Board and the staff members of
the Group for their unwavering commitment to the Group’s
business. | am confident that the Group will continue to
explore and capture opportunities in the coming year and
beyond.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of
steel cords for radial tyres, sawing wires and hose wires.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
for the continuing operations increased by 32.0% to
HK$2,694,810,000 (2020: HK$2,041,553,000), this is
benefited from an increase in production capacity of the
Group’s production base and selling prices, the Group’s
total revenue recorded growth. However, the economy in
the second half of 2021 was affected by the rebound of
the epidemic, the business environment of the Group’s
business was full of challenges. Therefore, the Group’s net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 decreased by
45.4% over last year of HK$148,254,000 to HK$80,879,000.
The Board considers that the decrease in profit after tax
was mainly attributable to:

° the decrease in gross profit margin due to the fact
that the substantial increase in raw material prices
and ocean freight rates in the second half of 2021
had not been passed to the customers in time;

° the increase in selling and distribution expenses; and

° the absence of a non-recurring income of approximately
HK$46,867,000 arising from the reversal of impairment
loss on land use rights for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREERLNR DN

Despite the severe operating environment in 2021, the
Group still generated positive cash inflow from operations
and maintained a sustained healthy financial position. The
Board has proposed a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per
Share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2021 (subject to Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting). In February 2022, the Board
announced the Company’s dividend distribution plan for
the financial years from 2021 to 2023 which allows the
Shareholders to participate in the Group’s profits, thereby
obtaining the continued support and confidence of the
Shareholders and recognising the value of the Group serving
the Shareholders.

Continuing operations of steel cord segment
Revenue

During the year under review, there were full of challenges
and uncertainties for the global market. In the first half of
2021, with epidemic generally being controlled in China,
industries were gradually recovering. The PRC’s GDP in
the second quarter of 2021 has increased by approximately
7.9% as compared with the corresponding period last year,
achieving a stable development. However, the variant virus
of COVID-19 in the second half of 2021 caused global
supply chain disruptions, and elevated logistics and input
costs. In addition, the continuous tension of Sino-US trade
relations brought many uncertainties to the global economic
and political environment. Therefore, China’s annual growth
rate of GDP in 2021 was 8.1% with GDP growth reaching
4.0% in the fourth quarter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREERLNR DN

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
of steel cord segment amounted to HK$2,693,480,000
(2020: HK$2,040,059,000), representing an increase of
32.0% from the previous year. This is mainly because of
the increase of the average selling price of the steel cords
with the rise in the cost of raw materials and export sales.
Besides, our sales team made great effort on grasping every
opportunity in the markets, so the total sales volumes of
2021 increased by 10.6% over last year. This segment sold
217,105 tonnes of steel cords during the year, increased
by 11.1% as compared to 195,421 tonnes last year. In
respect of the sales of sawing wire products, it increased
substantially by 42.7% from 419 tonnes to 598 tonnes for
last year, attributable to our persistent effort in exploring
new customers as well as the improvement of the
photovoltaic, sapphire and magnetic material markets.
There was a 1.2% decrease in the sales of our other steel
wires from 9,527 tonnes to 9,410 tonnes for last year. The
sales volume of this segment for the year is set out below:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLEFE

2021 2020
—E--& “Z-%F

% of % of

Sales total sales Sales  total sales

volume volume of volume  volume of
(Tonnes) steel cords (Tonnes) steel cords % change

)3 HHER

HHER BHES
HEE(W) BIN%) HEEMW) BHL%) BE(%)

Steel cords for: MERAR

- truck tyres —-HEHKRK 146,965 67.7 133,534 68.4 +10.1
- off the road truck tyres —T128M 7,390 3.4 4,982 2.5 +48.3
- passenger car tyres -B8ih 62,750 28.9 56,905 29.1 +10.3
Total for steel cords HEZAT 217,105 100.0 195,421 100.0 +11.1
Sawing wire products YIEIM44 2 598 419 +42.7
Other steel wires H At 3044 9,410 9,527 -1.2
Total @t 227,113 205,367 +10.6
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MEEJEHFH ﬂ_& *ﬁ'

There was no significant change in sales mix during the
year, the proportion of sales of steel cords for truck tyres
accounted for 67.7% of total sales volume of steel cords
for the year, decreased by 0.7 percentage point as compared
to the previous year, it remained as the largest sales volume
of steel cords of the Group for the year.

In respect of sales of steel cords by region, the volume of
export sales amounted to 66,160 tonnes for the year,
increased by 76.1% as compared to 37,569 tonnes last
year. The volume of export sales represented 30.5% of
total sales volume for the year, compared to 19.2% for last
year, signalling the increasing recognition of our brand to
the international tyres manufacturers. The breakdown of
sales volume of steel cords for the year by geographical
location is as follows:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLEFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F “E-FF
% of % of
Sales total sales Sales  total sales
volume volume of volume  volume of
(Tonnes) steel cords (Tonnes) steel cords % change
L) EHER
HHES BHER
HEE(W) FAI(%) HEE(ME) BEHL%) 25(%)
PRC s 150,945 69.5 157,852 80.8 -4.4
Export sales: HAHE
Asia (other than PRC) EM(REBRN) 35,977 16.6 22,065 1.3 +63.1
EMEA (Europe, EMEA
Middle East and Africa) (BUM - RERANIEN) 18,391 8.5 10,101 5.2 +82.1
North America JEM 6,332 2.9 3,608 1.8 +75.5
South America mEM 5,460 25 1,795 0.9 +204.2
Total export sales HOHEBE 66,160 30.5 37,569 19.2 +76.1
Total Eohs 217,105 100.0 195,421 100.0 +11.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREERLNR DN

Gross profit

Gross profit of this segment increased by 5.2% over last
year to HK$413,360,000 (2020: HK$392,932,000) for the
year. However, the gross profit margin decreased from
19.3% over last year to 15.3% for the year. This was mainly
because the substantial increase in raw material prices and
ocean freight rates in the second half of 2021 had not been
passed to the customers in time.

Discontinued operation of copper and brass
products business

Overall performance

In view of generating greater managerial focus and releasing
internal resources for the Group to prioritise the profitable
steel cord business, the Group ceased all the operations
of the copper and brass products segment in September
2019. This business in 2021 recorded no revenue (2020:
Nil) and loss (2020: loss of HK$711,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue for the continuing operations of the Group
amounted to HK$2,694,810,000 (2020: HK$2,041,553,000)
for the year, increased by 32.0% over last year. The
breakdown of revenue for the continuing operations of the
Group for the year is as follows:

EF
RAFELD B2 EMEEFH EHA5.2%
% /5 ¥413,360,000C( Z T T F : B
392,932,0007T )° AA M- E F T R X F &
19.3% AP EARAFEMN15.3% c EFZEHN
TR —FTH¥FREMBERRGEBNHAR
ERRERBEEERF -

ERIEEE 2R =R R RS

BRXHE

ZRIEFAEEELER@T RERANTE
BABEZERAEBRANENNMESFES K
SER T —NFNAFILEERRERME
DENEBER ZEBR T _—FRES
¥B(ZZZZTF  BIREBEBR(ZEZEF -
E518 &4 #711,0007T ) °

Bt 7 B

=E -]

RAFE AEBREFELEEHK  EEE
5 %62,694,810,000L( — T T F : B
2,041,553,0007T ) tb X F[RIHR £ F+32.0% °
RAFEREEREFELEES 2 EXHH
A

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+-BLEE

2021 2020
—E--F “E-FF

% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$°000 revenue % change

HBEXE L RE
BETT  BAk®%) AEBTT ASH(%) F5(%)
Steel cords HER 2,693,480 99.9 2,040,059 99.9 +32.0
Property rental MERE 1,330 0.1 1,494 0.1 -11.0
Total @t 2,694,810 100.0 2,041,553 100.0 +32.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREERLNR DN

Gross profit

Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
increased by 5.1% over last year to HK$414,547,000 (2020:
HK$394,322,000), which was mainly due to the increase of
gross profit of steel cord segment. However, the gross profit
margin for the continuing operations of the Group decreased
by 3.9 percentage points to 15.4% for the year as compared
to that of last year. The breakdown of gross profit for the
continuing operations of the Group for the year is as
follows:

2021
—E--F

EF
AEERBFELEEGK 2 EMNLEFLEH
51% =B M414,547,000( — S - F : &
#394,322,0007T ) EE R AN MR D K
EFNEARAS AT RAFEREERER
BICE TG 2 EN KR A F R AT 23.91E
BOHE15.4% - RAFEREBERBIFEL
BRI ZENRMAIAT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE

2020
—T-TH

—T ==

Gross profit Gross profit

HK$’000 margin (%) HK$'000 margin (%) % change

BETT  ERNE%) AEETT  EAE%) B8(%)
Steel cords AR 413,360 15.3 392,932 19.3 +5.2
Property rental MERE 1,187 89.2 1,390 93.0 -14.6
Total @at 414,547 15.4 394,322 19.3 +5.1
Selling and distribution expenses HERTHEH

Selling and distribution expenses for the continuing
operations amounted to HK$131,628,000 (2020:
HK$84,149,000) for the year, increased by 56.4% over last
year, mainly due to the increase in export sales of steel
cord segment.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the continuing operations
amounted to HK$57,423,000 (2020: HK$55,956,000) for the
year, increased by 2.6% as compared to last year while
the revenue of the Group increased by 32.0% as compared
to last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREERLNR DN

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses for the continuing
operations of the Group amounted to HK$103,676,000 for
the year, increased by 45.2% as compared to HK$71,404,000
for last year. Such expenses were all incurred by the steel
cord segment for aligning with the requirements from our
tyres manufacturing customers and they increased with the
revenue of the steel cord segment.

Other income

Other income for the continuing operations of the Group
decreased by 57.3% from HK$9,509,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 to HK$4,062,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021. This was primarily due to decrease in
government grants.

Other losses, net

Other losses, net for the continuing operations of the Group
decreased by 61.9% from HK$59,377,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to HK$22,622,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. This improvement was primarily
because (i) impairment losses on old and idle property,
plant and equipment decreased to HK$3,095,000; and (ii)
gains on disposals of property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$660,000.

Reversal of impairment losses on land use rights

Reversal of impairment losses on land use rights amount
to HK$46,867,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
because the Group obtained the construction project
planning permit on remaining area of TESC Phase Il Project
in October 2020. During the year, there is no such reversal.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net for the continuing operations of the
Group decreased by 23.4% from HK$17,488,000 to
HK$13,401,000 for the year. This is mainly due to the
decrease of interest expenses on bank borrowings while
the Group recorded foreign exchange gains on the
borrowings during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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TREASURY AND FUNDING POLICIES

The treasury and funding policies of the Group concentrate
on the management of liquidity and the monitoring of
financial risks, including interest rate risk, currency risk and
counterparty risks. The objectives are to ensure the Group
has adequate financial resources to maintain business
growth with a viable financial position.

Surplus funds of the Group are generally placed on short
term deposits denominated in EUR, HKD, RMB or USD
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
financing of the Group principally comprises bank loans
and Convertible Bonds. The financing portfolio takes into
consideration of the liquidity of the Group and interest
costs.

SHARE CAPITAL, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Share capital and net asset value

The Company manages its capital structure with the
objectives of ensuring that the businesses of the Group
can maintain a sustainable growth and providing a long-
term reasonable return to its Shareholders.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was at
1,898,652,556 Shares at 31 December 2021 (2020:
1,899,024,556 Shares). Net asset value of the Group was
HK$1,732,946,000 at 31 December 2021, increased by
5.3% as compared to HK$1,645,571,000 at 31 December
2020. Net asset value per Share was HK$0.91 at 31
December 2021, also increased by 4.6% as compared to
HK$0.87 per Share at 31 December 2020.

Issuance of Convertible Bonds

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a related
party and a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund)
whereby the Company issued and Jingxi Holdings
subscribed for the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000. The interest rate is 4.0% per
annum while Conversion Price is HK$0.33 per Share, with
conversion available commencing 6 months from issuance
date till end of term. Tenor is 3 years from issuance date
which can be extended by Jingxi Holdings for one year
twice to the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the issue
date of the Convertible Bonds.
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The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Jingxi Holdings with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the Shares. On
11 February 2019, the issuance of the Convertible Bonds
was completed. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deducting the costs and expenses of approximately
HK$1 million, are approximately HK$149 million and are
expected to be used as follows: (i) as to approximately
HK$37.3 million for repaying interest-bearing borrowings
with higher interest rate of the Group (excluding borrowings
provided by Shougang HK and its related party(ies)); (ii) as
to approximately HK$110 million for funding the capital
investment for the TESC Phase Il Project subject to the
construction cost and time needed to supplement the
production need for both TESC and JESC; and (iii) as to
approximately HK$1.7 million, being the remaining proceeds
for supplementing general working capital.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had fully
utilised the aforesaid proceeds according to the intended
usage. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Company
received from Jingxi Holdings an extension notice to extend
the maturity date to 11 February 2023 and a conversion
notice to convert the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$24,000,000 at the Conversion Price of
HK$0.33 per Conversion Share. The Conversion Shares
were issued on 7 February 2022.

Bank balances and cash and interest bearing
borrowings

The Group’s bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) amounted to HK$269,354,000 at 31
December 2021, increased by 51.7% as compared to
HK$177,570,000 at 31 December 2020. Total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group (comprised of loan from
a related company, bank borrowings and Convertible Bonds)
were HK$687,686,000 at 31 December 2021, increased by
4.0% as compared to HK$660,942,000 as at 31 December
2020. The amount of net interest bearing borrowings (total
interest bearing borrowings less pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) therefore decreased from
HK$483,372,000 at 31 December 2020 to HK$418,332,000
at 31 December 2021.
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Debt and liquidity ratios

Gearing ratio represented total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity of the Group and decreased
from 29.4% at 31 December 2020 to 24.1% at 31 December
2021. The current ratio (calculated as current assets divided
by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.09 times at 31
December 2021 as compared to 1.15 times at 31 December
2020.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURES

The Group’s source of revenue is mainly denominated in
EUR, RMB and USD, while those of purchases and payments
are mainly denominated in RMB and HKD. In respect of
exposure to interest rate risk, all the interest bearing
borrowings at 31 December 2021 were at fixed rates. During
the year, the Group did not use any derivatives instrument
for hedging purposes.

We will review and adjust the currency composition of our
interest bearing borrowings from time to time to minimise
our risks on exchange and interest rate in respect of our
interest bearing borrowings. In any event, we would keep
monitoring the currency and interest rate composition of the
Group’s interest bearing borrowings under the guidance of
the Internal Control Manual and take appropriate action to
minimise our exchange and interest rate risks when needed.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$59,132,000.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Following the passing of special resolution by the
Shareholders at the general meeting held on 30 November
2021, and upon the approval of the Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong, the change of the Chinese name of the
Company from “BREEEBE AR AR to “BERBERES
fR/2|]”, and the English name of the Company from
“Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited” to “Shougang
Century Holdings Limited”, has become effective on 6
December 2021. For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 5 November 2021
and 9 December 2021.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLAN

In 2019, TESC entered into agreements with the relevant
governmental authorities of Tengzhou in relation to the
investment of a construction project to be carried out on
the three parcels of land through a public auction in 2010
and 2011 (the “Lands”). Pursuant to the agreements, TESC
shall invest in construction of the production lines for an
annual capacity of 100,000 tonnes steel cords on the Lands.
The Tengzhou governmental authorities shall assist TESC
in the construction project, such as handling relevant
procedures for the construction, facilitating in the
construction of infrastructure of the project such as water,
electricity and roads, and assisting in application of
governmental policy support and applicable support funds.

The construction project has commenced to acquire the
machineries and constructure the factory plant, ancillary
facilities and peripheral roads since November 2019. The
project is carried out by phases according to the market
conditions and the financial capacity of the Company from
time to time. As steel cord market has been in short supply
for a long period of time, the Group strives to enhance its
productivity. During the year under review, the Group
continued to propel an expansion plan at TESC. Our steel
cord/wire production capacity at TESC was expanded to
reach an annual production capacity of 160,000 tonnes.
Together with the annual capacity of 80,000 tonnes at JESC,
the Group’s annual production capacity of steel cords
increased to 240,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2021. Since
the increase in productivity significantly enhances the
Group’s core competitiveness and profitability, the Group
continues to make great strides towards its goal to
manufacture over 300,000 tonnes of high-quality steel cords
annually.
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EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
TRAINING SCHEME OF THE GROUP

At 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 2,304
employees located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The emolument
policy regarding the employees of the Group is based on
their merit, qualifications and competence as well as the
prevailing market conditions of the industry. Remuneration
packages, which include an element of discretionary bonuses,
are generally reviewed annually. In addition to salary payments,
other employee benefits include medical subsidies,
hospitalisation scheme and a defined contribution provident
fund, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and other retirement
scheme or other similar defined contribution provident fund
stipulated by the State Regulations of the PRC which provided
retirement benefits to employees in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively. The Group’s contributions to these schemes are
charged against profits or loss as they are incurred. The total
employee benefit expense for the year amounted to
approximately HK$268 million.

The Group had also provided training programmes or
courses for the mainland staff at all levels from different
departments, and also for Directors and employees of the
Company so as to further enhance their technical skills in
production operation and management, professional skills
and knowledge, respectively.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
individual’s performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

In addition, the Company adopted the 2012 Scheme. The
purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to selected participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years from 29 May 2012.

Since the adoption of the 2012 Scheme, no options have
been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2021.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31 December
2021.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of assets
pledged as security for bills payables, bank borrowings
and loan from a related company are:

1. Leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate net
book value of HK$194,288,000;

2. Plant and machinery with an aggregate net book value
of HK$38,760,000;

3. Land use rights with an aggregate amount of
HK$62,323,000; and

4. Bank deposits of HK$195,867,000.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 epidemic has spread globally and severely
hit the world economy since 2020. Following the
implementation of effective measures to prevent and control
the epidemic, China has gradually resumed steady economic
growth since the late first quarter of 2020. In the beginning
of 2021, the rollout of effective vaccination programs
globally has eased the epidemic and returning our daily
life to normalcy. However, the threat posed by the new
virus variants and Sino-US relations became more uncertain
in the second half of 2021 which have led to supply
disruptions of the steel cord market lasting longer than
expected, and such global supply has caused further
inflation in many countries. Therefore, it resulted in the
decrease in the net profit for the year ended 31 December
2021. But we, Shougang Century, are confident and
optimistic about our business in light of the followings:

o To continue the construction of our production lines
at TESC to facilitate the expansion plan of an additional
100,000 tonnes of steel cord manufacturing capacity
within the 14th Five-Year Plan;
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The PRC’s macro-economic environment in
infrastructure investment is expected to improve, this
leads the sales in the automotive and tyre industry to
increase continuously;

By taking into consideration the Chinese government’s
regulations on energy conservation and emission
reduction, the constant increase in output of electric
cars drives demand for their accessorial tyres, which
will in turn expedite the market expansion of steel
cords for domestic radial tyres and bring a more ample
room for development to steel cord industry in the
long term;

To reduce carbon emissions through reduction of
energy consumption, application of clean energy,
research and development on low-carbon products,
the application of new technologies and new equipment
and so on, the Group can achieve the green, low-
carbon and sustainable corporate development and
fulfil social responsibilities; and

Steel cord/wire manufacturing is undoubtedly our
mainstay but in 2022, we will make a dedicated
exploration in other businesses which we believe to
have either a synergetic effect on our principal business
or be able to fuel our growth in the 14th Five-Year
Plan.
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The Board is committed to practicing and achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and also recognises that
effective risk management and internal control systems are
crucial to the long-term development of the Company. In
order to maintain sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems, the Board periodically reviews
the daily corporate governance practices and procedures
of the Company and its subsidiaries and procures the
Company and its subsidiaries to strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations, and the rules and guidelines
of regulatory bodies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to
the accounting period covered in this annual report in
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Code of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. Also, the Company has applied and complied with
all the principles and code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) of the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021, except for the deviation from Code
Provisions A.2.1 and D.1.4 of the Code. For the avoidance
of doubt, the “Code Provision(s)” referred to in this annual
report are those code provisions prevailing prior to the
amendments thereto as introduced by Stock Exchange
under Update No.135 for amendments to the Listing Rules,
where such new amendments to Appendix 14 will only apply
to issuers’ corporate governance report for financial year
commencing on or after 1 January 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

On 6 April 2004, the Board has adopted a SCHL Code on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the
Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct and rules
governing dealing by all Directors and Specified Individuals
in the securities of the Company. In order to keep the
SCHL Code in line with the changes brought upon by the
relevant amendments to laws, rules and regulations, the
Board will revise the SCHL Code from time to time and
the latest version which was revised on 30 December 2021
is an annexed to the Internal Control Manual. All Directors
have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and SCHL Code for the year ended 31
December 2021.

THE BOARD

On 25 March 2022, the Board currently consists of seven
members, including three executive Directors (namely
Messrs. Su Fanrong (chairman and managing Director), Ye
Qian and Li Jinping), one non-executive Director (namely
Mr. Adam Touhig) and three independent non-executive
Directors (namely Messrs. Yip Kin Man, Raymond, Lam Yiu
Kin and Feng Yaoling). The Directors’ biographical details
are set out on pages 8 to 13 under the heading
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS”.

The major duties of the Board are set out below:

o Develop business model and business goals of the
Company;

o Formulate the strategies, planning and development
of the Company;

° Set up objectives of management;

° Monitor the performance of management;

° Ensure that a framework of prudent and effective
controls are in place to enable risks to be assessed
and managed;

° Review and approve the Company’s results and

operations to be disclosed on a regular basis to the
public; and
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o Approve the Group’s operating strategies, budget and
strategies in collaboration with various jurisdictions
enterprises, as well as other major investments,
application of funds and other substantial exercises
with other enterprises.

In order to have a clear guideline in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decision, functions
between the Board and the management are formalised in
the Internal Control Manual. In short, the Board, which is
accountable to Shareholders for the long-term performance
of the Company, is responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs to safeguard the best interest of the
Company as a whole. The affairs reserved to the Board
including but not limited to the development of business
models and strategies of the Company, the preparation of
financial reporting and the expansion and development of
any new business. The managing Director motivates the
management and general staff to achieve those business
goals and strategies set out by the Board, applying business
principles and ethics enshrined in the Internal Control
Manual.

Each Director owes a fiduciary duty towards the Company.
He should act in good faith and in the best interests for
both the Company and Shareholders as a whole. Also, the
Board has three independent non-executive Directors which
represent more than one-third of the Board so that there
is a strong element of independence in the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has different
professional qualification and experience in various aspects,
including but not limited to (i) legal professional qualification
and experience; or (ii) auditing, accounting and tax
professional, or business consulting experience, which has
fully complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules.
Hence, we believe that we have sufficient calibre and
number of independent non-executive Directors for their
views to carry weight.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his and
immediate family members’ independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Although Mr. Yip Kin Man,
Raymond has been serving the Board for more than nine
years, he has not engaged in any executive management
of the Group, and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm and his immediate
family members have never provided any service to the
Group. His familiarity and extensive experience with the
Company’s business may place him in a better position to
contribute independent views to the Company, and continue
to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.

Taking into consideration of Mr. Yip’s independent scope
of works and his high integrity when performing duties as
an independent non-executive Director over the past years,
there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on his independence. The Company
therefore considers all of independent non-executive
Directors (including Mr. Yip) are independent throughout
the year under review. Furthermore, all Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, should be re-elected
at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company and the reasons the Board believes
that the individual to be independent are set out in the
relevant circular. In addition to the above, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board.
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Deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code

During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director are performed by Mr. Su Fanrong which
constitutes the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of
the Code which stipulates that the roles of chairman and
managing director should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. In consideration of Mr. Su’s
extensive knowledge and experience in various aspects, in
particular the management in the steel industry and sales
area, the Board considers this present arrangement still
enables the Company to make decisions promptly in the
formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies
in achieving corporate goals. Notwithstanding the deviation,
the Board is of the view that there are sufficient checks
and balances amongst the Board to reach decisions in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.
The Board will review the management structure from time
to time and the need to separate the roles of the chairman
of the Board and the managing Director into two individuals.

Deviation from Code Provision D.1.4 of the Code
During the year under review, the Company deviated from
the Code Provision D.1.4 of the Code. According to the
subscription agreement and further agreement dated 22
September 2006 and 24 February 2015 respectively entered
into by the Company and Bekaert, Bekaert group nominated
Mr. Adam Touhig as a non-executive Director. Mr. Touhig
did not have any formal letter of appointment setting out
the key terms and conditions of his appointment as Director,
which therefore deviated from the Code Provision D.1.4 of
the Code.

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings
(including the board meetings, audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meeting, nomination committee
meeting, annual general meeting and general meeting) held
during the year are set out in the following table:
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Record of attendance of Directors at the meetings
held during the year (“Attendance Record”)

EERNAFERTHNERHELE(HE
ioeE])

Number of Meetings Attended and Held

ERZHERETHE
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General General

Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting Meeting

Name of Director BEng EXees FNZESEE FMWZESeR REZEEEE RRAFAE LN
Su Fanrong BLX 44 NIA TER il 2/2 11 111
Ye Qian ¥ 44 NATER  NATEE  NATER 11 17
Li Jinping F8¥ 4/4 N/A TEA N/A T4 N/A T 1 01
Liao Jun (Note) BE (i) N/A NER N/A RNEF N/A NER N/A RER N/A TNER N/A NER
Adam Touhig (Note) Adam Touhig(#/7#) 3/4 N/A TER N/A REf N/A TER 11 11
Yip Kin Man, Raymond &R 4/4 4/4 11 212 11 11
Lam Yiu Kin TR 4/4 4/4 11 212 1 i
Feng Yaoling it L 4/4 4/4 111 2/2 1/1 11
Note: Mr. Liao Jun resigned as a non-executive Director on 15 January Wit BESEAEN T - —F— A+ R HBIIHRTE

2021 and Mr. Adam Touhig was appointed as a non-executive
Director on the same date.

During the year, two risk assessment meetings were held
to deal with risk management issues of the Group. In
addition, the executive Directors and the management of
the Group held a budget meeting to review the business
performance of 2021 and planning of 2022 business after
the balance sheet date.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Company will provide a comprehensive and formal
induction package to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her duties,
responsibilities and obligations as a Director under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirement and ensure he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and business. In compliance
with the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code during the year,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have attended programmes or
seminar(s) organised by the Company, other qualified
professional bodies and regulatory authorities.
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EEo

WAL 89T T MRERFS S AR
AREZEREERABEEFE LD R
HERGRTEERARETEERTT K
HE AR — - — S EBERR T
S EZEGHE

ESCRHERIRER

ARBEREEMEREEFRHEZEA LN
SRR HERA, M A R S ANE A B &
Bl ERRAREMERRETERESTZE
T BERES MBERMG, THHARFZE
FEEEHEEENER - RAFER - B
&R ZFRIEA65K FTAEESRHSH
SEHEER ABRIFTHEMB LG -
EXC2MAARRREMEREREENE
EREMERNREX TS -

£3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

Furthermore, in order to ensure that the contribution of all
Directors to the Board remains informed and relevant, the
company secretarial department of the Company has, from
time to time provide Directors with relevant reading materials
to keep them informed of the latest updates in the relevant
industry and market and the latest changes on the legal
and regulatory environment. The records of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated
by the company secretarial department of the Company.
Areas of their training activities provided by the Company,
relevant professional bodies and regulatory authorities are
summarised as follows:

BE SAMRMBEFEENEZTSFELARR
LIRENER  ARRARMELTRAES
REABHEX M RREANTERTERTS
B RFTEBIASERMEARRBEN S E(C -
BEEMEI BB EHARRRAWE
MREMEFH -ARE  EHEEXERERM
EERBRERFNERRHOFIIEDEER
SR

Legal, ESG training

regulatory and other

and corporate Group's professional

governance policies/ development

updates businesses programs

BiE- e

RERE

R ERR FREN REHER

Name of Director BEp? PEEREN B/ $% BERE
Su Fanrong BAR / / /
Ye Qian E23 / / v/
Li Jinping F2¥ / / /
Liao Jun (Note) B () N/A T N/A T N/A TiEF
Adam Touhig (Note) Adam Touhig(#7:#) / / v/
Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERR / / /
Lam Yiu Kin PIEE / / v/
Feng Yaoling i 2= / / /

Note: Mr. Liao Jun resigned as a non-executive Director on 15 January
2021 and Mr. Adam Touhig was appointed as a non-executive
Director on the same date.
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Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of his
appointment and in a timely manner for any change, the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments and the
time involvement in those public companies or organisations.
In particular, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin holds more than seven listed
company directorships. The Board, however, still believes
that he is able to devote sufficient time to act as an
independent non-executive Director on the basis that (i) he
has confirmed that he is able to and will devote sufficient
time to discharge his duties and responsibilities as an
independent non-executive Director; (ii) he is not preoccupied
with any full-time work and none of his current commitments
as an independent non-executive director of the other listed
companies would require his full-time involvement and he
does not participate in the day-to-day operations of those
listed companies; (iii) with his extensive experience and
knowledge, particularly on corporate governance acquired
and developed from his background and past experience
(including his directorships in other listed companies), he is
fully aware of the responsibilities and expected time
involvement for independent non-executive directors; (iv) he
has held directorships for over three years in eight of the
listed companies he worked; and (v) he has demonstrated
that he is able to devote sufficient time to discharge his
duties owed to each of the listed companies he has held
directorship by attending board meetings and board
committee meetings of these listed companies during their
latest financial year, as disclosed in these listed companies’
latest published annual reports.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director were combined together and performed
by Mr. Su Fanrong since 31 January 2018, and thus deviated
from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code. Such deviation
is deemed appropriate as in consideration of Mr. Su’s
extensive knowledge and experience in various aspects, in
particular the management in the steel industry and sales
area, the Board considers this present arrangement still
enables the Company to make decisions promptly in the
formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies
in achieving corporate goals. Further details of such
deviation has been set out in page 33 under the heading
“THE BOARD” above.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years commencing from 1 January
2020 and expiring on 31 December 2022, except (i) Mr.
Lam Yiu Kin, who was appointed for a term commencing
from 1 January 2021 and expiring on 31 December 2023;
and (ii) Mr. Adam Touhig (was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 January 2021 and Mr. Liao Jun resigned as
a non-executive Director on the same date),
nominated by Bekaert group without any
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of
his appointment as Director with the Company. They are
all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least
every three years at annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles.

who was
letter of

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various board committees,
namely remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee to manage particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and aid in sharing the responsibilities of
the Board. Moreover, all the board committees have
formulated their specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Code. The board
committee members will also from time to time report their
decisions and recommendations to the Board, if necessary.

To comply with the Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services Limited
as the internal auditor of the Company since 2015. The
audit committee takes the responsibility to review the risk
management and internal control systems, the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal audit
function and its other duties under the Code.

No corporate governance committee has been established
but respective board committees (as disclosed below) are
responsible for performing corporate governance functions
set out in the terms of reference in Code Provision D.3.1
of the Code.
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority
of independent non-executive Directors. The current
members are:

. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)

. Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)
. Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)

and its terms of reference are summarised as follows:

ii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management (if any), including benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment), or to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors, and also to consider
salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management (if any)
for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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v) to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

vi) to consider the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors and senior management (if any), having
regard to their achievements against the performance
criteria, and make recommendation to the Board;

vii) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and
viii) to exercise such other powers, authorities and

discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the remuneration as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard
to the Code.

During the year under review, one remuneration committee
meeting was held and the works performed by the
remuneration committee included but not limited to: (i) the
consideration and review of remuneration of the Directors;
and (ii) the review of the terms of reference of remuneration
committee. The emoluments of the Directors are
recommended by the remuneration committee to the Board,
having regard to individual’s performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and prevailing market conditions. The
attendance record of the remuneration committee members
at the meeting held during the year is set out in the
“Attendance Record” on page 37 of this report.

The information in respect of emolument policy of the Group
is set out in the relevant sections of the “REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS” of this annual report and a separate report,
2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“2021 ESG Report”).
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Nomination committee

The nomination committee has been established on 4 April
2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members

are:

. Su Fanrong (Chairman)

. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)

. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)
. Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)

Terms of reference of nomination committee are summarised

as follows:

i)

to review and monitor the structure, size and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, language, age,
religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length of
service) of the Board at least annually in accordance
with the Board Diversity Policy and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

to identify and/or nominate and then select or make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Directors or to fill Board vacancies in accordance with
the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
by considering the skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that the individual is expected to bring
to the Board and what are their potential contributions
as and when they arise with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Such appointment is subject
to the approval of the Board;

to make recommendations (taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and diversity need in
the future) to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in accordance with the Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;
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iv) to disclose the Policy for Nomination of a Director of

Vi)

vii)

viii)

the Company, performed by the nomination committee
during the year. This includes the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorships during the year, setting
out the procedures for the appointment and
reappointment of Directors and board succession
planning consideration;

to assess and review the independence of independent
non-executive Directors annually;

to review the Board Diversity Policy concerning
diversity at all levels of Board members, including any
measurable objectives and progress on achieving
those objectives, and make disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report annually;

for corporate governance issues, the nomination
committee should (i) review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management (if any); and (ii) develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors;

the nomination committee shall make a statement or
report to the Board after each meeting about its
activities, the diversity of board members and the
process used for appointments, reappointment of
Directors under the Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company and board succession planning
consideration and explain if external advice has been
used and disclose and publish in the annual report or
other report as required subject to the Listing Rules
which is amended from time to time; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the nomination as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard
to the Code.
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During the year under review, two nomination committee
meetings were held and the works performed by the
nomination committee included but not limited to: (i) the
review of current structure, size and diversity of the Board;
(i) the assessment and review of the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (iii) the review of the
Board Diversity Policy, the progress of achieving measurable
objective for 2021 and determine new measurable objective
for year 2022 and the timetable in relation thereto; (iv) to
note the Code and related Listing Rules amendments in
2022; (v) to note the major changes and current progress
under the ESG Reporting Guide in 2021; (vi) the
recommendation and nomination of Directors to be re-
elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; and (vii) the review of terms of reference of
nomination committee.

The Board Diversity Policy has been adopted since 2013.
Other than the elements of board diversity, in considering
the nomination of new directors, the nomination committee
members will subject to the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience and professional ethics of the
candidates, especially their experience in the business/
industry of the Group and/or other professional areas. The
nomination committee then put forward the recommendation
in respect of the above factors, where appropriate, to the
Board for consideration and adoption according to the
Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company. The
attendance record of the nomination committee members
at the meetings during the year is set out in the “Attendance
Record” on page 37 of this report.
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The summary of Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy has been reviewed and
recommended by nomination committee members, and
approved by Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy is summarised as follows:

° articulate the benefits of diversity, including gender
diversity, and the importance of being able to attract,
retain and motivate Directors from the widest possible
pool of available talent, and also aware of development
of a boarder and more diverse pool of skilled and
experienced employee and that, in their skills, will
prepare for senior management and board position to
enhance the quality of the Company’s performance;

° express the Company’s commitment to diversity at all
levels, including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skKills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length of
service, in particular focus on gender diversity,
independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and skills and experience; and

° prepare a board skills matrix helping the Board to
assess the current mix of competencies and diversity
on the Board and identify any gaps that may exist.

The summary of Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
has been recommended by nomination committee members
and approved by Directors and adopted on 18 December
2018.

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company is
summarised as follows:

o state the objectives of the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company, including ensuring the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business;
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° emphasise the ultimate responsibility for selection and .
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board;

° set out the procedure for the selection, appointment .
and reappointment of Directors containing the selection
criteria, including but not limited to considering the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

o set out other factors related to the Company, suggest °
the qualifications of the candidates, such as the
present needs of the Board for particular expertise
skills or experience and whether the candidates would
satisfy those needs, the requirement for the Board to
have independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates for independent non-executive Directors
would be considered independence with reference to
the independence criteria or guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules, the suitability to the Company’s present
needs for particular skills or experience and whether
it fits with the Company’s culture;

° list the nomination of Directors applicable laws and .
procedures;

° state the requirement of re-election of retirement of .
non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) who have served for more
than 9 years; and

° state the board succession planning considerations .
and periodical reviews of the plan.
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required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for adoption.

£3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The nomination committee will review the Policy for
Nomination of a Director of the Company and disclose in
this report on the Board’s succession planning considerations
to achieve the objective to ensure that it remains relevant
to the Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

Audit Committee

The audit committee has been established on 30 December
1998. At present, it consists of three members and all of
them are independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)

Terms of reference of audit committee are summarised as
follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditor

i) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity;

iii) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;
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iv) to develop and implement policy on engaging an

external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with
the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

Review of the Company’s financial information

Vi)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In reviewing these
reports (if applicable) before submission to the Board,
the audit committee should focus particularly on:

(a) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(b) major judgmental areas;
(c) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(d) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(e) compliance with accounting standards; and

(ff compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

iv)

T SIS A% 8K A 4R £ IF 12 BUIR 75 # T X
R W FARIT BT [ INEZH
B ] B 1R A B A R B I (R — ¥R Il - Y
BRSEEE L T 2 EREE —EE
BAEMAERERNZE=T EREE
MATEHELZEBBRZRBE AR A
TRBIFRER 2 — &0 2 (LIS

LEMLARRZTH KN E 2 FHA
ErgmEurRbES

BEH AR 2 BER

Vi)

ERARRZUBREARFERE R
RE -FFEREMGERNNB)FTERS
Z SRR - A2 B H R LA B 7 R R
ZERAE -BERRZEQHERAEFERER
BRAmE (ER) A R RIS T
TEINAZER] -

(@) BEFBRREBZEMER:
(b) FREEHE 2T

(c) HZ#MEBRzEAHE

(d) PERBLEZRIREMRER
B

£3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

vii)

in regard to (vi) above:

(@) members of the audit committee should liaise
with the Board and senior management (if any);

the audit committee must meet, at least twice a
year, with the Company’s external auditor; and

(c) the audit committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the report and accounts, it
should give due consideration to any matters that
have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) (or
person occupying the same position), or external
auditor;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems
viii) to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless

expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the Board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

vii)

#EXFEWV)EMS :

() BELZEEKEBERAEFELEH
EEAE (NGB

2

el

(b) BEHRZEEBFHLAEAR
SN IZ BB R - &

) BRZESBRERRZRTHRE LK
B AT RR ST R ZERE AL
TSEEHR YREEZEIMAH
ARBBT e MMGERBE
ERTEE)(HEER B2
AL)ROMNERZ BB IR 2 FIE ¢

EEAXRAZHBEFRHE BEREZERA

BREEIER AT

viii)

BEARB 2 HBEE LWR(BRIFAESR
BRNEZSETARZEGNXRESS
Ay SRHERIE) I AR A M EREE
KA EBESIR AR AR

HEREIWEREENAMEER
7o RREEEERTREELAMZA
FodmANRERBRARRES WA
B GERBETENER EBEE
N &5 B RS LANR BT X
JIRENBERBEXRERR

THXEEFTE LRI EREIMAHRA
REELRANMPEZEECERRAEER
REEBHRATHERZOE




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\%M\‘A*ﬁd:
IR B/RAAN A
xi) to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

XVi)

(if any) or the professional firm performing internal
audit function and external auditor, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review and assess the annual internal audit plan of
the Company;

to provide comments and recommendations on the
enhancement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

to meet with the internal auditor (if any) or the
representative of the professional firm performing
internal audit function, if required, to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues or concerns relating to risk
management and internal control function;

to seek assurance from internal auditor or the
professional firm performing internal audit function that
internal control processes for risk management are in
place for the strategy determined by the Board;

to review the content of the confirmation made by the
management in relation to the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
prior to submission to the Board;

xvii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;

xviii) to review the external auditor’s management letter,

XiX)

any material queries raised by the external auditor to
management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised
management letter;

in the external auditor’s

xi) HERAEAZBED(E ) TR ERX
MM B X R B MIMNEZEAD 2 TS
5 LHERATXBINEERNRR]
NERWERENE YABEE 2
ARt MR AR BN R B AR

EBIMHE AR R FE AR ELET &

xii)

RESEMEZEAMBANEE O RERE
B RS AR

xiii)

IR ER - BB BED (AR ) RAITA
MEZINENFEEQRZKNKRGE - AE
RAFEERREIEMA I B
B AR AR RE S RROT

Xiv)

IA) A B A% 2R S 1T A B AR DD BE Y
XRRISRER  BRAREECNEE
BERFARAEZEHE 2R

XV)

=

EHEREFTENEREMELERA
SHEHRREEMAMEZRTARIE L
R KNS

XVi)

xvii) A AR E 2 B R BRRNE

xviil) FERIMNEZEEN R T EIRE 2(BEZIFN
FA ) SN R BLAD B & R AC 8% - B
BHRE REEERREREERL 2 EM
EXRELEEBELZEE

MREESLELOERINEZHEMGE T
EIRE Z(EZBRHBAREIFIRE Z
£E:

XiX)

£3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

xx) to review arrangements employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the
Company to conduct a fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action;

xxi) to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relations with the external auditor;

xxii) to report on all of the above matters in the Code
Provisions of the Code to the Board;

xxiii) to consider any other matters specifically referred to
the audit committee by the Board;

Corporate Governance Issues

xxiv) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, and implement the
corporate governance policies laid down by the Board;

xxv) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

xxvi) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and other related rules.

During the year under review, four audit committee meetings
were held and the attendance record of the audit committee
members at the meetings held during the year is set out
in the “Attendance Record” on page 37 of this report.
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The works performed by the audit committee included but
not limited to: (i) discussion on and review of the half year
and annual financial statements of the Group (including but
not limited to financial and accounting policies and
practices); (ii) meeting with the representatives of the
professional firm performing internal audit function (the
internal auditor) to discuss risk management process and
the effectiveness of internal control system of the Group
and make recommendations in relation thereto; (iii) review
of the findings in respect of the internal audit service
together with the recommendations to the Company; (iv)
review of the internal audit plan prepared by the internal
auditor; (v) meeting with external auditor in the absence
of management to discuss any issue arising from the audit
and the other matters the external auditor may raise; (vi)
recommend the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as external auditor of the Group and review of the audit
fees; (vii) respond to the external auditor their knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the
Group; (viii) discuss matters in relation to the compliance
of law, rules and regulations, and accounting policies and
practice of the Group; and (ix) review of the audit service
plan prepared by the external auditor.

The audit committee members also discuss matters falling
within its terms of reference with the external auditor in
the presence of the financial controller and the company
secretary from time to time as they request. When there
are uncertainties or ambiguities in the interpretation of
accounting standards in preparing the half year and annual
accounts that may likely to materially impact on the financial
position of the Group, the Company will prepare certain
analysis explaining the situation in relation thereto for the
audit committee members consideration and understanding.
The audit committee members have full access to, and the
co-operation of, the Company’s management in ensuring
that it is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
system.
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During the financial year of 2021, the audit committee
members had made valuable and positive contribution, and
delivered independent and informed comments for the
formulation and implementation of the Company’s
operational strategies and policies. Apart from meeting with
the internal auditor, the audit committee members had also
reviewed certain areas of the risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the code of corporate
governance and reviewed the risk assessment reports,
required the management of the Group to confirm the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and advised them to pay attention to those areas
associated with high risks and take relevant measures to
further improve the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. During the year under review, the
concerns raised and discussed in respect of risk assessment
and internal control systems had also been put forward to
the Board to consider whether the measures to mitigate
those risks are effective and adequate.

A whistleblowing policy and system have been implemented
and set up since 22 March 2012 and updated on 6
December 2021 for employees and those who deal with
the Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise
concerns, in confidence, with the audit committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining, reviewing and
monitoring risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and to ensure their effectiveness. We
believe effective risk management and internal control
systems are essential for the success of the operation of
business and good corporate governance. The Internal
Control Manual, which sets out the guidelines for the
operation of the internal control system and risk management
system, had been adopted by the Company since 1999.
These systems cover all main aspects, including financial
control, operational control, compliance control and risk
management. In order to align with the amendments made
to relevant laws, rules and regulations, and further improve
the risk management and internal control systems, the
Board is responsible to review and improve the systems
from time to time, if necessary.
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In fact, the Board has set out five objectives for the =Z=F | ZTEeCHrAEBEENAETIEEE

management to achieve, details are as below: BB
1. Maximise profitability by increasing the profit margin 1. & iBILINEE D 309 E K = LA h1 & F
of the business segment and at the same time minimise N [RIBFSRR £ EE B AR

the production costs

2. Maintain a strong cash flow position of the Group 2. REXAEFEARENRSR

3. Enhance product quality 3. REAERE=

4. Attract new customers and expand markets for each 4, ASEEBHERNAZELMERETS
of the business segments

5.  Full compliance with laws, rules and regulations and 5,
financial reporting requirements
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Hence, a risk assessment on the existing or potential risks At EREE T SFEE VLR NEEE
that may affect the achievement of the above objectives BNEEREP e EER FIMBENIRE
would be conducted from time to time, at least twice a g B A EITRR (G o

year by the management during the course of business

operation and management.

The framework of the risk management and internal control REEBR R EIE R ANBPESIE R 2 1EZE
systems of the Group:

The Board Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it
EEg is willing to take in achieving the Group’s objectives
ML RETEKAEE R ERMBEZANRREE MZE
° Maintain an appropriate and effective risk management and

internal control systems of the Company
HBARRIAEMBEYHEARE IR AR EE RS

o Delegate the responsibility to the management to design,
implement and assess the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group
ZREEER BN EASENEREZMABEIZE RS

° Delegate the responsibility to the audit committee to review
and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group
EREZZESAUETENEEAEERE R EIRMAILEEIE RN
BRMEZEE
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Audit Committee °
EREEE

Internal Auditor °
A B A% B A

Heads of core business °

units/departments
BOEBEN BHEE

Perform the duties delegated by the Board, that is, review
and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group

BTEFERTHERE EEMEEARNEE R EEMA I
ES 0P =gV Eks

Discuss with the internal auditor the major findings in respect
of internal audit services and review the annual internal audit
plan

NEZ BRI A B EZRBHATER  TEHFAZ NEEZ
BE

Review the confirmation from the management of the Group
and the comments and recommendations from the internal
auditor in relation to the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems prior to submission
to the Board
EHNAEEEREAEZRERGRIRE 2 MR M AFPZER 2 =
RAgs  UERAEENRERERMAE TR RN AR

Perform internal audit services for the Group
RAEBETAREZRE

Deliver internal audit reports to the audit committee and the
Board

MEZEZEENESFERIANMBERRS

Meet with the audit committee members to discuss the major
findings and make recommendations to improve the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
HEZZEENECH MR FIEATERTRENSAEE AR
EIRMA BT R ER

Assess the risk level based on potential impact and likelihood
of risks in different aspects at least semi-annually
ROBFFRBEEZEMA LA ETR 7 EA &R 2 B2
5

Identify the material risks and discuss measures to mitigate
risks

7Bl KRB I 5 s B KL B B0 4 e

Give a confirmation annually on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of its business unit/
department and submit it to the audit committee
BERREEBKEL FPIEE 2 RAREEMAIELITRFH G
M WRXERANTEZEZES
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Process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Two risk assessment meetings were held during the year,
at approximately half year intervals. The heads of the core
business units/departments of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries assessed the risk level based on potential
impact and likelihood of risks in different aspects, including
business risk, financial risk, compliance risk, operational
risk and other risks that may be exposed to. They fill out
the risk assessment form which was devised with reference
to the guidance entitled Control and Risk
Management — A Basic Framework” issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants before the meetings
were held. The Board members (mainly the executive
Directors) together with the management of the core
business units/departments of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries participated in the risk assessment meetings.
Those meetings aimed to identify the material risks and to
discuss the measures to manage risks. Besides, the status
and effectiveness on implementation of internal control
measures taken after the last risk assessment meeting
would be followed up in the risk assessment meetings.

“Internal

Subject to the Code and terms of reference of the audit
committee of the Company, the management of each core
business unit/department of the Group will provide the
internal auditor with their written confirmation annually in
relation to the effectiveness and adequacy of their risk
management and internal control systems for further review,
comment and recommendation and thereafter the audit
committee will review the same prior to submission to the
Board. The internal auditor will base on the nature and
extent of the risks of each individual core business unit/
department to perform further review and recommendation.

In addition to the above assessment process, the
management report and discuss at the monthly meeting
on the existing risks and potential risks of business
operation and cash flow positions of the Group has to face
and monitor.
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The Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services
Limited as the internal auditor of the Company. During the
year, the internal auditor had (i) met with the audit committee
to discuss and provide recommendations on improving the
risk assessment process of the Group; (ii) discussed the
major findings in respect of internal audit services with the
audit committee and provided recommendations for
improvement on internal control; and (iii) delivered the audit
committee the internal audit reports regarding the main risk
areas of the business segments of the Group and internal
audit plan in relation thereto, etc. Apart from taking part
in advising the maintenance of an effective and adequate
risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, they also reviewed and monitored the internal
operation of the Group through the testing and controls
performed after arranging site visits of the two steel cord
plants.

All relevant confirmations from the management on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Company’s risk
management and internal controls systems for the year
ended 31 December 2021 had been received. The audit
committee members had reviewed those contents of the
confirmations and submitted the same to the Board. The
Board had reviewed and confirmed the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at the Board meeting.

In view of the foregoing, the Board had duly ensured the
review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
was conducted at least annually and the Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group were effective and adequate
throughout the year of 2021. However, there is room for
improvement in certain areas, for instance, the measures
of managing operational and other risks, such as product
quality control and new product development.
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Procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information

The Company complied with the Listing Rules, SFO and
other regulatory requirements regarding the handling and
dissemination of inside information. Directors and senior
management of the Company oblige to take all reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirement. Directors and senior management of the
Company follow the guidelines stipulated in Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy of the Company which has
been adopted by the Board since 2011. Some principles
of dissemination of inside information of the Company were
stated in the said policy, details are as follows:

The heads of business units/individual departments identify
and assess whether a potential event or transaction may
constitute inside information. If that is the case the potential
event or transaction should be reported to the senior
management of the Company, through the company
secretarial department of the Company. The senior
management will consider with the chairman/managing
Director whether the information constitute inside information
and report to the Board. The Board will consider whether
the information may constitute inside information and
whether disclosure and/or trading halt would be required.
If this constitutes inside information, the company secretarial
department of the Company would have to arrange for
trading halt, prepare and publish an announcement after
approval by the Board.

BEERBEEARTHENER
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Below flow chart illustrates the internal control and reporting UTANAEHEBANEEE Z NP
system of the Company relating to inside information: WMEGRIERE -

Heads of business units/individual departments to identify and assess whether potential or
developing events may constitute inside information*®

EBEN ERBPHEEFHIMFEERAEERERTOEHRDEBRARER

If yes, report to senior management of the
Company (the usual channel is through company
secretary of the Company)

R HRARTEREER(—RERBARQFTLH
WEREB)ER

Responsible senior management to consider with the chairman/managing Director whether the
information may constitute inside information

HEECEREEBHRESR ESHREEZRZENRRREBRARIES

If yes, report to the Board with supporting
documents through the channel of company
secretarial department of the Company. The
company secretarial department of the Company
considers potential disclosure implications (with
assistance of legal counsel if appropriate) and
arranges for collating and circulating relevant
information to the Board for further consideration
W - FEABR R X RZBHAR A AR HER
MEESER - ARFAARENSEREENKE
FE(WMEE EREEEREZHE) R
BEHAEHNTESEFE—FEE

The Board to consider whether the information may constitute inside information and whether
disclosure and/or request of trading halt would be required

MEREZEZEHREARBRARESNEERERER AT ERFEEFE

If yes, the company secretarial department of
the Company arranges for trading halt and/or
preparing announcement

MR AAFDARAREBKLHBBREEE R
EEHNE

Trading halt is made and announcement is published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after approval by the Board
RESESENIER  REBERENMERAR LB AEMTIEAS

*

The heads of business units/individual departments can consult * EBEN BABAEENEEBAEERAE
the functional departments of the Company, if he/she has any SEE R BRI BT A RER - b, i ] B R A
query about what constitute inside information FINEEIEE—TEH
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Directors or employees of the Group in possession of the
inside information must maintain strict confidentiality of
unpublished inside information until it is announced and
ensure this is the strictest security of the information is
observed within the Company and its advisers and if the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained,
an announcement shall be made as soon as reasonably
practicable; or if inside information has been advertently
divulged, an announcement shall be issued immediately so
as to disseminate such information to the market as a
whole.

The Board monitors the inside information disclosure having
regard to the SFO and Listing Rules requirements and the
Company ensure that the dissemination of inside information
to the Shareholders and other stakeholders is dealt fairly
in order to avoid any person having a privileged dealing
position.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In order to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practice and be in line with Code Provision E.1.5 of the
Code requiring all listed issuer to disclose its dividend
policy in their annual reports, the dividend policy of the
Company has been adopted by the Board on 18 December
2018, which includes setting standard rules and guidelines
to be followed by the Board in deciding whether to
recommend dividend out of the profits and the amount of
dividend per Share to be distributed. The objective of the
dividend policy is to reward its Shareholders by sharing a
portion of the profits, while also ensure that enough funds
are retained for future prospects of the Company and strive
for a balance between the growth of the Company and the
benefits of the Shareholders.

When considering the decision on dividend declaration, we
will take into account both the internal factors and external
factors.
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For internal factors, we will consider the: (i) profitability of the
Company; (i) liquidity position and the availability of free cash
flow; (iii) capital requirements for growth plans of the Company
which may require funds preservation and internal funds
generation, both internal and external; (iv) investment
opportunities available with the Company; (v) borrowing capacity
of the Company so as to capture any growth opportunities,
inorganic or otherwise; (vi) ability to receive dividend from the
Company’s subsidiaries and associated companies; and (vii)
Shareholder’s expectation of a profitable return on their
investment to maintain their investment in the Company.

For external factors, we will consider the: (i) statutory and
regulatory requirements and restrictions on the dividend
distributions; (ii) contractual restrictions/restrictions in debt
covenants which affect the Company’s ability to pay
dividends; (iii) prevailing economic climate in the global
including the PRC that will affect the availability of profits
for dividend; (iv) emerging trends in the financial market
and business cycle of steel cord business that will affect
the growth and performance of the steel cord industry; and
(v) taxation consideration.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute
discretion in line with the dividend policy, or if the Board
are justified by the profits of the Company available for
distribution. If the share capital is divided into different
classes (if applicable), the Directors may pay interim
dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred
rights with regard to dividend as well as on shares which
confer preferential rights with regard to dividend, but no
interim dividend shall be paid on shares carrying deferred
or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any
preferential dividend is in arrears.

The Directors may also pay at intervals settled by them
any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them
that the profits available for distribution justify the payment.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting, the Board may recommend quantum of
final dividend payable to the Shareholders at its annual
general meeting in line with the dividend policy, based on
the aforesaid factors arrived at as per the audited financial
statements.
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The dividend shall be paid in the form of: (i) cash; or (ii)
a scrip dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and
partly in (ii) above. The Company may offer the Shareholders
the option of receiving scrip shares in lieu of cash, which
may enable the Shareholders to increase their investment
in the Company without incurring brokerage fees.

The Company shall endeavor to maintain a reasonable
dividend payout ratio, whether as interim and/or final
dividends, subject to (i) capital needs of the Company; (ii)
positive operating cash flows; and (jii) other financial factors
enumerated in the dividend policy. The Company may
recommend a special dividend in special circumstances.

The dividend policy would be subject to revision and
amendment under the Articles and the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules,
from time to time, on the subject matter. The Company
reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend
any of the provisions of the said policy.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.
issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with
the provisions laid down under the said policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc. shall prevail upon
the provisions hereunder and the said policy shall stand
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.

The dividend policy does not constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare
a dividend at any time or from time to time, but only
represents a general guidance and information purpose
regarding the dividend policy. The Board reserves the right
to depart from and amend the said policy as and when
circumstances so warrant.

To the extent permitted by applicable laws and the Articles,
subject to the dividend policy adopted by the Company
and in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the
Company plans to distribute dividends of an amount not
less than 30% of the Group’s annual consolidated net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for each of the
three financial years from 2021 to 2023 to the Shareholders.
The Board may propose a distribution plan with a higher
level of dividends based on the financial performance
growth from time to time. Details were also disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 21 February 2022.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:

BB B
ERFEE BN/ RTINS BN 2 Rl
AGE RN EEIE M EIIAT

Services rendered Ptz i AR 7% HK$°000

BT T

Audit services EETARES 1,537
Non-audit services: IEEET RS -

Interim review fhEAER R 378

Others Eib 20

1,935

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND

REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards to enable the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. The Directors will subject to statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards, select suitable
accounting policies and apply them consistently, make
prudent, fair and reasonable judgements and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Group. She reports to the chairman and/
or managing Director. During the year, the company
secretary of the Company has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

WREEBMBREZ2EE

EENEREFEARBEEZ R ERE
R mEENREAEEGE M BRE N
REAMHRETERNFFRBERMERE
RERRA - EFHZHROEEERIERZ
BERIERZEETERY ERERAENSR
BER FLEE AFREEZHE REE
WIRFF B E REEREM GRS -

RAME

KRR RRAMEAAEB  2BEE -KS
MEERR /UM ESHEERER NAF
B ARRRZABMED BT ETHELES.29
BREBEEEIIZHE -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERWRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with Shareholders. In order to maintain an
ongoing dialogue with Shareholders, the Company has
opportunities to directly communicate with Shareholders at
various annual general meetings and other general meetings
where Shareholders are encouraged to actively attend. In
addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each of remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s
questions at the 2021 annual general meeting (the “2021
AGM”). The external auditor had also attended the 2021
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Procedures for members/Shareholders to convene
a general meeting (“GM”)

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
directors are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from members/Shareholders
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
the members/Shareholders having a right to vote at GM.

The request:—

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

() may be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun
Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

(d) may consist of several documents in like form;

(¢) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and
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() must be verified with the share registrar of the
Company, and upon the share registrar’s confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the company
secretary of the Company will notify the Board to
convene a GM by serving proper notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members/Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request
has been verified as not in order, the requesting
members/Shareholders will be informed of this
outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened
as requested.

Procedures for members/Shareholders and other
stakeholders to send enquires and concerns to
the Board

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to
access the Company’s website at http://www.shougangcentury.
com.hk for up-to-date information of the Company. They are
advised to send enquires and concerns to the Board:-

(@) by post at the registered office of the Company
situated at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary; or

(b) by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk for the
attention of our Investor Relations section; or

(¢) by filling out the sign up form on the Company’s
website if they would like to be kept up-to-date on
the latest information of the Company.

The Company will make response to members/Shareholders’
questions through their required communication channels
or deliver the relevant material directly to their email as
soon as the information becomes available online and make
necessary arrangement for direction of enquires to the
Board, if required.
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The company secretary of the Company forwards
communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the independent non-executive Directors,
communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chair of the
appropriate committee, and communications relating to
ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquires
and complaints, to the appropriate Company’s executive.

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders can read
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy at the Company’s
website for details and, effectiveness communication. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy was updated on 6
December 2021 to maintain candid and constructive
communications with Shareholders and potential investors.

Procedures for members/Shareholders to put
forward proposals at annual general meetings
(“AGM”)

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if a
company is required to hold an AGM under Section 610,
the members/Shareholders may request to give, to
members/Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting.

The Company must give notice of a resolution if it has
received requests that it do so from:—

(@) the members/Shareholders representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the members/Shareholders
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM
to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 members/Shareholders who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the
requests relate.
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The request:—

(@) must be sent to the registered office of the Company
at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun
Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

(b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given;

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

(d) must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6
weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate;
or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

The written request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar who will check if the written request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will
notify the Board for including the resolution in the agenda
for AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member/Shareholder entitled to
receive notice of the AGM in the same manner as the notice
of the meeting; and at the same time as, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

If the request has been verified as not in order for the said
purposes, the members/Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ power to request circulation of
statement

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a
member/Shareholder may request the Company to circulate,
to members/Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a
general meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution
to be dealt with at that meeting or other business to be
dealt with at that meeting. The Company is required to
circulate the statement if it has received requests to do so
from the members/Shareholders representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the members/Shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote or at least 50 members/
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote.

The aforesaid members/Shareholders’ requests (i) may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company, at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong or in
electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before
the meeting to which it relates.

Pursuant to Section 581 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 580 to circulate a
statement must send a copy of it to each member/
Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the meeting in the
same manner as the notice of the meeting and at the same
time as or as soon as reasonably practicable after it gives
notice of the meeting. The expenses of the Company in
complying with the Section 581 need not be paid by the
members/Shareholders who requested the circulation of the
statement if the meeting to which the requests relate is an
AGM of the Company; and the requests sufficient to require
the Company to circulate the statement are received in
time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement
at the same time as it give notice of the meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company puts a high regard for the aspect of investor
relations and recognises that establishment of investor
relations can enhance its transparency, maximise its value
and increase investors’ understanding of and trust in the
Company. Therefore, the management, as requested may meet
with Shareholders, potential and institutional investors and
research analysts. The management will also provide them
with the information of the latest business development of
the Group and answer their queries subject to the Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy. The Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy is to help and provide guidance to the
Directors and employees of the Group to fulfill their obligations
under the Listing Rules and the SFO while allowing them to
actively inform the market of the Company development as
well as how to make judgement as to what inside information
is and when disclosure is required. The corresponding
presentation materials subject to the Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy are made available upon request, if
appropriate. The procedures for handling and dissemination
of inside information have been illustrated under the heading
“ ” above.

In order to further promote a sound communication
between the public, the Company fully utilises its website
(http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk) as a means to provide
the latest and updated information in a timely manner, and
from time to time enhances the homepage of the website to
reflect its current business development. Also, the company
secretarial department of the Company will respond to the
telephone enquiries and email or correspondences from
Shareholders or investors in respect of various issues subject
to the Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy. Any opinions,
views and suggestions of Shareholders will be solicited and
brought to the attention of the Board and management, if
necessary.

During the year, the 2021 AGM was held on 7 June 2021
to approve ordinary and special businesses of annual general
meeting. The resolutions of 2021 AGM were duly passed
by way of poll. A general meeting was held on 30 November
2021 to approve the proposed change of Company name.
The resolution of general meeting was also duly passed by
way of poll.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, except
the name of the Company was changed from “BHRZ &
E B2 7 Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited”
to “BERFERIEABR QA Shougang Century Holdings
Limited” on 6 December 2021. The Articles with updated
Company name has been posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEGRESE

The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

RESULTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 114 to 250.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.5 cents per fully paid ordinary share (2020: HK1.5
cents), with total amount of approximately HK$29,571,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$28,480,000),
payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Monday, 11 July 2022. The final dividend is
subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be
held on Monday, 27 June 2022, the final dividend is
expected to be paid on or about Friday, 29 July 2022. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Monday, 11 July 2022 for registration.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 20 June 2022 to Monday, 27 June 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting which
is scheduled to be held on Monday, 27 June 2022, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 17 June
2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business model and strategy

Our mission is to be one of the top tier steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality steel cords and
sawing wire products; and the evolution into a diversified
metal product manufacturer benefiting from a successful
“Eastern” brand recognition in the PRC and worldwide
markets. Our ultimate goal is to maintain long-term
profitability, strive for the greatest return for Shareholders,
deliver sustainable growth in our stakeholders’ value under
a prudent and manageable capital structure and contribute
to the economic and social development of the communities
in which we operate.

The Board is responsible for the development of business
models and setting of strategies, planning and development
of the Group. The strategies adopted by the Board will be
executed by the managing Director who will motivate the
staff to achieve the designated business goals and financial
targets under risk tolerance levels prescribed by the Board.
The progress of implementation of the strategies and
business goals will be reviewed and adjusted to respond
to the constantly changing market environment. Corrective
and follow-up actions are made regularly at the Board and/
or other management meetings throughout the years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Review of operations

The Group recorded net profit of HK$80,879,000 for the
year in compared with net profit of HK$148,254,000 from
previous year. Further details in respect of the fair review
of the Group’s businesses, please refer to the sections
“CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, results of operations and financial
position may be affected by risks and uncertainties relating
to the Group’s businesses. These risks and uncertainties
could result in the Group’s businesses, results of operations
and financial position to defer materially from expected or
historical results. The risks and uncertainties set out below
are known to the Group during the year under review:

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s

business operations

1. As the majority of sales of steel cords of the Group
are domestic, the business and prospect of steel cord
segment is therefore highly dependent on the economic
performance of the PRC, in particular, the performance
of automotive and transportation industries and those
that involve high volume of road transportation for
commercial and industrial purposes, such as property
development and import/export. Therefore, any
downturn in the economy of the PRC may cause lower
demand for steel cords and hence may have material
adverse impact to the operations of steel cord
segment. Despite the majority of the Group’s customers
are radial tyre manufacturers located in the PRC,
however their customers, the vehicle manufacturers
that are located in the United States are affected by
the Sino-US trade debacle that has weighed in
sentiment.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
business operations (continued)

2.

The average selling price of steel cords increased
during the year under review, attributable to the relief
in over capacity situation of steel cord industry together
with the introduction of new products, effective product
mix and effort in expansion of exports. The selling
price of steel cords is highly dependent on the supply
and demand situation in the PRC as well as the price
of its major material — steel wire rod; therefore, any
change in these two factors will have material impact
to the steel cord segment.

The revenue from sales to top five customers of the
Group accounted for 50.2% of total revenue of the
Group for the year under review. Any change to the
business operations, financial conditions or purchasing
patterns of these customers may have adverse impact
to the revenue of the Group.

The measures to manage the impact on these potential
risks and uncertainties are described in the heading
“BUSINESS REVIEW?” of the section of the “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report.

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position

1.

The following factors may have negative impact on
the revenue and net results of the Group:

a. Change in the mix of revenue contributions, such
as the income of steel cord segment from sales
of steel cord for truck tyres, off the road truck
tyres and passenger car tyres;

b. Unfavorable economic development in the PRC
and worldwide markets that may have negative
impact on our steel cord segment;
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

1.

(continued)

c. Increased market and price competition for steel
cord segment; and

d. Failure to reduce production and operating costs,
in particular, certain unit fixed production costs
of steel cord segment can be lowered by increase
in sales and production volume.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the majority
of the revenue of the Group was denominated in RMB,
while there were some borrowings of the Group
dominated in other currencies. Hence, any movement
of the exchange rate of RMB will affect to the results
of operations of the Group. Furthermore, the results
and financial position of the Group are denominated
in RMB but presented in HKD for reporting purposes,
therefore, the movement of the exchange rate of RMB
will have impact to the financial position of the Group
when translating the Group’s results and financial
position into HKD.

The Group is required to conduct an impairment
assessment on its property, plant and equipment on
a regular basis in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. Any future impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed depends on various
factors including the general economic and financial
conditions, market competitions, prevailing product
selling price and market interest rates. Such impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed will have material
impact to the results of the Group, however, it is a
non-cash item and therefore will not affect the future
business operations and financial conditions of the
Group.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s
results and financial position (continued)

4.

The Group utilised a certain extent of bank borrowings
to finance its operations. As at 31 December 2021,
all bank borrowings are due within one year, therefore
the Group will be exposed to the liquidity risks of
inability of repaying these borrowings when due. The
Group is expected to service the debt repayments due
in 2022 by utilising cash generated from its operations,
refinancing from banks and other sources, with an
objective to gradually reduce the amount of interest
bearing borrowings of the Group. However, the Group’s
ability to generate sufficient cash to service its
outstanding debts and obligations will depend on the
operating performance of its various business segments
in the future, which will be affected by factors such
as the prevailing economic and liquidity conditions,
the demand of its products and prevailing selling
prices. Whether the Group can refinance its borrowings
also depends on a number of factors, including the
operating performance and financial conditions of the
Group, the prevailing economic conditions, the
prevailing credit policy of respective lender and the
liquidity of the financial markets. If the Group is unable
to service any of its borrowings due in 2022, this may
result in a default and will have significant adverse
impact to the financial position of the Group as the
Group will be requested to repay full or part of its
outstanding borrowings on an accelerated basis. The
management of the Company is seeking for various
banks refinancing to mitigate these potential risks.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators of the Group for

the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020 are

ﬂﬁ*%ﬁﬁ%fﬁ?‘a‘ =

AEERBE_T-_—FM_FT_TF+_H

St RALEENMBERIREZEE W

summarised as follows: T
2021 2020 Change
:g:_$ — ? —= E'E g@j
1. Current ratio (times) eV E(fF) 1.09 1.15 N/A &M
2. Liquidity ratio (times) TEELLE(F) 0.88 1.00 N/A REMA
3. Gearing ratio (%) BELE%) 24.1 294 -53pp B Y
4. Average turnover period on FEU AR R T B (X)
trade receivables (days) 89 98 -9
5. Average turnover period on FEHIEBE(XR)
inventories (days) 57 60 -3
6.  Average turnover period on FERT R FHEEH(XK)
trade payables (days) 87 115 -28
Current ratio T Ep b 2R

Current ratio (calculated as current assets divided by
current liabilities) of the Group was 1.09 times at 31
December 2021, lower than 1.15 times at 31 December
2020.

Liquidity ratio

Liquidity ratio (calculated as current assets less inventories
divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 0.88 time
at 31 December 2021, lower than 1 time at 31 December
2020.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio (calculated as total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (included pledged bank deposits)
divided by total equity) of the Group decreased from 29.4%
at 31 December 2020 to 24.1% at 31 December 2021.

Average turnover period on trade receivables
Average turnover period on trade receivables (calculated as
average trade receivables for the year (exclusive of value-
added tax in respect of sales in the PRC) divided by gross
revenue times 365 days) was 89 days for the year, shorter
by 9 days as compared to 98 days for the previous year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(continued)

Average turnover period on inventories

Average turnover period on inventories (calculated as
average amount of inventories for the year divided by cost
of sales times 365 days) was 57 days for the year, shorter
by 3 days as compared to 60 days for the previous year.

Average turnover period on trade payables

Average turnover period on trade payables (calculated as
average trade payables for the year (exclusive of value-
added tax in respect of cost of sales in the PRC) divided
by cost of sales times 365 days) was 87 days for the year,
which was 28 days shorter as compared to 115 days for
the previous year.

Further details regarding the above and other financial
information, please refer to the section “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this annual report. Key
performance indicators mean factors by reference to which
the development, performance or position of the business
of the Group can be measured effectively which we can
use to monitor progress against our strategies while figures
reporting under accounting standards could not serve such
purpose.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

In the view that uncertainty is one of the main challenges
facing by the China’s economy, the performance of the
steel cord industry might be affected unless a strong cash
flow is maintained as well as cost saving and risk mitigation
measures are implemented in order. Details of future
development of the Company’s business, please refer to
the sections “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
the environment and community in which it engages by
controlling and minimising the generation of wastes, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges, and at the same
time, complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage,
waste gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong
Kong and PRC during the production process.

In order to attach the importance to environmental
protection, the Group has formally adopted an Environmental
Policy (the “Policy”) since 2017, which has already been
implemented all along as part of the Internal Control Manual.
The underlying principle of the Policy is to reduce, reuse
and recycle resources used in the production lines and
offices so as to mitigate wastes and use energy and
resources effectively. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group and are monitored from time
to time, for example, measures on effective energy
conservation to reduce the use of energy, water and other
resources; measures on managing the reduction of wastes
and greenhouse gas emissions, etc. had been taken and
complied with since 2015. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is
set out in the 2021 ESG Report. The English and Chinese
versions of the 2021 ESG Report are available on the
Company’s website at http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk
and Stock Exchange’s website at https://www.hkexnews.hk.
You may access the 2021 ESG Report (i) by clicking the
“Investor Relations” section in the menu on the homepage
of the Company’s website; or (ii) by browsing through the
HKEX’s website.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE (continued)

In addition to the above measures, the Group has also
provided further trainings to Directors and employees and
has participated in activities organised by various
organisations to emphasise the importance of environmental
protection and to promote occupational health and safety
in offices and production lines. For instance, to encourage
our employees to participate the “Hong Kong Green Building
Week 2021” organised by Construction Industry Council
and The Hong Kong Green Building Council Limited, to
strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental
protection and raise their awareness of green building
issues and sustainable lifestyles. To promote the concept
of occupational health and safety in offices and environmental
protection, we also participated in the “Green Office Awards
Labelling Scheme” and “Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards
Labelling Scheme” organised by World Green Organisation
since 2017. These measures and trainings taken and
provided by the Group in supporting the Policy are based
on the needs and actual circumstances of the Group and
will be reviewed by the management annually.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group is committed to comply with the laws and
regulations in which it operates its businesses. During the
year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the
Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such
as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO,
Employment Ordinance and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, we have also
complied with laws of the PRC, including the Company
Law of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Enterprise Annuities Fund Measures,
relevant laws, rules and regulations in relation to child and
forced labour including the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour and the Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors, as well as other environmental laws,
relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention
and control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission.
These laws, ordinances and regulations include but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC,
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC,
the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance, Environmental Quality Standard for Surface
Water, Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers, Measures for Hazardous Waste Operation
Administration and Solid Wastes of Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC etc.. These environmental laws will have
impact on the Group’s operation since if we do not dispose
all wastages, discharges and waste gases properly, we
might have to bear heavy environmental protection tax and
so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
(continued)

Furthermore, the Group has started to attach more
importance to gender equality and the protection of women’s
interests, as well as on the compliance with the related
laws of Hong Kong such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, which the underlying principle is also enshrined
in the Basic Law, and related laws of PRC such as the
Law on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests
and Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female
Employees. To acquire further knowledge on this topic, we
have nominated a representative to participate in activities
related to gender equality and gender mainstreaming
organised by the Women’s Commission (an organisation
which actively engages in activities in relation to women
empowerment and advancement) for the purpose of
understanding the current role and status of women in
business sector and different parties’ concerns on gender
mainstreaming. In the light of the need to address these
issues and to put our knowledge into practice, the “Policy
on Prevention on Sexual Harassment at Workplace” has
been formulated as a way of the Company to show respect
to our employees, especially female employees.

The Group also notes the importance on human resource
management in which the representative of the Company
has learnt from the seminar that good human resource
management on effective communication when handling
verbal violence at work and such message has been
conveyed. In addition, the new measureable objective of
2022 has been adopted by the Board aiming to articulate
to the board members and/or the management the benefits
of diversity policies and the progress in gender diversity
on Hong Kong Boards. Further discussion on human
resource management is set out in the 2021 ESG Report.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

BFEERRE(E)

SN - AR E B RS BR M E AR 1 B F MR
E L ARBTHEBEBEE  flm
CHEE R AR R PR E AR A0 51 SR E AR
E) KRR BUER - PR L mRE
OB T EBRERFRIRE) RE—F
THRE-—Z8 ARFABERKR2NTHEX
EBEZES(—ARBR2ERHEME Y
A B — L BRAMR T EMMER TR
HEE) - AT BRI B AT B SR A E ML
RETEHUER TR - MAYR LERE
EHEERBELBHNMBNEET AE
B2 HIET 7RI L BOS I R BB R )INKR RS
EHERS (FHIRXEEE ) NEE-

AEETTEIBIANEREENERM - MA
REARKTEATE L TREBEERFATD
BIRERH A M AR TIEME S EREH
ERMNAR - EFEEHERN T -
FHAGHERR HEGRRAEREXNE R
HEREMAZ TICHRNTREARBAES
SEMRNZTIETERNER E—FANER
ERZAWMBIN T _—FERRE LR

ERIREN




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
(continued)

To ensure compliance with these requirements of laws, rules
and regulations, the Company has implemented an effective
internal control and approval procedures, and to obtain
high level oversight of the operation of various business
units. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and/or business units of the Group immediately.
Certain discussion regarding the Group’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group is also contained in the “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” section on pages 32 to 70 of
this annual report and the 2021 ESG Report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise employees, customers,
suppliers, Shareholders, government and regulators, as well
as banks and financial institutions (creditors).

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been
serving the Group for a long period of time. However, young
talents are also provided with opportunities to work in the
Group. The Group does not only offers competitive salaries
and benefits, but also provides training programmes or
courses for the Mainland employees at all levels from
different departments, as well as Directors and employees
of the Company in order to further enhance their
management skills, expertise and knowledge, and at the
same time, make continual contribution to the Group. The
COVID-19 epidemic remains severe in 2021, different
activities used to be organised by various business units
of the Group in the past such as celebration of Chinese
New Year and Christmas, celebration of the anniversary of
operation of steel cord plant and annual dinner, have been
significantly reduced due to the COVID-19 epidemic. In
2021, TESC also arranged for the employees to receive
the COVID-19 vaccine to protect the health of the
employees. During the year, the subsidiaries of the Company
organised team-building activities such as tree planting
event and group dining for general employees together with
the management to participate in, so as to strengthen their
partnership and communication.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Customers

The major customers of steel cord segment are the radial
tyres manufacturers. Most of them have been customers for
more than 5 years and in return of their loyalty, we provided
them with good quality products and after-sale services.

Suppliers

The major suppliers of steel cord segment are the steel
wire rod suppliers. We have co-operated with most of the
suppliers for more than 5 years and have maintained good
relationship with them through regular face-to-face meetings
and visits in order to achieve cost-effectiveness and obtain
long-term commercial benefits.

Shareholders

The ultimate operational goal of the Group is to maximise
our Shareholders’ return. The major Shareholders are
Shougang Group and its controlled corporations, Bekaert,
Li Ka Shing Foundation and minority Shareholders. It is
grateful to have Shareholders who are being supportive to
the Group for a long period of time in particular the times
when market conditions are adverse and challenging.

To set standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the
Board in deciding whether to recommend dividend out of
the profits to reward the Shareholders, the dividend policy
of the Company has been adopted by the Board on 18
December 2018, Details of which is contained in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” section on pages
32 to 70 of this annual report. For details regarding the
dividend distribution plan for the financial years from 2021
to 2023, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 February 2022.

Government and Regulators

Decisions made by the government and regulators can
significantly affect our Group’s operations. It is important,
therefore, for us to maintain good relationships with local
officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or
community developments that may affect our business. In
view of the need to maintain good relationships, we have
arranged occasional visits and face-to-face meetings
whenever necessary.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(continued)

Banks and Financial Institutions (Creditors)

Banks and financial institutions are lenders of our Group
who help us to finance our businesses, asset purchases
and supply purchases. As a trustworthy borrower, the Group
always try its best to meet every payment deadlines
responsibly and consistently, and at the same time, we
strive to improve our financial performance so that we have
a greater chance to receive quality financing in the future.
Through regular meetings and visits, we have maintained
stable relationships with them.

For further details regarding the above, please refer to the
sections “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”
and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this annual
report and the section “STAKEHOLDERS ENCGAGEMENT
AND MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT” in the 2021 ESG
Report.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out below:
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FOR THE YEAR 80,879 148,254 108,344 (8,681) (68,518)
TOTAL ASSETS BE®E 3,973,724 3,371,907 3,143,918 3,414,467 3,444,076
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (2,240,778) (1,726,336) (1,728,846) (2,075,317) (2,052,548)
TOTAL EQUITY REasE 1,732,946 1,645,571 1,415,072 1,339,150 1,391,528
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the investment properties and
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2021 are summarised on page 251 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options were granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the 2002 Scheme and the 2012
Scheme during the year. Details of share options of the
2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme are set out under the
heading “EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT” hereunder and
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 119 of this annual
report and in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made certain amount of
charitable donations.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)
Ye Qian (Executive Director)
Li Jinping (Executive Director)
Liao Jun (Non-executive Director)
(resigned on 15 January 2021)
Adam Touhig (Non-executive Director)
(appointed on 15 January 2021)
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Independent Non-executive Director)
Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)
Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with articles 101 and 102 of the Articles.
Messrs. Li Jinping, Lam Yiu Kin and Feng Yaoling will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Messrs. Su Fanrong, Tang Cornor Kwok Kau™°** and Cheung
Ngai serve/had served as directors of all subsidiaries of
the Company during the year and/or up to the date of this
report. Other than the above directors, the persons who
serve/had served as directors of subsidiaries of the
Company during the year and/or up to the date of this
report include Messrs. Dai Jihong, Li Baoren, Li Meng, Wan
Chuante, Wang Liang, Yu Zhigao and Zhao Xuewu.

Note: Mr. Tang Cornor Kwok Kau resigned as the directors of all
subsidiaries of the Company with effect from 31 January 2021.

The list of subsidiaries of the Company is set out in the
note 13 “SUBSIDIARIES” to the consolidated financial
statements and below.

Rise Boom International Limited

° Clear Vision Investments Limited

° Efficient Investments Limited

° Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

Online Investments Limited

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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° Clear Vision Investments Limited

° Efficient Investments Limited

o Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

o Online Investments Limited
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Apart from information disclosed under the heading
“DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO” and in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond has served the Board for more
than nine years, he has not engaged in any executive
management of the Group, and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm and
his respective family members have never provided any
service to the Group. He believes his familiarity and
extensive experience with the Company’s business may
place him in a better position to contribute independent
views to the Company and continue to demonstrate a firm
commitment to his role. Taking into consideration of his
independent scope of works and his high integrity when
performing duties as an independent non-executive Director
over the past years, there is no evidence that length of
tenure is having an adverse impact on his independence.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company'’s reserves available
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$170,460,000.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, DEBENTURES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the Shares, debentures or underlying Shares
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred therein or which were required to be disclosed
herein pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his entity connected had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, in a transaction, arrangement or
contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EERGERER RS

BUSINESSES

During the year, save as disclosed below, none of the WARFEER B TNXHFKEI RBiE EmRE
Directors is considered to have interest in the businesses F8A05  MmESWHR AENEBEBERK
which are considered to compete or likely to compete, RN REEN S (T E B ) NER
either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group REEREZS

pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Name of entity

whose businesses are Description of businesses of

considered to compete or the entity which are considered to

likely to compete with the compete or likely to compete with Nature of Director’s

Name of Director businesses of the Group  the businesses of the Group interest in the entity
HXBRBRELEHER
BRBRATRERRRT BEREAKEXKEARFR
Esps ZERER TRBAHRECEREKEN ESHZEREENE
Adam Touhig (Note 1) Bekaert Manufacturing and sale of Senior vice president of rubber
steel wire and/or cord products reinforcement Asia in Bekaert
group
Adam Touhig (ffi1)  Bekaert SERHERG R/ SMERER Bekaert R BN EG B 2
mREIEE
Liao Jun (Note 1) Bekaert Manufacturing and sale of Executive Vice President North
steel wire and/or cord products Asia in Bekaert group
B8 (Ht1) Bekaert HERBERGR/ FHEEEER BekaertE Blit 5% #1178l A
Yip Kin Man, Raymond  BeijingWest Industries Manufacturing and sale of Independent
(Note 2) automotive parts and components non-executive director

and the trading of automotive
parts and components

ERR(WE2) REET BERBE ETRH RIS BUFFNTES
ARBEE BT R

Notes: Bt -

1. Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by the Company 1. 1235 A X & fiBekaerti® —ZEE N E ML AL

and Bekaert in September 2006 and further agreement between Z R MBekaertEE R A AR Z T —HF
Bekaert and the Company in February 2015, Mr. Adam Touhig Z ARl 2 #E— F 1 - Adam Touhigst 4 %
was nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director and Bekaert kB ZIRAFNTEE WHR T -—F
was appointed on 15 January 2021 to succeed Mr. Liao Jun, who —ATHEBREZE UEEEREE(R=_Z—A
was appointed as a non-executive Director on 25 February 2015, F_AZTHABRZERINTES UR=F
and resigned on 15 January 2021. Z—F—ATRAHET)-

2. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond was appointed as an independent 2. ZERR&E4AVN-_ZE-—NFE—A-_+LtBEEZTA
non-executive director of BeijingWest Industries on 27 January RAEIEVIINTES WLELERAET
2014 and does not participate in any decision making on daily BB BB IE 2 LIRS o
operation of BeijingWest Industries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (continued)

In general, directors should owe their fiduciary duties
towards the company as a whole and as such the Board
believes that all Board members shall act in the best interest
of the Company and its Shareholders when they discharge
their duties and responsibilities as Directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following parties had an interest or long
position or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred therein:

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

Total number of

EERNHEFRB2ER(E)

—RME EFHRAERHAREHEER
T BHEFEHREMEEFERERTREE
ERE LB ERBARR R RERR 2 &EHM
HABRRITE -

REFFRPERFABRRNRADT 2
R I K R S AR B IR £

KoB-—F+-A=+—0 REBMM-
I AT RAR TR AR A B AR
538 T ) XV B2 R3S HAE T
BB 2 ST R SOAR - SR BRIRE
5 T2 HD 5 0 S5 3364 R AR IR K I DV B
TSR AR -

REBROSMEERD 2FR

Approximate% of

Shares/underlying the total number
Name of Shareholders Shares held of issued Shares  Capacity in which interests are held
FissRa/ RIEERTRG
RREE HERRAEHE BYgEZEAL REEZZESH
Fair Union 894,349,179 4710  Beneficial owner
E=BEEA
Shougang HK 906,719,179 47.76  Interests of controlled corporations et ()
HEES FREE L
Jingxi Holdings 454,545,454 23.94  Beneficial owner Mete )
REER g 2N
Shougang Fund 454,545,454 23.94 Interests of controlled corporations et @
BHES REEE 2wl
Shougang Group 1,361,264,633 71.70  Interests of controlled corporations "ot @
BHEE REEE 2 fem i
Bekaert Combustion 250,000,000 13.17  Beneficial owner
ERBAA
Bekaert 250,000,000 13.17  Interests of controlled corporations et @
REEE 2w
Li Ka Shing Foundation 100,000,000 5.27  Beneficial owner

FEHELE

i

FREAA

\
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes:

M

@

As Fair Union is Shougang HK’s wholly owned subsidiary, by virtue
of the SFO, Shougang HK is deemed to be interested in
894,349,179 Shares held by Fair Union and is deemed to be
interested in 12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace Management
Limited (“Lyre Terrace”), a subsidiary of Shougang Grand as
Shougang HK is the holding company of Shougang Grand.

The Shares held by Jingxi Holdings represent 454,545,454
underlying Shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise of
Conversion Rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds (i.e. the 4%
unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$150,000,000 due 2022 (extendable
to 2024) to be issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings pursuant
to the Subscription Agreement). On 11 January 2022, the Company
received a notice from Jingxi Holdings to extend the maturity date
of the Convertible Bonds by one year to 11 February 2023.
Besides, the Company received a conversion notice from Jingxi
Holdings in relation to the exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds to convert the Convertible
Bonds in the principal amount of HK$24,000,000 at the Conversion
Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion Share. Accordingly, on 7 February
2022, 72,727,272 Conversion Shares were allotted and issued to
Jingxi Holdings in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Convertible Bonds.

As mentioned under Note (2) above, by virtue of the SFO, Shougang
Fund is deemed to be interested in 454,545,454 underlying Shares
held by Jingxi Holdings, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shougang Fund.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY UNDER THE SFO (continued)

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

)

)

Shougang Group is the ultimate holding company of Shougang
HK and by virtue of the SFO, Shougang Group is deemed to be
interested in 894,349,179 Shares held by Fair Union as Fair Union
is Shougang HK’s wholly owned subsidiary and Shougang Group
is deemed to be interested in 12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre
Terrace, a subsidiary of Shougang Grand as Shougang Group is
the ultimate holding company of Shougang Grand. As mentioned
under Notes (2) and (3) above, and by virtue of the SFO, Shougang
Group is also deemed to be interested in the 454,545,454
underlying Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Fund, which is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Shougang Group.

By virtue of the SFO, Bekaert is deemed to be interested in
250,000,000 Shares held by Bekaert Combustion, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Bekaert.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the contract of significance between the Group,
Shougang Group, and its subsidiaries are set out under
the heading “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” hereunder
and/or in note 37(i)(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the contracts of significance between
the Group and Bekaert are set out in note 37(ii)(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to practicing and achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and the Board has
approved and adopted the SCHL Corporate Governance
Code on terms no less exacting than those set out in the
provisions of the Code. Further information on the
Company’s Corporate Governance Code is set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” on pages 32 to
70 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Set out below are particulars of repurchases by the
Company of its own ordinary shares made on the Stock
Exchange during the year:

TEER
KARBNBEITREE—(ASZENPEER
KE - ESSOHERKEMEERELEER
PRI BEGESCTREESFRIFTS H B R ESR o
RARZ BEERTAZ#E—SERETINA
FWMFRBERTOBEZ[=ERHE]IR-

BE HEIEE LHRESF

AL R D AR TR B
ﬁﬁﬂmﬂmT-

ERilEGES

Consideration

Aggregate
per Share consideration

Number of Highest Lowest
Shares =) =305 ENERE
Month of repurchase in 2021 repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
R-B-—-SzEBAH CEERAEE ks ks ke
February _A 372,000 0.290 0.247 104,304
Total B 372,000 104,304

All Shares repurchased in 2021 were cancelled up to the
date of this annual report.

The above repurchase was made for the purpose of
achieving an increase in the consolidated net asset value
and/or earnings per Share.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
listed securities of the Company during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions brought for committed or alleged wrongful acts
against the Directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year, but exclude any criminal, dishonest or fraudulent
acts or omission.

The Articles provide that every Director, secretary or other
officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against any liability, loss or
expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or
omitted to be done by him as Director, secretary, officer
or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in
connection with any application in which relief is granted
to him by the court from liability in respect of any such
act or omission or from liability to pay any amount in
respect of shares acquired by a nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the report of the directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
Section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
standard. These transactions mainly relate to contracts
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of business which were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis and the Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules. Further details are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group has carried
out connected transactions and complied with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules during the year, details are illustrated
below.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of the Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate and Conversion of
the Convertible Bonds

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a connected
person of the Company) whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to issue and Jingxi Holdings conditionally agreed
to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of up to HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds
carry the Conversion Rights to convert into the Conversion
Shares at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion
Shares (subject to adjustment), and the Convertible Bonds
will carry an interest rate of 4.0% per annum and will mature
on the third anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds. Assuming the Conversion Rights are exercised in
full at the Conversion Price, 454,545,454 new Shares, being
the Conversion Shares, may be allotted and issued to Jingxi
Holdings subject to the Conversion Restrictions, representing
approximately 23.64% of the total number of issued Shares
as at 31 December 2019 and approximately 19.12% of the
total number of issued Shares as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Conversion Shares, assuming that there
is no other change to the total number of Shares.

The net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement of
HK$149,000,000, are expected to be used as follows: (i)
as to approximately HK$37,300,000 for repaying interest-
bearing borrowings with higher interest rate of the Group;
(excluding borrowings provided by Shougang HK and its
related party(ies)), (ii) as to approximately HK$110,000,000
for funding the capital investment for the TESC Phase I
Project subject to the construction cost and time needed
to supplement the production need for both TESC and
JESC; and (iii) as to approximately HK$1,700,000 being the
remaining proceeds for supplementing general working
capital.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of the Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate and Conversion of
the Convertible Bonds (continued)

The reason for entering into the Subscription Agreement
as this is an appropriate means of raising additional capital
of the Company considering the recent market conditions
which represent an opportunity for the Company to obtain
the funding at reasonable cost for construction of the brass
wire production lines, enhance its working capital and
strengthen its capital base and financial position. Also, it
will not have an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding
of the existing Shareholders and the interest payable under
the Convertible Bonds is more stable and predictable than
bank borrowing. The Subscription by Jingxi Holdings
reflects the confidence and commitment of Shougang Fund
towards the long-term business development of the Group
which is beneficial to the long-term business development
of the Group.

Jingxi Holdings is a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, which is in turn a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shougang Group. Shougang Group is a controlling
Shareholder interested in an aggregate of 906,719,179
Shares, representing approximately 47.15% of the total
number of issued Shares before the date of the Subscription
Agreement. Therefore, Jingxi Holdings is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and
is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

On 11 February 2019, all conditions precedent under the
Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion of the Subscription Agreement took place and
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 were issued to Jingxi Holdings.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Issue of the Convertible
Bonds under Specific Mandate and Conversion of
the Convertible Bonds (continued)

Details of the Subscription Agreement were also disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2018 and 11 February 2019, and in the circular of the
Company dated 11 January 2019. The Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the independent
Shareholders on 1 February 2019.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had fully
utilised the aforesaid proceeds according to the proposed
usage as set out in the circular of the Company dated 11
January 2019.

On 11 January 2022, the Company received a notice from
Jingxi Holdings to extend the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds by one year to 11 February 2023.

Besides, the Company received a conversion notice from
Jingxi Holdings in relation to the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$24,000,000
at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion Share
(the “Conversion”). Accordingly, on 7 February 2022,
72,727,272 Conversion Shares were allotted and issued to
Jingxi Holdings in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Convertible Bonds. Details of the Conversion were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7
February 2022.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement
On 31 May 2021, TESC and South China Leasing entered
into the Finance Lease Agreement, pursuant to which TESC,
being the owner of the Machineries and Equipment, agreed
to sell the Machineries and Equipment to South China
Leasing at the Purchase Consideration of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,000,000) and South
China Leasing agreed to lease back the Machineries and
Equipment to TESC for the lease consideration of
approximately RMB21,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,160,000), comprising the rental principal of
RMB20,000,000, the lease interest of approximately
RMB1,650,000 and the lease handling fee of RMB150,000,
for a lease term of eighteen (18) months. On the same
date, the Company, as the holding company of TESC,
entered into the guarantee agreement in favour of South
China Leasing as security for the payment obligations of
TESC under the Finance Lease Agreement. At the end of
the lease term or repayment of the rental principal of
RMB20,000,000 and other payables, TESC shall have the
right to purchase the Machineries and Equipment at a
nominal purchase price of RMB2,000. The purpose for
entering into the Finance Lease Agreement would (i) enhance
the working capital position of TESC; (ii) allow TESC as
well as the Group to optimise its asset and debt structure
through increasing the percentage of medium-term financing,
which will also improve the liquidity position of the Group;
and (iii) diversify the financing source of the Group. It is
expected that the finance lease arrangement has no material
impact on the actual operations of the Group. There will
not be any gain or loss accrued to the Group in its
consolidated financial statements pursuant to the sale of
the Machineries and Equipment under the Finance Lease
Agreement, as it will be accounted for as a collateralised
borrowing in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
without recognition of any sale of Machineries and
Equipment in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards. The Purchase Consideration received
by TESC is expected to be used to repay the borrowed
money or to acquire/develop the assets, so as to enhance
manufacturing capacity and efficiency of TESC.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement
(continued)

On the date for entering into the Finance Lease Agreement,
the Company was held as to approximately 47.76% by
Shougang HK and its controlled corporations. Pursuant to
the Listing Rules, Shougang HK is regarded as a substantial
Shareholder. South China Leasing is an indirect 75% owned
subsidiary of Shougang Grand, which is in turn held as to
approximately 50.84% by Shougang HK. South China
Leasing is also held as to 25% by the indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of Shougang HK. As such, South China Leasing
is an associate of Shougang HK and is also a connected
person (at the issuer level) of the Company. The transaction
contemplated under the Finance Lease Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2)
of the Listing Rules, as all applicable percentage ratios
(other than the profits ratio) in respect of the Finance Lease
Agreement and the transaction contemplated therein exceed
0.1% but are less than 5%, such transaction is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice)
and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Finance Lease Agreement were also disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2021.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence as
well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee, having regard to individual performance, the
Company’s performance and profitability, remuneration
benchmark in the industry and prevailing market condition.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme as incentive/reward to Directors and eligible
participants/qualifying grantees, details of the scheme are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the revenue from sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
50.2% (2020: 46.0%) of total revenue of the Group and
the revenue from sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 13.7% (2020: 13.0%)
of total revenue of the Group.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 52.5% (2020: 46.6%) of total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier, included therein amounted to approximately 24.6%
(2020: 16.0%) of total purchases of the Group for the year.

Save for disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware,
neither the Directors, their associates, nor those Shareholders
(who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Further details related to relationship with customers and
suppliers, please refer to sections “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report and
in the 2021 ESG Report.

AUDITORS

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Members of
Shougang Century Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Century
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 114 to 250, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Impairment assessments of property,
equipment and land use rights

plant and

o Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

(1) Impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment and land use rights

(1) 9%¥ BERREEIHEHERENG
Refer to Note 4(b), Note 17 and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements
F2HRe M EmENT40) - M7 RHEE20
As at 31 December 2021, the Group owned certain
property, plant and equipment and land use rights
amounting to HK$1,287,657,000, and HK$146,264,000,
respectively, which relate to the steel cord segment.
RZE_—F+-_A=+—H  EB5EHEYVE KF
Ko 3% 8 4 1th 55 FR#E 55 Il /3 78 %61,287,657,0007T K B ¥
146,264,0007T * HHEFLR D HHR o

Taking into considerations the results of the steel cord
segment for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
well as a comparison between the Group’s market
capitalisation and its net assets value, management
identified impairment indicators existed for the relevant
property, plant and equipment and land use rights.
$E¢F%z§_$:—¢+ R=+—BILFEMERD EH

BERRALLE SESEEHEMEFEEE - aﬁ
BE TR  BWELREBRELMERENRBERS

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights included the

following:
BB EREREENEYE BB NMREELHER
REZ BT B

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.
BATRTERENEYE  BERRBELMER
REORE R A DI I AT AR - WiEBE BT
EMONEEMEMANERREER (PInEME - T8
H - BE REERRERIMFFNGRE) NIRRT
fit B KRR ER R B WA R
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPAMNESNMEERRENSE

Management grouped the assets of the Group at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows that are largely independent of the cash
flows from other assets or groups of assets (Cash-
Generating Units) and performed impairment
assessments in respect of the two Cash-Generating
Units of the steel cord segment identified using the
value-in-use method. This involved significant
judgement in determining the assumptions used in
the calculations. The key assumptions included:
ERER BEEENEENRREKE HAEBFEMNRE
MA MELEEARNBILNEMEESNEEENIRER
ANBReELEN) - ERERNMNEREREEELHME
@“%mmﬂﬁﬁéiﬁuﬁmTﬂﬁmﬁtﬁ¢ ST
B EANRRENEAHEG R FERBREE:

° rate of annual increment for the steel cord price;

MERERNFERE

° rate of annual increment for the sales volume;
and
HESEMFERE R

° discount rates

BE T

Based on management’s assessment, the recoverable
amounts of relevant property, plant and equipment
and land use rights exceeded their carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2021.

REEEENFGE R —F+_-_A=1+—HLY
X BERERGRIMEREZATERSHRLBAET R
g °

We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights performed by
management, including the selection of valuation
method, determination of recoverable amounts
and key assumptions made in the future cash flow
forecasts.

HAFEAARA T EREEYE MEMRFHELT M
& AR RVE R B S HIHE e - BIEFTE AR
B AIE S FEATEE A RARRIR SR E TR A
BB IRER -

We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-
use calculations, and the process by which they
were prepared. We considered that the cash flow
forecasts prepared by management were subject
to oversight and review by the directors of the
Company.
BAFETEREEEABEFEREANARERS
MEFRRNBEK - A SEEELTRREBE - TR
REBERENESRETRARX BERAEFNEE
MEE -

We involved our internal valuation expert in
assessing the appropriateness and the consistency,
of the methodologies used and key assumptions
and estimates applied.
BFERFIN AT ERFTEB AN E
— B LA K P E A B0 R SR (R SR AN T o
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balances and the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the Cash-Generating Units of the steel cord
segment is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, as well as significant judgements involved
in the selection of assumptions used.

B IZBECARERNEREUANARCELSE
IR B S EHTS R B AL (RIE S REERR
RrRE) -

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For steel
cord price, we compared the long-term steel cord
price used in the forecasts against the market
price, and benchmarked the rate of annual
increment to industry forecasts and market trends.
For sales volume, we assessed the reasonableness
and feasibility of annual sales plan and productivity.
For the discount rates, we benchmarked the rates
used in the forecasts against our research of the
discount rates used by comparable companies in
the industry. We considered the potential impact
of reasonably possible downside changes in these
key assumptions. We also considered whether the
judgements in selecting these key assumptions
would give rise to indicators of possible
management bias.

BAFETEREERATHERRERNSIEL %
MR ER RIS FERPERNRAMERER
ETHIS B HETT 7 LhB - WA I8 R R BT FRBIAN
MSBAEREE - HNHEE  RAFNETFEH
BBl MAEERN B MRMAI T - HREFR X &
P CATE R i 38 PR B9 BE 3R R R B E ORI R PI S LL 1T 3R R
AL AR T A A RO BA IR X « MR S LR R R
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

We compared the current year actual results with
the amounts included in the prior year cash flow
forecasts to consider the quality of management’s
forecasting, and where any deviations were noted,
we corroborated management’s explanations with
our knowledge of the market and the Group’s
performance in the current year. We also checked
that these relevant factors had been taken into
account in this year’s forecasts and that
management had considered the current year
actual results in the preparation of this year’s
forecasts.

BB AFREERERE F—FEREREFATE
ENERETTUHR UZEEBENRAIEE &K
PR EEERE RN FEERFARE FFERALER
RENRE BEEEEHRMETSOERER &
SERANFENRBABAEE - RPIERE T 2FH
BHAPEEEZRE T ELABAR -RMATRE T &R
EREBZR TAFENERERAUNEBRFENTE
A o

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s significant judgements and
assumptions applied in the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment and land use
rights were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.

BREBEFRATHRERF RFRREEBEDE BHE X
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPAMNESNMEERRENSE

(2) Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(2) FEWFIRREFTG

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii), Note 4(c) and Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements

B2 BERA SRS 5231 (b) (i) ~ P FE4(c) R FizE23

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$818,370,000 and provision for
impairment losses on trade receivables of
HK$22,402,000. Provision is made for
expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RZEBEZ—F+_A=+—0 E5EEBENEKER
# %8 % 78 818,370,000 T - & W AR FROR (B £ 1B B
22,402,000t EEEREKERNZHRBHEEER
TR -

lifetime

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit losses for trade
receivables included the following:
BPEEREEEN GREERAREEEE &
BB

We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over credit procedures performed by
management, including the periodic review of
aged receivables and the assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables. We
also assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity and subjectivity.
BPER SAENRIBEEBATHERE BRI
2, - B3R H T HA B0 B0 7R B e WK TR I BT Ak B WORROR
EHREEFERERNIER - RIFIEBEZ B THE
EMOIEEMEMAERREZ(PINEREM T
MR E R EEAHERRANRNERE o

We obtained management’s assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables and
tested the accuracy of the aging profile of trade
receivables by checking to the underlying invoices
on a sample basis.

HMERE T EREBYHERRFAREEEENTME
Wil B R RIE T e YR IR AR e RC 8k 1Y 1
M o
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and aging
profile. Management considered that full provision
would be made for balances with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, while the expected credit loss rates of the
remaining balances are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced over the past 3 years and
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information including macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EREERABNARRAEERR - RTEHERBNGES
1BR - EREBEERE B E RN R EC 5 S e U AR R
BITTHE-BEEERA BAR DN BERNBRERT
BRYGEHNMREDRIIRERS  MERRENTAD
ERBRAXARBEBE="FNELERIBRKET - LE
THABRARRE R MAELEERBRFERPENBYER
RN EBSBERE

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses for
the trade receivables subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty.

B IZERTEN YRR ERNEEE U NEREE
HARE M T HEE LN RYSRRIAREEBRERR Y
Rt st AN i -

For trade receivables with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, we challenged and assessed the
appropriateness of management’s assessment
based on supporting documents such as
correspondence with the customers, customers’
responses to collection activities and relevant
public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of these customers.

HRE M BRENE 5 RS T ROR g T O fE
B REIER R RMRIBREET PO EREKE T HE
Wk AW S ) R BB A I B2 B B IS AR R AR R O 8 2K 380
REREREXXM - hBAFE T ERENHNE

it

For the remaining trade receivables, we challenged
and assessed the appropriateness of management’s
assessment including the credit risk characteristics
based on the customers’ historical settlement
pattern over the past 3 years and performed
market research regarding the relevant current and
forward-looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

R T B YRR RPIDEBAIGT T BB BT (4
MEEN BREERTFBE=FEMNEANEER
REEC WETTRERAMELEERNT SRR
BERTYETPENEBYIER NN EBLBERE -

We also tested the calculation of the provision for
impairment losses.

AR TR E AT E

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the judgement and estimates adopted by
management in determining the expected credit
losses of the trade receivables were supportable by
the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
RIBFTATTEVAZ - T APIRR /R B 32 [E B FE WK IR TR R
EEBENMEAMAB SR MESNEBRNAITHIIR
FF B < HF
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED E{ERHEELEHRE AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB ERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

BRBMRET RSV BRERBENER

BZAMBER RHSGEMBHREEEREE T
TFREBNMEFREERMEHME N RR M
REaEARE YHASKEHAMEENZH
B R & o FAPIEIRIB B BC R BRG] ) F 40515
[ ETERER)RERMNER KRitz
SNARIRE R EEAM B #) - AT ERAREH
NARREMEMALRE ESAEEREE-A
BREESKENRE BIEREL(E
BEEADVETOHERT EX - BAHERR
TR AR R IR o $ARRIR AL A] DAl FRFF Sk 8R
ol MREERAE MIEIBKE ALK A
R EGAMBREEAE KBRS BERE
i F h B9 A DR TE - HI 75 B8 O 5 BR PR A 150457
EEK -

ERBCEABTERNDETRTHBET &
MERTERHE RETEXEREE R
1FI7R

o RBIMFFAEBENRFFRBERMEBES
BB REFEERBERRANER - Rat
ETEAEANEE G LR K&
B e Ml 2 M BETERRE  ERRMER
RYERE - HNIEFRIBES MR AR - B3
ERER  ERERA - ORE R A EBE
2L AREERRARFMERNEXN
$H AR PRI RO ELRR R R BE B IR I SH AR T
BB AR

o THREFESHEMAANIMES  URHEE
MEZT BEENLIEY BEEEARL
EHHBERERERER -

££%R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
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among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB ERE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

I"'I [ — A4
ITVA MY /\m%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F ZETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5E BET T BT IT
Continuing operations HEREEK
Revenue EER 5 2,694,810 2,041,553
Cost of sales SHE KA 9 (2,280,263) (1,647,231)
Gross profit EH 414,547 394,322
Other income E U A 7 4,062 9,509
Other losses, net HMEE  F88 8 (22,622) (59,377)
Selling and distribution expenses $H& M7 $HE FH 9 (131,628) (84,149)
Administrative expenses TRER 9 (57,423) (55,956)
Research and development expenses fiff2 & A 9 (103,676) (71,404)
Foreign exchange losses, net HNESTE 5518 - VR EE (10,196) (8,077)
Changes in fair values of REMELNTEZEE
investment properties 16 2,650 (2,062)
Reversal of impairment losses T R 2 R ER LB D
on land use rights 20 - 46,867
Net reversal of impairment losses/ & &EEE 2 B KE D
(net impairment losses) on TR CREIBKRFEE)
financial assets 23(c) 7,396 (6,274)
Finance costs, net BISAAR - FER 11 (13,401) (17,488)
Profit before income tax & P15 3% Al i A 89,709 145,911
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisfi(ZH) #Ee 12 (8,830) 3,054
Profit from continuing operations R B#FE & & %75 2w 7 80,879 148,965
Discontinued operation BRIEEEEK
Loss from discontinued operation RE B R IFAELES 2 EE 32 - (711)
Profit for the year NG A 80,879 148,254

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 51258 £2508 MMi st Ji4R A& B %5 R4 &
EF“

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEmK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—Eg- = —E-F
Notes HK cents HK cents
k=3 Al Al
Earnings per share for profit from ZANAGI#HAE ARIGREFE
continuing operations attributable 4% %7 2 & | 2 G AR & H)
to the owners of the Company
- Basic —ER 15 4.26 7.80
- Diluted —#58 15 4.1 6.80
Earnings per share for profit for AR GRIHE ARGAFE
the year attributable to the i A 2 B AR &R
owners of the Company
- Basic —ER 15 4.26 7.76
- Diluted —#58 15 4.1 6.77

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 51258 £250E MMisE 4R A B REME
these consolidated financial statements. 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—EBC-fF —E_THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5E BET T BT T
Profit for the year AR A 80,879 148,254
Other comprehensive income/ REFELEXKHMEE
(loss) arising from continuing Wi, (EE)
operations
Items that will not be reclassified HE S TEEH S EEEBm
to profit or loss HH
Exchange differences arising MEZIEEMESD
on translation into EHER
presentation currency 41,668 104,698
Revaluation of leasehold HETHREFEMR
land and buildings 17 (8,229) (2,009)
Recognition of deferred income  ME LT RIEFEFHZEL
tax asset on revaluation of FRST B EMER
leasehold land and buildings 31 1,208 287
34,647 102,976
Other comprehensive income RECRIEREXEK2HMS
arising from discontinued [EEs
operation
Item that will not be reclassified HAEHTEEHTTEEER
to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences arising BMEZIEEMESED
on translation into PE i =%
presentation currency 32 433 2,542
Total comprehensive income AEE2EKEBEE (IR
for the year, net of tax 115,959 253,772
Total comprehensive income AEEEHMPEBRERE :
for the year arises from:
- Continuing operations —RBREBEEEY 115,526 251,941
- Discontinued operation —BERIEREETRS 32 433 1,831
115,959 253,772

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 51258 £250E MM = 4R A M B RENE
these consolidated financial statements. R E S
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AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 W-_Z-—®+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—Eg- = —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BT T BT T
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties EYE 16 57,446 53,874
Property, plant and equipment M B R&E 17 1,306,197 1,178,174
Right-of-use assets BEFRE 18 2,914 384
Land use rights 3 5B A 20 146,264 146,047
Intangible assets BREE 21 - -
Prepayments and deposits ENR kRS 24 38,592 33,951
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSTRIBEE 31 467 =
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 1,551,880 1,412,430
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 463,878 246,638
Trade receivables FE U BR 3R 23 795,968 638,916
Bills receivable e R 23 812,204 871,869
Prepayments, deposits and AR e R E A FE UK
other receivables 24 77,803 24,484
Current income tax recoverable Al e g BRFT 15 FR 2,637 =
Pledged bank deposits DIRFRITIER 26(a) 195,867 84,308
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERRE 26(b) 73,487 93,262
Total current assets REBEEHTE 2,421,844 1,959,477
Total assets EEAR 3,973,724 3,371,907
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Other payables H th & AT RK 278 259
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 1,738 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSHIBAE 31 23,448 20,339
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERTE 25,464 20,598
The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 1258 2250 B WM sE hér & MM E M E

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 W—-_Z-—F®+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—8
2021 2020
=B -F —ZE-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 3E BT T BT T
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and bills payables FEER R N g 27 1,119,498 761,321
Other payables and accruals B R EIERER 27 405,273 278,577
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAaE 1,631 4,494
Loan from a related company RE—FHEEQRZER 28 24,570 -
Bank borrowings SRITER 29 479,838 492,460
Lease liabilities HE&E 18 1,226 404

Financial liability at fair EATEFAEGCERBE
value through profit or loss 30 183,278 168,482

Total current liabilities REBAEETE 2,215,314 1,705,738
Total liabilities EEHE 2,240,778 1,726,336
Equity R

Share capital [N 33 1,191,798 1,191,798
Reserves T 541,148 453,773
Total equity EREE 1,732,946 1,645,571
Total equity and liabilities EREEEAE 3,973,724 3,371,907

The financial statements on pages 114 to 250 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were
signed on its behalf:

HIINFI4EE20E M BREE R =T
TCFE-A-tHEEEEERE YHNUT
EERA/ERE:

Su Fanrong
B LR
Director

EF

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—_Z - —#F+_A=+—HIFE
Property PRC
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation reserve Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total
Rx  BARE NEERRE | ENRE TEREEE  ZHER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
E8Tn  AMTn  AMTr  RMTr  BMTR BMTR B¥TR
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(K&t ()) (M3 (i)
For the year ended HE-8--%
31 December 2021 +-A=t-ALEE
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%-f-H 1,191,798 23,990 147,738 314,055 82,047 (114,057) 1,645,511
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year REERA - - - - - 80,879 80,879
Other comprehensive EM2E (5R)/ ki
(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising on ~ H#E2FEEREANELZ
translation into ke
presentation currency - - - 42,101 - - 42,101
Revaluation of leasehold land and A&+ RIETEN
buildings (Note 17) (WzE17) - - (8,229) - - - (8,229)
Recognition of deferred income tax BE+HFETER 2 BEFE
asset on revaluation of leasehold  F&ERA(7:31)
land and buildings (Note 31) - - 1,208 - - - 1,208
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  AEE 2 (EE)/
for the year gatita - - (7,021) 42,101 - 80,879 115,959
Transaction with owners in their EIEZEEANEGHET
capacity as owners: H%5
Share repurchase B! - - - - - (104) (104)
Dividend paid Bk - - - - - (28,480) (28,480)
Transfer to PRC reserve funds EETOERELS
(Note (i) (R (i) - - - - 8,403 (6,403) -
- - - - 8,403 (36,987) (28,584)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+-A=1-H 1,191,798 23,990 140,117 356,156 90,450 (70,165) 1,732,946
The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of B FETIARE S M E

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
eSS ER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Property PRC
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation reserve  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total

RA ERERE NREREE  EiEE TERREE  ZHER EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gTn M Tn  BMTn BETn BETn BETn B¥To

(Note (i) (Note (i)
(RizE()) (B i)

For the year ended HE-E-BE

31 December 2020 +-A=t-ALEE
At 1 January 2020 R-5-2%-A-H 1,191,798 23,990 149,460 206,815 76,556 (233,547) 1,415,072
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year REERA - - - - - 148,254 148,254
Other comprehensive EM2E(FR)/ ki

(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising on ~ HBE2FEEREANELZ

translation into ke

presentation currency - - - 107,240 - - 107,240
Revaluation of leasehold land and A&+ RIETEN

buildings (Note 17) (WzE17) - - (2,009) - - - (2,009
Recognition of deferred income tax BE+REFEEY

asset on revaluation of leasehold  EJEFTSR AEREA(M:E31)

land and buildings (Note 31) - - 287 - - - 287
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  AEE 2 (EE)/ WELE

for the year - - (1,722) 107,240 - 148,254 253,772
Transaction with owners in their EIEZEEANESHET

capacity as owners: H%5
Share repurchase RHER - - - - - (4,209) (4,209)
Dividend paid ke - - - - - (19,064) (19,064)
Transfer to PRC reserve funds EREmEGEELS (i)

(Note (ii) - - - - 5,491 (5,491) -

- - - - 5,491 (28,764) (23,273)

At 31 December 2020 RZEZRETZA=1-H 1,191,798 23,990 147,738 314,055 82,047 (114,057) 1,645,571

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 51258 2508 WX h4r & I M E &
these consolidated financial statements. HRED o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
eSS ER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Notes:

The capital reserve represents the benefit of acquiring a
shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder upon the acquisition
of a subsidiary in previous years.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations, these subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation,
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to a statutory reserve fund (including the general
reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund, where appropriate).
Transfer to this statutory reserve fund is subject to the approval
of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when
the balance of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital
of the respective company. Statutory reserve fund can only be
used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

BE_ZT-—F+-A=+—HLFE

MieE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
IIV_\é\Iﬁlﬁ)\ﬁ%%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BT T BT T
Cash flows from RELETBH2RERE
operating activities
Cash generated from operations SRE&ZEBMEL RS 35(a) 286,795 498,230
PRC corporate income tax paid A ZHEPEFREH (11,194) (2,696)
Net cash generated from operating R A BT L ETE 2 &L BB
activities from EEZHEFHE
continuing operations 275,601 495,534
Net cash used in operating REDRIEEEEB KL TEE
activities from mEA IR FEE
discontinued operation 32 (15) (579)
Net cash generated from RELE R MEE ZREFHE
operating activities 275,586 494,955
Cash flows from RERETEHZ2RERE
investing activities
Placement of pledged FBEHERRITER
bank deposits (275,688) (79,710)
Withdrawal of pledged IR R RITIFHK
bank deposits 168,238 54,260
Purchase of property, plant BEME BEMK
and equipment (86,798) (97,595)
Prepayments for the acquisition of BB  ME&REZBRK
property, plant and equipment (56,251) (78,193)
Proceeds from disposals of HEME  BEREESRIE
property, plant and equipment 35(a) 5,165 5,787
Interest received BT 8 1,426 1,114

F126H E=250 B M RS M BHRENHE

The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of |
5 -

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—BZ-F —_T_FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BET T BT T
Net cash used in investing REFEREEB 2REFD
activities from MER 2B & TR
continuing operations (243,908) (194,337)
Net cash generated from investing RE B &I E B 2K EE
activities from BmELZREFRE
discontinued operation 32 - -
Net cash used in REEZHEBA 2 HSFE
investing activities (243,908) (194,337)
Cash flows from REBMETBHZ2ESRE
financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings  REIR{TERZ 1S 5KE 560,686 756,229
Repayments of bank borrowings 1;5§$ETTE/TA (582,278) (906,767)
Repayment of loan from EE—MEEQRZER
a related company - (50,000)
Loan advanced from REE—HBBAEARIZER
a related company 24,036 -
Interest paid EfFIE (18,933) (29,445)
Dividend paid EARR A (28,480) (19,064)
Share repurchase 1% {7 & B I8 (104) (4,209)
Payments for principal elements SfHEEGEZALIHD
of lease liabilities (1,187) (1,171)
Settlement of convertible bonds B A # % EZ (6,000) (6,000)
Loan transaction costs paid BENERRZEA (1,570) -
The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 1258 22508 WM sE 0 4R & BT I &S B
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these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2021 2020
—BZ-F —_T_FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BET T BT T
Net cash used in financing REFEREEB 2 REFD
activities from MER 2B & TR
continuing operations (53,830) (260,427)
Net cash used in financing REERIEREEB Z2ME S
activities from FmetAzReF5E
discontinued operation 32 - (35)
Net cash used in BEEHBACREIFRE
financing activities (53,830) (260,462)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekFeEFEEEZ
and cash equivalents O A>),/ 38 005 58
(22,152) 40,156
Cash and cash equivalents at REMNzReRREEEEIER
beginning of the year 93,262 47,811
Exchange gain on cash and RekREEEER 2
cash equivalents PE 5, W =5 2,377 5,295
Cash and cash equivalents at end RFLXR 2B MRS EEHER
of the year 26(b) 73,487 93,262
The notes on pages 125 to 250 are an integral part of 1258 2508 Wi iEhéra B mE M E
these consolidated financial statements. HED o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S MY o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shougang Century Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) is an investment holding company and
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing of steel cords.

On 6 December 2021, the Company changed its English
name from Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited
to Shougang Century Holdings Limited.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun
Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”) (Cap. 622). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured
at fair values.
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¥ 12181215F -
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BRRBHMAIN NRAMBREABET
(TS TITE5-
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RRERZAAFEERRA
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RARZEEUBRETIRESTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

2.1.1New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new
and amended standards and interpretations
for the first time for the annual reporting
period commencing from 1 January 2021:

Amendments to Interest Rate
HKAS 39, Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 4, (Phase 2)
HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future
periods.

2.1.2Impact of new and amended standards
issued but not yet applied by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2021
reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRESHTEHRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 HFAEEE(E)
2.1.2Impact of new and amended standards 2.1.2 ZEFWAREHLUTEHEME
issued but not yet applied by the Group ZHET RAENEFTERI R 2 FE
(continued) ZHE ()
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT5 B #E
ZERBN
SHEER
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - 1 January 2022
Proceeds before Intended Use
BERGTEAFE165RHER] M - BB KR — 1EHE RAERTH —T__
PR 518 —H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling 1 January 2022
a Contract
B G ERIEITHRAVERT BRAK - EBITaBKAR T
—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the 1 January 2022
Conceptual Framework
EEMBRELRFEIRHER]  SIBHSER —E-—fF
—H—AR

Annual Improvements Projects Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, 1 January 2022
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41

FENEER BN ELRFER  BBMBRELE —F_—
AI£95% - HEMBRE LR E165% —HRA—H
BB GTHERFE41REER]
Amendments to Accounting Merger Accounting for Common 1 January 2022
Guideline 5 Control Combinations
G185 E5FRAVIERT HRZEFIEHTHEHER kSt
—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 January 2023
or Non-current
BB G EAE1FRNERT B ERBEB DR —E-=F
—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE(S)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 WBEEE(E)
2.1.2Impact of new and amended standards 2.1.2 XEFWKER LT Bt
issued but not yet applied by the Group pd - /E ﬁ“‘/// FTERIR2FE
(continued) 28 (4
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT5 B
ZEFEBN
BRHEEX
HKFRS 17 and amendments to Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
HKFRS 17
FBMBRELERFE17H R RRE L —_E=F
AR B RELERFEATRAER] —A—A
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statement 1 January 2023
(2020) — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
ERREESR (ZZE_ZTF) MBHREZZ2 - ERAHBEREK —_ET=F
BIBRNTEHERZ DI —A—A
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BRI ERFEIRLEBME  STEEREE —EB=F
HELEABBRER2HNER] —A—H
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BB ERIFE8HEHER] Gt EE —EB=F
—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction
FB G ERE125NIERT BE-RHELANEBEEKRAGEHEBNERLT —To=F
IR —H—~H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or determined
Joint Venture
FBMBGRELERIFE105E K KREFEHRHBENAHNEERALZ fFE
BB GTHERFE 285 MNER BELEITE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EABHEEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 WBEEE(E)
2.1.2Impact of new and amended standards 2.1.2 XEFWKER LT Bt

issued but not yet applied by the Group
(continued)

Management is in the process of assessing
potential impact of the above new standards
and amendments that are relevant to the
Group upon initial application. It is not yet
in a position to state whether these
standards, interpretations, and amendments
will have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Principles of consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for business combinations
by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

ZHET RAEMEETERI R 218
2R (E)
EEEBEAEFENERERL
AR B B R AT R &
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FE LR REREFTRE
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2.2 FmEEREA
(a) KIEBAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EREHBEBE(E)

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate an
investment because of a loss of control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE(S)
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Business combination

2.3 ¥KEH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

o equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement,
and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

FBEXRBAHENKRBETEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Business combination (continued)

EREHBEBE(E)

2.3 EHEHUE)

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in consolidated statement
of profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present value as at the
date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration
is classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement
are recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM?”), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Company’s managing director
that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.6 IMEBRE(E)
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZEKiEEE

EREHBEBE(E)

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at the
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and financial liability at
fair value through profit or loss are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, within “finance costs, net”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXRESHEHRBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.6 IEBRE(E)
(c) Group companies (c) EEFALA
The results and financial position of foreign Theb BB 2 5§ MR
operations (none of which has the currency BN ER(2IIEIES R
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a 43T ) B S ) B ZE 4R N B IS AR
functional currency different from the MU THFRBREA2HE
presentation currency are translated into the e

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement () EFHBRIREERME
of financial position presented are FNEBENBE HRHE
translated at the closing rate at the date ARy e R E

of that end of the reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each statement (i) BEFREZEUER
of profit or loss and statement of ZWARGTH R E
comprehensive income are translated at RE M EIIE
average exchange rates (unless this is not ZERSBHEREX
a reasonable approximation of the BEERBRMRZAENY
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on BN e BT I A
the transaction dates, in which case income EEYNZ 5 HERE
and expenses are translated at the rate on &

the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation iy FISLZzETAEY =5
differences are recognised in other e HMm RSP
comprehensive income. o

On consolidation, exchange differences arising RIRRLZEERE R BEFI

from the translation of any net investment in TR (12 B B EE A LB E

foreign entities, and of borrowings, are 2 N ERE N E M2 T

recognised in other comprehensive income. nER - EHEBINEBXE

When a foreign operation is sold or any BREKZINEZBED 2 EM

borrowings forming part of the net investment B3 HEE N =B8N EgEE18

are repaid, the associated exchange differences HEREFHREALE 2SS
are reclassified to the consolidated statement A -

of profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss

on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising BN L EA VHEL A

on the acquisition of a foreign operation are EEFARBRE AL GINEEE

treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign ERaE mkhERKRE -

operation and translated at the closing rate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EREHBEBE(E)

Leasehold land and buildings are recognised at
fair value based on periodic valuation by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation.
All other property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that
the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the increase is first recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Decreases
that reverse previous increases of the same asset
are first recognised in other comprehensive
income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXRESHEHRBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.7 ME - -BERREE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts net of their
residual values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land 2%-4%, or over the term
and buildings of the leases, whichever
is shorter
Leasehold 20%, or over the term of
improvements the leases, whichever is
shorter
Plant and machinery 7%-20%
Furniture fixture 10%-33%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets
are sold, it is the Group’s policy to transfer any
amounts included in property revaluation reserve
in respect of those assets to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction-in-progress represents buildings and
plant and machinery under construction and
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Costs comprises direct
construction costs, the cost of plant and
machinery and applicable borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to other property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired,
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHEEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Goodwill (continued) 29 HE(E)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Discontinued operation

EREHBEBE(E)

2I1MERIEREER

A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The result of discontinued
operation is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.12Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value, and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—=Z——

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
all of its debt instruments at amortised cost.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.12Investments and other financial assets

EREHBEBE(E)

212REMHEMERMEE(F)

(continued)

(d) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b)(ii) for further
details.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHEEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Inventories 214K

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items
of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.15 Trade receivables, bills receivable and

other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business.

If collection of trade receivables, bills receivable
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables, bills receivable and other
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables, bills receivable and other
receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EREHBEBE(E)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity instruments, for example as
the result of a share buy-back or a share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Trade payables, bills payables and other payables
represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Trade and bills and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EXRETHBEBE(E)

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as “finance costs, net”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRESHTEHRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The Group has convertible bonds which are
classified entirely as liabilities because they were
issued in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company. As the instrument
contains an embedded derivative, it has been
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition and as such the embedded
conversion feature is not separated. All transaction
costs related to financial instruments designated
as at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the convertible
bonds are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable or recoverable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

EXRETHBEBE(E)
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(a) Current income tax (a) ERFr5#

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
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measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides
a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRESHTEHRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax 222 B RIEEFIBH (&)
(continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EZFEH

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using BLEMEHRIIMEELEEGE Y
the liability method, on temporary differences MENEEHEAENEZESH
arising between the tax bases of assets and BHREPIREEME 2T
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Z5 NBBEEREEE A
consolidated financial statements. However, m WEERIEGENELER
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if HEZYILEDR TSR
they arise from the initial recognition of EEMRIBEEE (HELERSH
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not DEEBRVITHERRZ (¥
accounted for if it arises from initial BEHBRINEESAEBEMS
recognition of an asset or liability in a ZHEE BERIZRHWES
transaction other than a business combination Bl ERT QM EE -
that at the time of the transaction affects B R & T LARER - IBIEFTIE
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss MITAREEREFTHARESR
and does not give rise to equal taxable and STRZHER(EEANEE I
deductible temporary differences. Deferred TEHRERBRELTAEHE
income tax is determined using tax rates EREBERLEMEHREBERE
(and laws) that have been enacted or ==

substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability

is settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation MAFEERGFESREDES
to investment property that is measured at EEFIEAE KEMEZE
fair value is determined assuming the HEJVREASHBIEE LU
property will be recovered entirely through EIE

sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised IEIEFRIE B EE E AR KIR AT B
only if it is probable that future taxable BERBMABEBEEEZS
amounts will be available to utilise those TR ERENER e TR
temporary differences and losses. R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBASHEHRBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

222 EHRIEAE RSB (E)

(b) EEFEH(E)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are
not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits

(a

(b)

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set
up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the
Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, in accordance with the
rules of the Pension Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Post-employment obligations (continued)

(c)

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately 6%
to 21% of the wages for the year of those
employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are
charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Share-based payments

EREHBEBE(E)

224 IR RERE A

The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for share options of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of options is recognised as an expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARHHBEBME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Provisions 2.251E

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
good or service may be transferred over time or
at a point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRESHTEHRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

Control of the good or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or service.

The Group manufactures and sells steel cords.
Revenue is recognised when the control of the
products are transferred to the customers at a
point in time, when products are delivered to the
customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers, and either the
customers have accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group
has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. A receivable is
recognised when the goods are delivered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time
is required before the payment is due.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED E{ERHEELEHRE AR

7 an SRS IRl — RS R A
B/ AAKERELBRED

s REERFPREWEIBFERAZT
B

e RIBIIBRHEFFIEHIZIEE
(BEXRKBEEANR): X

s TERHAKEAAFAEN
RgzBE BASEAAH
THEARFTETE TR ZELD
BB WHRFRIA

A0 R 5 W 3k AR H5 O 4R I 7E — BB
MAERL WAEERBAANBBS
EREBOIRBHNETHERRE
RoBR WAEEFESHEY
ok R 795 A 128 1) 9 B D R 45 TR RS

AEBEE N HENER - EEm
MEREBEER EnXE
EF BEFHHEEREBMER
BExzmREE YAAKERE
AETHEEMEYEEFHER
MEZIEERAAEREA -EE
on B 8 =15 T BB - AR AR K
MEREEBEEFAEFERR
HEAREBEXEMR RUREEKX
M AAEEEREEBRRAMA
BRUWEEDE mE  BRERRER
MRS R EGRTENER BRHE
RBIE 2 AT R FEL B — BRI
BT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE(S)
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Earnings per share 227TBREF

(i) Basic earnings per share () EREXZF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by BRERBHZEE T EE
dividing:
e the profit attributable to owners of the e BERARAHEAEAZ

company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year.
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(i) Diluted earnings per share (i) SFREEZF
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures FREERTFAEREEERE
used in the determination of basic earnings REFESFER S Ut
per share to take into account: %

the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
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ordinary shares.

2.28 Interest income 2.28 F| 2 W A
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion T B UL A LA B BR A R %k 32 B ] 1B
basis using the effective interest method. TER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXRESHTEHRBEE)
POLICIES (continued)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 Leases (continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the landlord, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHEEBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
2.29 Leases (continued) 220K (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its leasehold land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment,
it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Low-value assets
comprise office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 16).

2.30 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

2.31 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHEEBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.32 Research and development costs

2.32MBEHR

Research expenditure and development
expenditure are recognised as an expense as
incurred if they do not meet the criteria: (a) it is
technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sales;
(b) management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (c) there is an ability to
use or sell the intangible asset; (d) it can be
demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits; (e)
adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset are available; and (f) the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBEREE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MKEBEE(E)
(a) Market risk (a) THEEE

()  Foreign exchange risk (i)  SMNE R Bz

The Group’s foreign currency transactions REFBNIINERSTE

are mainly denominated in RMB, HK$, NAR®E - BT ET

United States dollar (“US$”) and Euro (T=Zmx ) BB (B

(“EUR”). The majority of assets and TTDEHE - REBE R K

liabilities are denominated in RMB, DEEMBEEIENAA

HK$, US$ and EUR, and there are no R #x- - ETREUT

significant assets and liabilities HE WEEREENE

denominated in other currencies. The EUAE M EEEEHE - A&

Group is subject to foreign exchange BEmEmEIWIEAARE R

rate risk arising from commercial BIL(AEEETEES

transactions and recognised assets and BARINNEEER)FE

liabilities denominating in a currency HAREER S ME

other than RMB and HK$ which are the REERBEFEAEDN
functional currencies of the major SNFE [\ sz o

operating companies within the Group.

The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is AR S B ITHERAE
subject to the rules and regulations of 38 5T AR B R 2B 4 A b
foreign exchange control promulgated PE B ol 3R A 3R 1) - RER
by the PRC government. The Group B35 i = 1) B 17 AN K T
manages its foreign currency risk by KB R B H AN
closely monitoring the movement of the 2B e

foreign currency rates.

Under the Linked Exchange Rate BIEEEH BE X BZ
System in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged H) o BB TR ETEMS
to US$, management therefore considers FIUAEIREER AHEET
that there is no significant foreign B REBINE R I &
exchange risk with respect to US$ R ZZZZF : ).

(2020: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been HK$5,999,000
lower/higher (2020: HK$3,122,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of
HK$/RMB denominated bank balances
and cash, trade receivables, other
payables and accruals, bank borrowings,
financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss and the current account
with group companies.

As at 31 December 2021, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been HK$3,360,000
higher/lower (2020: HK$5,238,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange difference on translation
of US$ denominated bank balances and
cash, trade receivables, other receivables,
other payables and accruals, bank
borrowings and the current account with
group companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, if EUR had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been HK$2,888,000
lower/higher (2020: HK$1,108,000 higher/
lower mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of
EUR denominated bank balances and
cash, trade receivables, other receivables,
other payables and accruals and bank
borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity
price risk in relation to its steel products
which is largely dependent on the
market price of the relevant commodity.
The Group closely monitors the price
of its products in order to determine
its pricing strategies.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities, bank borrowings and financial
liability at fair value through profit or
loss. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

EEREE(E)
3.1 MBEBERE(E)
(a) TEmE

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate (iii) >t R B T 2]
risk (continued) Bz (48)
The Group has not used financial AREBWEMFHSRIT

derivatives to hedge against the interest
rate risk. However, from time to time,
if interest rate fluctuates significantly,
appropriate measures would be taken
to manage interest risk exposure.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rate
on financial liability at fair value through

ET AR ZER 8
2 B IRFER B R
R 2 RIVEE NEE
BN SRR

R—E-_—F+=-H
=+—R - AT E

profit or loss had been 100 basis points ABmZz @B ENN
lower/higher with all other variables S b 18 101 00 & I =
held constant, post-tax profit for the HEMmMMAEEME %

year of the Group would have been
approximately HK$1,102,000 (2020:
HK$2,989,000) lower/higher.

Other than financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group is not
exposed to significant cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from trade receivables, bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables
(Note 23), bills receivable (Note 23), deposits
and other receivables (Note 24), pledged
bank deposits (Note 26(a)) and bank balances
(Note 26(b)) represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

()

(i)

Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the
Group are mainly placed with state-
owned financial institutions and
reputable banks. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers
with an appropriate financial strength,
credit history and an appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also
has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Sales of goods to the customers
geographically located in the PRC
constituted 68.2% (2020: 77.0%) of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021. They accounted
for approximately 67.6% (2020: 81.6%)
of the trade receivable balances as at
31 December 2021. Collections of
outstanding receivable balances are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis
to minimise such credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade and bills receivables for sales of
goods of the Group and from the
provision of services are subject to the
expected credit loss model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Trade receivables and bills receivable
The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and bills receivable.

For bills receivable, bills are issued by
counterparties at reputable banks and
the credit risk is considered to be low.
Those counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, expected
credit loss rate is assessed to be
insignificant and no provision was made
as at each of the end of reporting
period.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and aging profile.

Management considers that full provision
would be made for balances with known
financial difficulties or those not responding
to collection activities, while the expected
credit loss rates of the remaining balances
are determined based on historical credit
losses experienced over the past 3 years
and adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

Impairment losses on receivables are
presented as “net impairment losses on
financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

RERERE(E)
3.1 B¥EKREE(E)
(b) FEREE(

(i)  Impairment of financial assets

(ii)

THEEREE)

(continued)

Trade receivables and bills receivable

(continued)

The following table presents the gross

carrying amount and
impairment losses in

the provision for
respect of trade

JEW R R JE W R IR
TR 25RO R
AR E R E R R

receivables:
Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying  expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
30 2HREH
FEFERE REAE FEFE EKERE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BRI B¥Tx
As at 31 December 2021 R=-B=—&
t=A=t-~R
Aging category AR
Within 1 year —ER 0.09% 796,703 (735) 795,968
Over 1 year BiR—F 100% 21,667 (21,667) -
818,370 (22,402) 795,968
As at 31 December 2020 R=Z-Ff
+=A=+-B
Aging category ARE AR
Within 1 year —ER 0.03% 639,133 (217 638,916
Over 1 year BB 100% 28,741 (28,741) -
667,874 (28,958) 638,916
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HERBEE(E)
3.1 BMEAREZE(E)
(b) EERR(

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i) Z4A e ()

Deposits and other receivables, pledged %
bank deposits and bank balances H AR
©=1F

For deposits and other receivables,
management makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past
experience as well as forward looking
factors. There has been no recent
history of default in relation to these
counterparties. The expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, there has been no recent

HR ke A E R
FoEEERERSME
1 FE U SR IR JEE 52 [ W =i
B BEKRBRIAKAE
1 B 23 17 € 23 8 Bl R
CREASE Ean s it ihid
BT - TRH(EMRE
RTBRE -

HREEMHRITER
TERITHETT - ABLE B F5 1

history of default in relation to those BNEERENRITRE
financial institutions and reputable REBNNGERES -5

banks. The expected credit loss is
insignificant.

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including long-term and
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group’s finance department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
amount of cash and cash equivalents and
flexibility in funding through having available
sources of financing.

(c)

EHERBRTRE -

WEE £ E kR
BREERNORDESRRE
B AREEBNERTRNR
e MRSFEER REBETRE
RECHR(BRERHLEHER
TRE)BRGEES - ANEH
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above the balance required for
working capital management are transferred
to interest-bearing bank deposits with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$73,487,000
(2020: HK$93,262,000) that are expected to
be readily available and sufficient to meet
the cash outflows of its financial liabilities,
hence, management considers that Group’s
exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total
available banking facilities, amounted to
approximately HK$553,243,000 (2020:
HK$492,651,000), of which approximately
HK$479,838,000 (2020: HK$492,460,000)
has been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on their contractual
maturities for non-derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying values as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3 MBEAREE(E)

3.1 WKERER(E)
(c) mEIELREEE(E)

Weighted
average Total
effective contractual
interest  Less than 4-6 7-12 Over undiscounted
rate 3 months months months 1 year cash flows
MEF FERES
EMAZE SR=@A DNEXER tZ+=BR RBBE-F FES
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bal AEFr  A%FTr  A%FTn  BETrn AT
(Note)
(P3E)
As at 31 December 2021 R=-Z=-f
+=A=t+-H
Trade, bills and other ENER - ERERREL
payables JEfS57 - 1,285,095 202,697 - - 1,487,792
Loan from a related RE-HEERRCER
company 5.50 336 12,575 24,974 - 37,885
Bank borrowings BITER
- fixed rate ~EER= 4,14 144,512 212,461 132,253 - 489,226
Financial liability at fair value &AFEABRZ
through profit or loss CRERE 4.00 153,000 - - - 153,000
Lease liabilities HEaRE 5.36 338 338 676 1,803 3,155
1,583,281 428,071 157,903 1,803 2,171,058
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B=F%
+ZA=t-H
Trade, bills and other ERER  BREERE
payables FERR - 911,283 92,641 - - 1,008,924
Bank borrowings BITEH
- fixed rate ~ETH= 4.01 115,598 138,056 255,975 - 504,629
Financial liability at fair value %AFEABHZ
through profit or loss SRAE 4.00 3,000 - 3,000 153,000 159,000
Lease liabilities HESE 5.36 307 102 - - 409
1,030,188 225,799 258,975 153,000 1,667,962

Note: The weighted average effective interest rates are
based on the rates of the borrowings at the end
of the reporting period.

BYRE N F I BB A R TR & 3
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as
capital. The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
interest bearing borrowings of the Group (including
loan from a related company, bank borrowings
and financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss) less bank balances and cash (including
pledged bank deposits) divided by total equity,
as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.2 Capital management (continued)

3.3

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZ—-ZT—

The gearing ratio was as follows:

—F A=t -ALEE

MBEEREER(E)

3.2 EXREE(E,

BELEET :

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Loan from a related company RE—EEEARZER
(Note 28) (Fff7¥28) 24,570 -
Bank borrowings (Note 29) RITER(KI7E29) 479,838 492,460
Financial liability at fair value through #EAFEFABRZ &RE
profit or loss (Note 30) & (FfI7E30) 183,278 168,482
Less: Pledged bank deposits o EERITER
(Note 26 (a)) (FfzE26(a)) (195,867) (84,308)
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRS
(Note 26 (b)) (FfzE26(b)) (73,487) (93,262)
Net debt BEFE 418,332 483,372
Total equity T B RE 1,732,946 1,645,571
Gearing ratio BELE 24.1% 29.4%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AV EME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets including trade receivables, bills receivable,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash; and
financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, loan from
a related company and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities. The fair value estimations of investment
properties, financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss and property, plant and equipment
measured at revalued amount have been disclosed
in Note 16, 30 and 17 respectively.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the current tax and
deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
change in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell calculations.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

The calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates. Management’s judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying amount of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the
business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the rate of annual
increment for the steel cord price or the discount
rates assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

The Group makes provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the expected credit losses
allowance calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in
Note 3.1(b).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
written down to net realisable value when there
is an objective evidence that the cost of
inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those
inventories are aged and damaged, if they have
become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their
selling prices have declined. The cost of
inventories may also not be recoverable if the
estimated costs to be incurred to make the sales
have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss is the difference
between the carrying value and net realisable
value of the inventories. In determining whether
the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgement is required. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent by all means to which the
amount will be recovered. During the year, certain
inventories written down in prior years have been
subsequently sold at prices higher than their then
net realisable value. Provision regarding these
inventories have been reversed.

Fair value of investment properties and
property, plant and equipment measured
at revalued amount

The fair values of investment properties and property,
plant and equipment measured at revalued amount
are determined by using various valuation techniques.
Details of the judgements and assumptions have
been disclosed in Notes 16 and 17.

Fair value of a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss

The fair value of a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss is determined by using
valuation technique. Details of the judgements and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 30.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—=Z——

5

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
of steel cords. Revenue recognised during the year
are as follows:

5

FH_A=1T—"BLHFE

EER
AEBEFEREMEREE KNFEDE
RHEERBRUT

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F T -TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Continuing operations FERSEER
Sales of goods — Manufacturing EmiHE — RUEHER
of steel cords 2,693,480 2,040,059
Rental income (Note 16) AW A (KI5E16) 1,330 1,494
2,694,810 2,041,553
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 DHER
The Company’s managing director, being the CODM, KNG ZEEREIB  (EATBLIBRE
examines the Group’s performance and allocates ENRERHNAEESAERNEE T D
resources from a product perspective. The Group’s B &8 o AN B KO 275 B B i — (R E 2 3R

operations are currently organised into one reportable
segment which is steel cord segment.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each
segment without allocation of changes in fair value of
investment properties and financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, certain foreign exchange gains
or losses, central administration costs, the emoluments
of directors of the Company, interest income on bank
deposits, finance costs and rental and other income.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

S EBAER - BDSMEEAR S 26 o

DEFEEREE D BE X NBENE
&ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ?@ﬁkﬁﬁZ@@ﬁ
B2 R TEEE  FTINEE L WA E
B PRITBRA - ARBEEMHE R
TERZFBWA -~ B AMBE S M E

A U THI2RTEBLERRENER
BROEMKRBEFEZAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 HWER(E)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PEPEXBERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue UTEBREBRIRKE REZSHD L
and results by operating and reportable segment: TR R AE S ST
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B8z—_F—_—F+-—A=+—H1
FE
Steel cord
i)
HK$’000
BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers ZREINIBEFR) D I X5 2,693,480
Segment results DEELE 145,276
Unallocated amounts RO EEE
Rental income e WA 1,330
Other losses, net and foreign HMEE  F8EE
exchange losses, net HNESTE HOES1E - R ER (24,951)
Changes in fair value of REMERNTEZES
investment properties 2,650
Expenses =33 (21,195)
Finance costs, net BIFERAS - JFRE (13,401)
Profit before income tax B FT1S %5 Al A 89,709
Income tax expense FrS#i >z i (8,830)
Profit from continuing operations REFELCEER BT 80,879
Loss from discontinued operation REBRIEEEEBL BB -
Profit for the year RNEE @A 80,879

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 HWER(E)
(a) Segment revenues and results (continued) (a) PEPEXEBEREE(
For the year ended 31 December 2020 Ejz;%_%_gi—i—_ﬂ ;—i—— H ik
FE
Steel cord
| G 4R
HK$°000
BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers  REINEBEFH D I X508 2,040,059
Segment results DEPEE 205,989
Unallocated amounts RAOBLEEE
Rental income A2 WA 1,494
Other income HAb YA 702
Other losses, net and foreign HinEs - FeE K&
exchange losses, net HNESTE H 518 - R R (20,254)
Changes in fair value of BEMERTE2EE
investment properties (2,062)
Expenses EH (22,470)
Finance costs, net B RS R AN « JFRE (17,488)
Profit before income tax BRFT1S B A& A 145,911
Income tax credit FIisBiEe 3,054
Profit from continuing operations REFFELE B2 m 148,965
Loss from discontinued operation REBKIEEEEBE 2 EBE (711)
Profit for the year RNEZ 5 148,254

£3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 PHER(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PHMEERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets UTEBREBRIRKE REZSHD L
and liabilities by operating and reportable CEERBEZOSN :
segment:
Segment assets D EBEE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8”
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BEET T
Steel cord 3] BE 4R 3,629,392 3,122,555
Total segment assets DEEEBER 3,629,392 3,122,555
Bank balances and cash RITEFRR® 73,487 93,262
Pledged bank deposits SR ITER 195,867 84,308
Unallocated assets RO EE 74,978 71,756
Discontinued operation EAR IE R TS - 26
Total assets BEMRE 3,973,724 3,371,907
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 IHER(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) PHEERAEE(E)
Segment liabilities SEEE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8H

2021 2020

—E-—-F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BETT BT T

Steel cord il G 4% 1,533,159 1,051,183

Total segment liabilities DEPREBRE 1,533,159 1,051,183

Loan from a related company KE—MBEEARZER 24,570 =

Bank borrowings IRITE 479,838 492,460

Financial liability at fair value EAFEFABRZEMAE

through profit or loss 183,278 168,482

Unallocated liabilities AOEBE 19,933 14,170

Discontinued operation BRIEEEER - 41

Total liabilities RiERE 2,240,778 1,726,336

For the purpose of monitoring segment REEDHRRLARS D EHBER
performances and allocating resources between ZAZEmE :

segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segment
other than certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, certain
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash.

all liabilities are allocated to operating
segment other than certain current income
tax liabilities, bank borrowings, loan from a
related company, financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, certain deferred
income tax liabilities and certain payables
and accruals.

BRETHE BEAEB &
EYE ETRMR EE2 Rk
H it e Wk - EEMRITER
METHEERREIN FIRE
EERIRIEENE -

BETERMSHRARE RT
B KE-RBAEARZE
T BAFEFABREZER
BE - EFTEREMGHEBAAR
KETRNZRRARERIN
FMFEREBEERSERED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 HWER(E)
(c) Other segment information (c) HittpZBER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B8Fz—_F—_—F+=-A=+—H1L
FE
Steel cord
i)
HK$’000
BT T
Amounts included in the measure of BERIGESIBEERITFERZ
segment assets or segment profit or S
loss:
Capital expenditures BEAMAY 208,948
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBZITE
equipment 103,274
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFREZTE 1,217
Amortisation of land use rights T Hb {5 FAAE 2 8 4,016
Net reversal of impairment losses on TREERBEBXERE FE
financial assets (7,396)
Reversal of provision for inventories, net 77 & & & @ - F4E (911)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEM¥ - BE MEH 2 WS
equipment, net HEE (660)
Amount regularly provided to CODM EHRHTFEELEEAREETE
but not included in the measure of ERTESsBIEE 228 :
segment profit or loss:
Income tax expenses Frig s i 8,009
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 IEEHR(E)
(c) Other segment information (continued) (c) HitvpEER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_ZE-_FEF+-_A=1+—81t
FE
Steel cord
| G 4R
HK$°000
BT T
Amounts included in the measure of BERIGESIBEERITFERZ
segment assets or segment profit or S
loss:
Capital expenditures BEAMAY 149,900
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBZITE
equipment 87,197
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BECRAEZITE 1,152
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb {5 FAAE 2 8 2,578
Net impairment losses on financial assets < Bl& & EE L FHE 6,274
Reversal of impairment losses on land T A 2 R (BRI
use rights (46,867)
Reversal of provision for inventories, net 1F&E&ERED - JF58 (56)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and H&E¥WE - BHE & REZEIE
equipment, net R 20,443
Amount regularly provided to CODM EHREFEIELERAFEETE
but not included in the measure of RRGEDBERZERE .
segment profit or loss:
Income tax credit FrigtiE e (3,112)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DHMER(E)

(d) Geographical information (d) tEER

The Group’s operations, non-current assets and
substantially all of the customers are located in
the PRC (including Hong Kong) which is the
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the
Group. Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue
from external customers and non-current assets
by geographical location is presented.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

AEBZ2E FRBEERBAN
MOFFHURAEEREERY
MEBZ  FE(BEES) Bt
YESIKBIATFPZEEBRR
FMBEEANLESBENE—F D
#r o

REEAREBEEEAI0% LT

FrERENT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2021 2020
—E-F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Continuing operations HEREEK
Customer A =FEA 335,748 265,021
Customer B =FB 370,313 215,612
7 OTHER INCOME 7 HMKA
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-— —E-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Government grants (Note) AT Ah (P EE) 1,308 6,660
Sales of scrap materials HERBRE YR 2,754 2,849
4,062 9,509

MiEE : BUS R = 2B T B E 2B ER

Note: The government grants mainly represented subsidies for

business development by the local governments in the PRC
(2020: subsidies for business development and refund of social
security contributions by the local governments in the PRC
and approved subsidies from Employment Support Scheme
under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong Government).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &\

8 OTHER LOSSES, NET

E_E-_—F+-_A=+—BItEE

8 HtEE FHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2021 2020
—E--fF —ECFF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T PR T T
Continuing operations FREREEK
Net fair value losses on derivatives FEEBEZHTET A AFEF
held for trading &8 - (706)
Fair value loss on financial liability EAFEFAEBEGRZEHARZ
at fair value through profit or loss  AF{EEE(H7E30)
(Note 30) (20,796) (21,538)
Gains/(losses) on disposals of HEYE  BEKERE2 WS
property, plant and equipment, net  (E18) F5 660 (20,443)
Impairment losses on property, ME - R RS 2 REE K
plant and equipment (Note 17) (PfFEE17) (3,095) (16,234)
Others HAth 609 (456)
(22,622) (59,377)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 RERMEESWER
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and FEERK - HENDHEER THEHA
distribution expenses, administrative expenses and RifRER 7 ERDITET -
research and development expenses are analysed as
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Continuing operations HERSEER
Cost of inventories sold (including EHERERN(BREFERRE
net reversal of provision for B EDFE)(Mizr22)
inventories) (Note 22) 2,265,721 1,635,008
Employee benefit expense (including EERMFEZ(BIEESME)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (fFzE10) 267,931 210,377
Depreciation of property, M WERZEIINE
plant and equipment 104,668 88,588
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEGAEZITE(ME18)
(Note 18) 1,217 1,152
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR 2 8K (1 3E20)
(Note 20) 4,016 2,578
Auditor’s remuneration FEFTEIA BN &
- Audit services — B IR 1,537 1,537
- Non-audit services —IEEIRTE 398 398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &\

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

=

—F A=t -ALEE

10 BERFRAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2021 2020
B —TTHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Continuing operations FEREER
Wages, salaries, allowances TE - % R RHEMET
and other benefits 237,265 194,846
Pension costs — Pension Scheme RIREAR —RNEBRRGTE
in Hong Kong 197 232
Pension costs — social security RKREKAN—RAEA
contribution in the PRC HEeRESHN 30,469 15,299
267,931 210,377
Note: As at 31 December 2021, there were no forfeited contributions Mz R —F+=—A=+—8 " #EqH
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of A $ 7N £2 B ok 2R UK A8 F) 25 76 108 Uk
the Group (2020: same). H(ZE=—ZF : 5R)-
Five highest paid individuals I fVNEETFMEE
The five individuals whose emoluments were the HEr— - —®+—-_A=+—H8 &
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December B AEREFNEESNREEZEABIE—%
2021 included one (2020: two) directors whose —E-TFE W) EE ERE D KB

emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note

39. The emoluments payable to the

(2020: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

remaining four

T

R EESOFT R D AT » F AT ER T
LE(

—E—F

— = —=

F=ZR)EENFHN

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLEFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BHEREEK
Salaries, allowances e ERHEMER
and other benefits 4,703 3,557
Discretionary bonuses EYBIEAL 1,139 1,047
Pension costs — defined RIRERKA — EREHE K2
contribution plans 350 99
6,192 4,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 10
Five highest paid individuals (continued)
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

EERAEX(E)
TuBRSHFM2EE(E)
e EEWT
Number of individuals
EEAE
2021 2020

—EC-—-F —T-TF

Continuing operations HEREER
Emolument bands [ e
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7#1,000,001TE
75 #1,500,0007C 3 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 B%4,500,001TE
75 #£2,000,0007T 1 2
4 3

One (2020: two) executive directors of the Company,
constitute senior management of the Company, their
emoluments were within the following bands:

—H(ZEZEF MB)RRARTE
F BRARASREEAER ENEB
RIATEE

Number of individuals
EE A"
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTHF

Continuing operations BEKEEK
Emolument bands P < #5[Z
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 B4 ,500,001 T

J&#52,000,0007T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 #2,000,001 L E

7B #2,500,0007C - =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 B2 500,001 TE

75 #3,000,0007C 1 1

1 2

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or other
members of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020: same).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

11 FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BERAE BH

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2021 2020
—E--F —T-TfF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T PR T T
Continuing operations FEREER
Finance income B EA
Interest income on bank deposits RITF R BUA 1,426 1,114
Foreign exchange gain on borrowings &2 JNETE 5§ Yz 5,074 -
Foreign exchange gain on financial EAVESABRZERABEZ

liability at fair value through profit HNEE B H g (P 3E)

or loss (Note) 4,872 9,705
Total finance income B RS UL A 4B K8 11,372 10,819
Finance costs B z‘%ﬁz&

Interest expenses on bank borrowings #R1T Z%'JE iﬂj (22,296) (24,273)
Interest expenses on loan from a PEQ F'aﬁ%% -4

related company FEZH (784) (670)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities FME&EZF B H (KizE18)

(Note 18) (123) (55)
Amortisation of loan transaction costs B X% 5k A& 2 # (1,570) (1,593)
Foreign exchange losses on B2 INEERE H B8

borrowings - (1,716)
Total finance costs P I Nk (24,773) (28,307)
Finance costs, net BTG - R (13,401) (17,488)
Note: It represented fair value change on financial liability at fair MisE : E e sR RN INESTE H 08 i N T (EE A

value through profit or loss attributable to foreign exchange BEreomasr ATEEE) (H:E30)-

translation (Note 30).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12 FiB88ixd (E&)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=t—BLEE
2021 2020
—EB-—F T -ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Current income tax: BTS¢
- China corporate income tax — B ERTSH 8,741 7,551
Overprovision in prior years VAR JZ i RE B 1 (3,334) (4,235)
Total current income tax BHIFS B 5,407 3,316
Deferred income tax (Note 31) EIEFTER (HI5E31) 3,423 (6,370)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisfis (%) 8,830 (3,054)
Income tax expense/(credit) is 8B /(ER)BER
attributable to:
— Continuing operations —HEREER 8,830 (3,054)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year
ended 31 December 2021 as there is no assessable
profit subject to Hong Kong profits tax (2020: same).

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
effective from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law”),
companies in the PRC are subject to income tax of
25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

The applicable CIT tax rate for Jiaxing Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“JESC”) and Tengzhou Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“TESC”) were 15% for the year (2020:
15%), as they are qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 12 FAERiXH (ER)(E)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax N EE B B TS FE B S A B B IB BL B A
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise BARSErDEREERE B 52 % ey
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to B ERAENIE RS ENEEIn T

profits of the consolidated entities in the respective
jurisdictions as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLHFE

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Profit from continuing operations REFEREEB
before income tax BRPTIS T AR A 89,709 145,911
Loss from discontinued operation RESRIEREEBE
before income tax BRETIS T RSB - (711)
Profit before income tax bR FTS L AT A 89,709 145,200
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates %@ F3 i3 & B FI A 10 75 B R
applicable to profits in the T E RRLEE (ML)
respective countries (Note (i)) 14,042 20,635
Expenses not deductible for taxation TrA[#EIIFIEZ & H
purposes 14,575 18,957
Income not subject to taxation TEEABIE WA (11,983) (15,379)
Tax losses for which no deferred RERIELEFT ST T 15 & 18
income tax was recognised 467 3,319
Utilisation of previously unrecognised 1# AT RERFISEE
tax losses - (16,352)
Recognition of tax losses previously R AT RER A TILEE
not recognised - (6,085)
Tax incentives for research and Erp BIR SZ H — IR B A R A B
development expenses available for  # [ 2 £ #4518 = (B k(i)
a subsidiary incorporated in the
PRC (Note (ii)) (8,566) (6,516)
Withholding tax on dividends IRE 2 TBIRMIE 3,629 2,554
Withholding tax on interest income | S A Z TEHR T 18 (M 5 (iii))
(Note (iii)) - 48
Overprovision in prior years AR FERNBEEES (3,334) (4,235)
8,830 (3,054)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 12 8B E (EE)(E)

Notes: BT

i The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.7% for i HE_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HLFE"
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 14.2%). The INFEFYEERBR R AB15.7% (B - 4F -
change is carried by a change in the profitability mix of the 14.2%)° S &) Jh AR AN E B & B BT B
Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries. NEABFEEHEE HIRE(LETEL -

ii The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority ii AEERFEFFERERSER —RHH
relating to the research and development expenses of a MEBATHERYNER - BIEXHGE
subsidiary in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the B NEB A [P R IEHEBRED
Group may claim an additional tax deduction up to 100% ;i%i&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂoo%(_q -
(2020: 75%) of the relevant research and development TEF : 75%)FEINEUOR R ©
expenses incurred in a year approved by the PRC tax
authority.

iii The withholding tax rates on interest income earned from iii R-CE_TEHMEPEHTE A BIA
entities in the PRC was 7% in 2020 (2021: Nil). HTEIRM R B7% (B ——4F : ).

13 SUBSIDIARIES 13 KE QA

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries:

TEMBRARZFBNT

Place of Particulars of issued Principal activities
incorporation and  share capital/ Attributable equity and place of
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity registered capital interest of the Group  operations
Bt B RITRE/ AEEEGRE TEER
WELRER REEERKN B NS =Rl &
2021 2020
“B--F ZZT-TH
Bigland Investment Hong Kong, limited  HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
Limited company (2 ordinary shares) in the PRC
AEREBRAA B ARAA 2T 100% 100% RAPBEEENERE
(E@iR2mk)
Eastern Century Metal Hong Kong, limited  HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Products Limited company (1,000,000 ordinary in Hong Kong
shares)
EEEBREmARAR B ARAA 7%%1,000,0007C 100% 100% REBUSREZR
(A% 1,000,0008%)
Everwinner Investments Hong Kong, limited  HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited company (1,000,000 ordinary in Hong Kong
shares)
XEMREBRRA] B ARAA 7%%1,000,0007C 100% 100% REBREREER

(E3A%1,000,0000%)
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

Particulars of issued

—F A=t -ALEE

Principal activities

incorporation and  share capital/ Attributable equity and place of
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity registered capital interest of the Group  operations
L3t 2 BRTRE/ AEBEARE TEXH
WRARERE REEERER M RA R E B R
2021 2020
Bz —T-ZTF

Fair Win Development Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited company (500,000 ordinary in the PRC

shares)

BRERBRAF BB ARRA #5#500,0007T 100% 100% REBELENERE

(&i®7%500,0008%)

Heroland Investment Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited company (2 ordinary shares) in Hong Kong
RERBRRAF BE BRAA 2T 100% 100% REBUENERE

(LmmR2mk)
JESC? PRC, limited liability ~Registered capital of 100% 100% Manufacturing of
company US$70,000,000 steel cords in
the PRC
RERR hE - AREMEAT  #fMRA70,000,000%7T 100% 100% MAELERENR
35
TESC? PRC, limited liability ~Registered capital of 100% 100% Manufacturing of
company US$109,000,000 steel cords in
the PRC
BT hE BREMRRE  EMARZ109,000,000 100% 100% RAELERENR
£ F

Shougang Century PRC, limited liability ~Registered capital of 100%* 100%*  Provision of
(Shanghai) Management company US$7,000,000 management
Co., Ltd. (formerly known services in the
as Shougang Concord PRC
Century (Shanghai)

Management Co., Ltd.)*?

B (L8) EBARAR HE FREERA  FEM&RZA7,000,000%7T 100%* 100%* RPERERHEER
FIBERERE (L&) § R
BERDA) *

# A wholly foreign owned enterprise i 2INERE

*

Directly held by the Company

A For identification purpose only

* AAREERHE

i (EXAT ]
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

13

14

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital and
issued any debt securities subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2020: same).

DIVIDENDS

On 22 March 2021, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per fully
paid ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$28,480,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The dividend was paid in July 2021.

On 25 March 2022, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per fully
paid ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$29,571,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The final dividend is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2021
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31
December 2021.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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M B2 =) (48)

ARAEBERE  ERIHARE KB
RADNEEZERFERE IBRAE
BEEFECERMBNZIMBAR AR
RAEERRAINEMHERRZERE
SEYREBNITE

& B 2 AR R R AT S R
P RV 4 £ ] (8005 0 2K o B AT £
BEH(ZB-2E MR

RE
EEgR_T—F=-A=-+=-AE#H
KEHE-_ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H1t
FEZRPREERHBERAN L BR
75 #1510 - 48 %8 40 & B #28,480,000
T WERZEZ—F+ AKXt

BEEEeN_T-__F=-A-_+HAEH
KEHE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
FEZRPREGRHERAN L BR
78 #5151l 48 5 4 R 8 #29,571,000
T o REARR EF R BITHRRAEF KR
TLHEBRESAZ - R Z—F+=A
ST -HEBRERENRARETEFA
R_E_—F+-_A=+—H®EE-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to the owners
of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

15 SREF
(a) EX
FREXRBFTIZARRFE AR
EAREEEMBRFENDETEBR
MEFHEGTE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —EFTF

Profit/(loss) attributable to the RRARHEA ANEIEAFE E R
owners of the Company used in 7/ (B#E) BRAEGRER

calculating basic earnings per BH| :
share:
— Continuing operations —RELEEH(BE T )
(HK$’000) 80,879 148,965
- Discontinued operation —BRIEREER
(HK$°000) (B®TT) - (711)
80,879 148,254
Weighted average number of BT E BB R

ordinary shares in issue (shares) (ff7)

1,898,752,435 1,908,733,015

From continuing operations RATHEE AEIEREFFE
attributable to the owners of the &% %75 0E()

Company (HK cents) 4.26 7.80
From discontinued operation (HK K8 2 &&= %57 GE1l)

cents) - (0.04)
Basic earnings per share RRABHEE ANEIEBRER

attributable to the owners of the &7 (&)

Company (HK cents) 4.26 7.76
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15 SREFN(E)
(b) #F

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares: convertible bonds (Note 30)
(2020: same). For the convertible bonds,
calculations are done to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average market share
price of the Company’s shares for the year) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding convertible bonds.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, convertible
bonds issued are considered to be potential
ordinary shares and have been included in the
determination of diluted earnings per share from
their date of issue. The convertible bonds have
not been included in the determination of basic
earnings per share (2020: same).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

BRESENEBAEDEITE
BRI F I BIARRERABE
E#ESLRRmMAE - AQRA—
BEBEEEEERR : TRERES(
30 =TT : HHR) - HA B
PRAEZ M 5 » 1R R T AT A E
S RBEENEEEEE U
BEARAFEGES/SARRRD
EARFEE®NFEME)REENBRD
8iH -

BE—F-—F#+-A=+—AL
R DBEANTHRBREEERA
REENTAR YARTARE
S B RS AR o AR
SARIASRERBRF(ZT=
T : ER)-
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15 SREF (&)
(b) B

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (continued)

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
Profit/(loss) attributable to the RARHEE ANEEREE R
owners of the Company used in A/ (B8R) ARG E &K
calculating basic earnings per BEAREF -
share:
- Continuing operations — R EER
(HK$°000) (BT T) 80,879 148,965
- Discontinued operation — BRI EET
(HK$’000) (B¥TT) - (711)
80,879 148,254
Profit adjustment for convertible BE P42 AR (B 25 1 58 B Vs A
bonds (HK$’000) (BT 15,925 11,833
96,804 160,087

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (shares)

Adjustment for convertible bonds
(shares)

BT EBINE T
(Bfn)
PR A 2 B 5 7 1 8 2 (Bt

1,898,752,435 1,908,733,015

454,545,454 454,545,454

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share (shares)

FRESER A 2 LB
FHE(Btn)

2,353,297,889 2,363,278,469

From continuing operations

AAREE AEBEREFE

attributable to the owners of R (B

the Company (HK cents) 4.11 6.80
From discontinued operation B DR IEREZER R

(HK cents) - (0.03)
Diluted earnings per share RARGEE ANELEERES

attributable to the owners of B CGEMW)

the Company (HK cents) 4.11 6.77
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16

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—_Z - —#F+_A=+—HIFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWHE
The movement of the net book amount for investment WEYENREE EES SN T -
properties is as follows:

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HE LT F

B¥

HK$’000

BT

At 1 January 2020 R-E-T&E—F—H 54,093
Changes in fair value recognised in ERBEAERZ AFEZSE (T

profit or loss (Note) (2,062)

Exchange differences fEHZ% 1,843

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_FBF+-_A=+—H 53,874

At 1 January 2021 n=—ZE=-——F—H—H 53,874
Changes in fair value recognised in ERBEAERZ AFEZSE (T

profit or loss (Note) 2,650

Exchange differences fEHZ% 922

At 31 December 2021 RZB-_—F+_-_A=+—H 57,446

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWE(E)
Note: B EE -
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs FHEANE LIS EG ARBETALETE
(level 3) (B=#)
The investment properties of the Group represent industrial NEBWIEEMERRMNREEN TEYESEGNN
property units located in Hong Kong and residential property units MR FR B EEESRN BT -

located in the PRC with following details:

As at 31 December

R+=HB=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong — fIAEBH TE Y EER 22,600 22,400
Residential property units located in the PRC AR BK{EEYEEN 34,846 31,474
57,446 53,874
The fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were assessed REBIZREMENR-Z_—FR_ZT_ZTF
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers T A=+ —RAZAFEIHEYAEAEEXE
Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers”). RO ERMERE T EETGEMARA A (%

Hr DFFE -
The valuations were determined using the direct comparison HERTERBEZLESER - AR R AT L&Y
approach. Sales price of comparable properties in close proximity ¥VHEEReRIZRH(MImmERRE) 2=
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property EREAE - EEHFEZREANBASEES
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is FHRFRROEE -

price per square foot/square meter.
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 BREWE(E)
Note: (continued) BiEE : (&)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs FEREANEZSEEGARBETAFESE
(level 3) (continued) (B=®)(E)
(@)  Industrial property units located in Hong Kong (@) NMIRBEBHITEMESN
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the UREBN T EMESBNEEMERNE
industrial property units located in Hong Kong are: B LR ABIBNT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
HREFE LB G ARE —E-—f —ECTF
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price per square HK$5,300 HK$5,200
foot

HELEE KRG T RMISER 7&1£5,300T 75 #5,2007T
As at 31 December 2021, if the adjusted market price per RZEZ—F+_RA=+—H WR&H
square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss BEFHRMTISERTES% - BIEEZA
would be HK$1,130,000 (2020: HK$1,120,000) lower. The 8248 A 1,130,000 ( Z ST
lower the adjusted market price per square foot, the lower F : % %1,120,0007T ) KFABEGFEH R

the fair value. MHBERBIE A FEME-

(b)  Residential property units located in the PRC (b) FIRARENEEMEEN
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the NP ENEEYESLAEMERNE
residential property units located in the PRC are: EREBRGABITEOT
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
HELE EEBRG AYE —E-—F —ECTF
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price per Ranged from Ranged from
square meter RMB41,000 to RMB36,000 to
RMB58,000 RMB55,000
(equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$50,000 to HK$41,000 to
HK$71,000) HK$63,000)
BHELEBE KRARGF T ARTISER EEH #[E R

AR¥41,000E AK%36,000TE
ARY58,000t ARHS55,0007T
(RER (HRER
#B#50,000tE  (B%41,000E
7&¥71,0007T) 7 #£63,0007T)
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note: (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(level 3) (continued)

(b)  Residential property units located in the PRC (continued)
As at 31 December 2021, if the adjusted market price per
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss
would be HK$1,742,000 (2020: HK$1,574,000) lower. The
lower the adjusted market price per square meter, the lower
the fair value.

There were no transfers of investment properties between
fair value hierarchy classifications during the year (2020:
same).

At 31 December 2021, the Group had no unprovided contractual

obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2020: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss:

FH_A=1T—"BLHFE

16 REVWE(E)
ST : (4)

FEREANELIBEERARBET

(B=R)(58)

(b) MIRAFBIKEEMEBEL(E)
R_E-_—F+_A=+—8 NRLEH
BEFHATHERTES% - AIHBEED
FEEERLEE1,742,000L( =T =%
F : B ¥1,574,0007T ) K FBEFFE 5 K
TS EREE A FEBE-

ATENE

RAFEEEMEXFHEBR Y B 2ML
EER(CT_FF @R

R_B-_—F+_A=+—8 AEEILETM
REFEENEHNETUEBBREERRE(ZS

ZZF AR
AT £BO NGRS BRRER

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-BLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Continuing operations BESEER
Rental income (Note 5) WA (MFE5) 1,330 1,494
Direct operating expenses arising from RAFEEEHSBANRENME L
investment properties that generated rental EH#Z&EE A
income (143) (104)
Changes in fair values recognised in the EREGEBRRER I AT EZE
consolidated statement of profit or loss 2,650 (2,062)

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out
its investment properties under operating leases
ranged from one to six years (2020: two to six years).

AEERBELEHEHEEREMEN
MEPR—ZRF(ZE_ZF :
£2 )

:I:/\
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ¥ -BERKE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and  Leasehold Plant and and Motor in
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles progress Total

BRIHE  HENE BER 4H KER
gy & #a B4 RE  HRIE aif
HKS000  HK§'000  HKE'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKE000  HK$(000
wETT  A%Tn ANt BB AETn BNt BETn

At 1 January 2020 R=2-%%5-5-H
Cost or fair value RARATE 323,308 3788 2284230 28,646 15,957 37225 2,693,154
Accumulated depreciation and  ZFFTERE(E

impairment loss - (2,835 (1,576,958) (23,596) (11,503) - (161489
Net book amount GEFE 323,308 953 707,272 5,050 4,454 37225 1,078,262
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-Z-%%

t-B=t-ALEE

Opening net book amount BRRSE 323,308 953 707,272 5,050 4,454 37225 1078262
Additions TE 27 - 8,653 1,253 2,366 137,656 150,145
Disposals hE - - (26,199) (142) ] - (26,350)
Transfers g5 59,026 - 69,276 126 - (128,428) =
Depreciation & (9,824) (380) (76,449) (889) (1,067) - (88,609)
Revaluation (Note) (M) (2,009) - - - - - (2,009)
Impairment loss (Note 8) wE(HEs) - - (15,554) (216) = (464) (16,234)
Exchange differences ERZE 22,828 10 56,261 329 339 3202 82,969
Closing net book amount BREEFE 393,546 583 723,260 5,511 6,083 49191 1178174

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

—F A=t -ALEE

17 V¥ BERRE(E)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and  Leasehold Plant and and Motor in
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles progress Total
HELHR HENE BER Gf %ER
BF £ B B i3 HEIR fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT EETT EETT BT BETT AETT AETT
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBE+ZA=1-A
Cost or fair value RARATE 393,546 3,978 2,260,155 30,971 19,213 49,681 2,757,539
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Z:FFEREE
impairment loss - (3390) (1536895 (254600  (13130) (90)  (1,579,365)
Net book amount EE3E 393,546 583 723,260 5,511 6,083 49,191 1,178,174
Year ended 31 December 2021 EZ-%--%
tZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BREHE 308,546 583 723,260 5,511 6,083 49191 1,178,174
Additions AE 3,350 - 121,584 1,137 846 82,055 208,972
Disposals i - - (.217) (59) - (229) (4,505)
Transfers g% 55,467 - 48,715 1,180 384 (105,746) -
Depreciation i (11,838) 095 (89,837) (4,187) (1,511) - (104,668)
Revaluation (Note) () (8,229) - - - - - (8,229)
Impairment loss (Note 8) AEGRD) - - (3,265) (61) ! 238 (3,095)
Exchange differences EiEH 11,854 2 26,147 169 160 1,216 39,548
Closing net book amount HRERFE 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26,725 1,306,197
At 31 December 2021 R=BZ-E+2A=1-A
Cost or fair value RARATE 444,150 3,961 2,482,060 38,526 20,944 26,99 3,011,637
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Z:FFEREE
impairment loss - (671) (1659673  (268%) (14989 71) (1,705,440
Net book amount EE3E 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26,725 1,306,197
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ¥ BERRE(E)
(continued)

Note: Pzt -

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3)

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong, commercial property unit
located in the PRC and industrial property units located in the
PRC with following details.

ERAEANELIBEGAHBETATERNE
(B=%)
AEENEETHRETRUNEENTENE
B R PEAERYERECRMURNTENT
EYEBLL - FBLT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong IR &E®B 2 T¥YE BN 15,900 15,600
Commercial property unit located in the PRC I RHE 2~ B2 By 954 950
Industrial property units located in the PRC AP Bz THEMES 427,296 376,996
444,150 393,546

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are carried at
revalued amount. If the leasehold land and buildings had not been
revalued, they would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
with carrying amount of HK$347,405,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$295,215,000).

The revalued amount as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
assessed by the independent and professionally qualified valuer,
Vigers. The valuations were determined using either:

= Direct comparison approach: Sales price of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square foot/
square meter; or

- Depreciated replacement cost approach: Current cost of
replacement/reproduction of the properties. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is replacement
cost per square foot/square meter.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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HETHEREFHAEMRL ER=ZZT=Z—F
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ¥ -BERSZEE)

(continued)

Note: (continued) BteE - (48)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs FHEANELIBESEMASBETATLESTE

(level 3) (continued) (B=#%)(&)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using BREFERERNELIE R AZBEZ AT ETE

significant unobservable inputs (level 3): (B=mTEER -

(@)  Industrial property units located in Hong Kong (8 (IRBBZTEMESN
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the UREBN I EYESUAEMERNE
industrial property units located in Hong Kong are: BELERE AZIBEWNT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
HERE EABEGAYE —E-—fF —TTF
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per HK$5,600 HK$5,500
square foot
TiSLLER T % KRARGTHRMHER 7 #5,6007T 75 #5,5007T
As at 31 December 2021, if the adjusted market price per RZZBZ—F+ZA=+—H WMEHE
square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on other BEHRIIGER T#5% - HEASEIR
comprehensive income would be HK$795,000 (2020: %ﬁ %%H—rﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%,oooﬁ(:g:
HK$780,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per T4 : A¥780,00070 ) KHABGFE AR
square foot, the lower the fair value. Fﬁ%%‘i’fﬁﬁﬁ CAFEBUE
(b) Commercial property unit located in the PRC (b) MRPEZEEMESEM
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the BRI R Y B A EMERARE
commercial property unit in the PRC are: DEEEREABTRAOT
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
HESE ELBRRAYE —E-—-F —T-TF
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per RMB17,600 RMB18,000
square meter (equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$21,500) HK$21,400)
AR¥17,6007T AR #18,0007T
(HER (FHER
MIGLLE A KRBT HRWHER 7 #21,5007T) #5#21,400) 7T
As at 31 December 2021, if the adjusted market price per RZEZ—F+-A=+—H WLAEETH
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other RIIGEE TH5%  HHEM2EKETER
comprehensive income would be HK$48,000 (2020: BV B #548,0007T( — T = T4 : ##48,000
HK$48,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per T0) ARG E R M IBERBIE - A FEBIE -

square meter, the lower the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZ-ZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 ME - BERREE)

(continued)

Note: (continued) BteE - (48)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs FHEANELIE S ASBETATETE

(level 3) (continued) (B=®)(E)

() Industrial property units located in the PRC () MNRHPEzITEMESM
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the N B TEYESBNGEMFERNE
industrial property units in the PRC are: BEAERGAZSENT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
fh{ET % EEBEBARE —B=-—F —ECTF
Depreciated replacement cost approach  Unit replacement cost per Ranged from Ranged from
square meter RMB1,000 to RMB900 to
RMB3,100 RMB1,900
(equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$1,200 to HK$1,100 to
HK$3,700) HK$2,300)
EREEEXRATE BEHREMBBERAR EEH FHEH

ARM1,000TE  ARE00TE
ARM3,1007T AER#1,9007T
(FBER (FBER
1,200 HEE1,100TE
F##3,7007T) ##52,3007T )

Adopted depreciation rate Ranged from Ranged from
24% to 99% 26% to 100%
ERAZE X wE wHEH
24%Z%99% 26%=100%
As at 31 December 2021, if the unit replacement cost per R_E-_—F+-_A=+—H w08 F¥H
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other KB EBEKAN NMES% @« B EM U
comprehensive income would be HK$21,365,000 (2020: 0825 R A 5 21,365,000T( — &
HK$18,850,000) lower. The lower the unit replacement cost —Z 4 5%18,850,0000T ) FFEHKE
per square meter, the lower the fair value. MNEEBRANBIE  AFEEBK-
There were no transfers of leasehold land and buildings RAFREEE LM REFHAFERRD
between fair value hierarchy classifications during the year BIEER(CZ2F AR
(2020: same).
As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land and buildings RZB-_—F+_A=+—H URFEH
located in the PRC amounting to HK$194,288,000 (2020: #HE & 4 b 48 F 4B )5 %5194,288,000
HK$197,935,000) and plant and machinery amounting to T(ZZEZZTF : #%197,935,0007T ) &
HK$38,760,000 (2020: Nil) are pledged to secure bank % & i 23 4L {8 7 #38,760,0007T( = F
borrowings and loan from a related company respectively ZEF: BIE D IMERRITERERE—
as set out in Note 25. ARERR 2 BER 2B - FHIEE IR
725 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18 EEFARKEEAE
LIABILITIES
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) HREMBRRIRABRNESEE
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position S BAORKRYRE 5 BN
shows the following amounts relating to the EYHEHESHEENSEE

leases in respect of office premises:

As at 31 December

W+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BY¥T T BT
Right-of-use assets BEEGCHRE
Offices premises EE NS ES 2,914 384
Lease liabilities HEEE
Non-current JERE 1,738 =
Current k) 1,226 404
2,964 404
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the HEzr—_Z2-_—F+-_A=+—H
year ended 31 December 2021 are HK$3,747,000 IFE FEEEFTHEABE
(2020: Nil). 3,747,0007C( — ST 4 : )0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(c)

statement of profit or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss
shows the following amounts relating to the
leases in respect of office premise:

18 EEMARREEEE(H)

(b)

REBERRANBRNESHE

MAEBERITHTIERREY
FHEHRENEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLHFE

2021 2020
—E-— —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Depreciation of right-of-use assets &EFHEZITE
(Note 9) (FrzE9) 1,217 1,152
Interest expense on lease liabilities FEAE 2 F B H
(Note 11) (B3E11) 123 55

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2021 is HK$1,310,000 (2020:
HK$1,216,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 3 years
(2020: 2 to 3 years).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—81

FEREEZENAER

BRI RE

#4,310,0000( — T = T F: B K&
1,216,0007T) ©

(c)

FEENHEEEHRASTE
H
AEEHEETHLAE-HEAR
BEE=-F(_FT_FF: 5=

F)ZEEMER -

HEHREEEMNBENER -
TR LA RER & IR A R
- HEBZETEE S HEAR
BEONHEEEENERAEZINNE
MY HEEENTFRIEBHE
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2T —F+-_A=1+—HILFE

19 ¢RI ESE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2021 2020
—g=--§5 —T-Tf
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T

Financial assets at amortised cost: B ERAFENSRMEE -
Trade receivables & LBR 3K 795,968 638,916
Bills receivable e E IR 812,204 871,869
Deposits and other receivables e N H A e BN 4,476 3,031
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITFR 195,867 84,308
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERRS 73,487 93,262
1,882,002 1,691,386

Financial liabilities at amortised RBERATENSREE

cost:
Trade and bills payables FETBR R R iR 1,119,498 761,321
Other payables and accruals HEMENREEREA 368,294 242,603
Loan from a related company ke —MBEEARZER 24,570 =
Bank borrowings RITE 479,838 492,460
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,964 404
1,995,164 1,496,788
Financial liability at fair value BRAVEGFABRZSRMEAE
through profit or loss:

Convertible bonds AR ES 183,278 168,482
2,178,442 1,665,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

20 LAND USE RIGHTS 20 LT HbERAE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use AEB N E 1 b F0+ 0 F A AR 2
rights represent the prepaid lease payments under R ETHL) N TR T E A o

operating leases.

HK$’000

BT T
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE_TF—H—H 95,627
Amortisation (Note 9) BH (PfI59) (2,578)
Reversal of impairment losses (Note) BB KRR (M) 46,867
Exchange differences PE = RE 6,131
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZEF+-A=1+—H 146,047
At 1 January 2021 R-—Z-_—F—H—H 146,047
Amortisation (Note 9) BH (PfI59) (4,016)
Exchange differences MEHER 4,233
At 31 December 2021 RZBEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 146,264
During the year, amortisation expense of HK$4,016,000 RAFE - %5 & A% %4,016,0007T
(2020: HK$2,578,000) has been included in costs of —T T F : F¥2578,0007T) Bt A

sales. SHER A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20 LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)

21

Note: In 2017, an impairment was made for the carrying amount
of the land use rights for the three parcels of land amounted
to HK$72,500,000 after TESC received a notice regarding
the rescission of confirmation letter in respect of successful
bidding of state-owned land for construction from Tengzhou
City Natural Resources Bureau (formerly known as Tengzhou
Municipal State-owned Land Resources Bureau regarding
the Lands in the state of being idle.

In August 2019, Tengzhou City Natural Resources Bureau
issued the land use right certificates to the Group. The Group
obtained the construction project planning permit on the
total planned construction area of 46,614 square meters in
late October 2019 for TESC Phase Il Project. The Group
commenced the construction work in November 2019 and
made a reversal of impairment losses on land use rights of
HK$17,456,000 accordingly.

In October 2020, the Group has obtained the construction
project planning permit on the remaining area of 118,545
square meters and made a reversal of impairment losses
on land use rights of HK$46,867,000, representing the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment losses been recognised in previous years.

As at 31 December 2021, land use rights amounting
to HK$62,323,000 (2020: HK$62,175,000) are pledged
to secure bank borrowings as set out in Note 25.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to one of the cash-generating
units of the Group, comprising a subsidiary in the
steel cord segment, JESC. The recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit is determined based on the
value-in-use calculation.

Goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit had
been fully impaired as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
same).

BE_ZT-—F+-A=+—HLFE

20 TiHfEARE(E)

21

Mz R =T — 5 BINRITEEIREMN T B A
BRB(AEEMNTELERBD)RZEFE
EFRENTHEHNBER(EERRA L
HEHERRERE)VBANER H=1R
o3 A+ {6 R AR BR B R B 3RE ¥
72,500,0007T °

RZZ—NAFNA BNTERERBE
HTtFERAEETAER - AEBR=F
—NWE+ATABMNEF_HBEENST
BIRE R EE B46,614F F R ZERT
BEEFAEZE - E_T—NE+—ARK
TR WAERE it BERERE
55 1517,456,0007T °

RZZ_ZF+ A AEECNEFEH%
[ 18118,545F 75 K 0 2 58 T 12 33 &1 57
Al FE R L AR E R RS
46,867,0007T ' AiBEFERERRERE
KIS AFEREE RO BRI (A ©

R-ZTE-_—F+_-_fF=+—H £84
HE%62,323,0007 (=TT F : B
62,175,0007T ) 2 +Hb{fF A1 B IR VER
TERRER - sHEHFIRHI5E25 -

BILEE

S

BHEERIEZ—ReELBN ETE
REERD MR~ B AR —FZE
R7 - REELBMNAIKEEEEIRE
EREEEERE -

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—HETFES
EABUNBEEC28BE(ZE-F
F MR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

22 INVENTORIES 22 ®E&
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—g=--§ —T-Tf
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T PR T IT
Raw materials R # 147,535 118,351
Work in progress & 90,682 59,388
Finished goods K o 239,143 82,888
Less: provision for inventories, net B ' FTEEE  F5 (13,482) (13,989)
463,878 246,638
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during RAFEHEEXAFNTFEX KRB
the year amounted to HK$2,265,721,000 (2020: 2,265,721,000c( — T -~ T F: B
HK$1,635,008,000), which included net reversal of 1,635,008,0007T ) - A BEFEFEE
provision for inventories of HK$911,000 (2020: B[O B 911,000 c( —E-ZF : B
HK$56,000). 56,0007 ) °
23 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 23 BUWERMREEWRERE
RECEIVABLE
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—-F T EE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEMER K (Fi5E(a)) 818,370 667,874
Less: provision for impairment losses J& : fEURER TR E IS K B
on trade receivables (Note (c)) (FfF3E(c)) (22,402) (28,958)
795,968 638,916
Bills receivable (Note (b)) FEW ZE 1% (M13E (b)) 812,204 871,869

1,608,172 1,510,785
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS

RECEIVABLE (continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables and

BE_ZT-—F+-A=+—HLFE

23 BEUWERAFREWRE(E)

UM ERZRENREERTIIE

bills receivable are denominated in the following ¥ETE -
currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=-ZBA=+—8H
2021 2020
—EB=—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
RMB AR 1,350,878 1,386,211
Uuss$ =T 163,369 81,162
EUR BT 92,883 40,587
Others HtE 1,042 2,825
1,608,172 1,510,785

(@) Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range
from 30 to 90 days. The aging analysis of the
trade receivables primarily based on invoice date

was as follows:

(a) FEUWSRRR

AEB-—RETFTEZSHEF30BE
WHMEER - BWEBEREEZR
BEZAHRE ZRED T2 0

T

As at 31 December

W+=BA=+-—8
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Up to 90 days EZ%90H 559,209 482,983
91 to 180 days 91£180H 200,425 129,328
Over 180 days %1K180H 58,736 55,563
818,370 667,874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 23 EWERERREWERE(SE)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
(b) Bills receivable (b) EWEE
The aging analysis of the bills receivable primarily EREEFERBEZZAHREGZ
based on invoice date was as follows: BRERODME2HA0T -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—EB=—-F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Up to 90 days FZ90H 97,875 142,861
91 to 180 days 912180H 361,525 374,399
Over 180 days %1 180H 352,804 354,609
812,204 871,869
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bills R—E-_—F+=-_A=+—H"' K
receivable mature within one year (2020: same). SENERERZIBEHE—F

ZHR(ZE-ZF : HRE)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 23 EWERAREWRELRE(E)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
(b) Bills receivable (continued) (b) EWEE(E)
() Transferred receivables (i) EUZzEE

The carrying amounts of the bills receivable AT AREBERREHRZS
include bills which are transferred to banks EBEREERIE FIRITNEE
or suppliers by discounting or endorsing the T 2 W EE - R A
bills receivable on a full recourse basis. EEWAEZREEZERERE
Under these arrangements, the Group has B2ZERERNER  HLE
not transferred the significant risks and MEERZERINEE 223
rewards relating to these receivables. The FEEENEBEEE ZETK
Group therefore continues to recognise the BERCDEHENANRAERZ
transferred assets in their entirety in its EE SRR AGER o

consolidated statement of financial position
and measuring them at amortised cost.

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows: BRAEEENT :

As at 31 December

W+=B=+-—H
2021 2020
—EB=—-F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT
Bills receivable discounted to RE2HEREXCHRF
banks with full recourse RITZ2ERERE
Transferred bills receivable HIERNEE 82,218 66,139
Associated secured borrowings B EIFER (82,218) (66,139)
Bills receivable endorsed to REEEREECEET
suppliers with full recourse fitpER 2 e R 1B
Transferred bills receivable EEEKER 657,091 643,976
Associated trade payables FE R FE T RR SR (430,354) (486,377)
Associated other payables B P L A JE A5 K (104,223) (111,190)
Associated prepayments MEEEMNR (122,514) (46,409)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLE (continued)
(c) Provision for impairment losses on trade
receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment
losses on trade receivables is as follows:

23 BUWRAREWRRERE(E)
(c) BUWIRFURERXEE

JE W BR SROR (B 18 2K B s B B 4n
T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8H
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At beginning of the year F4) 28,958 21,374
(Net reversal of impairment RNEERUAR K OREB LR E
losses)/net impairment losses on JF%8 ),/ RIEIB K F5E
trade receivables for the year
— Continuing operations —FEREEY (7,396) 6,274
- Discontinued operation — BRI (F1EE32)
(Note 32) - (67)
Exchange differences b H ZRE 840 1,377
At end of the year R 22,402 28,958

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying values of each class
of receivables mentioned above. The Group did
not hold any collateral as security for these
receivables as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

=

E_E-_—F+-_A=+—BItEE

24 FERK - EERHEMGERR

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Current portion REIT D
Prepayments SELNES 23,919 21,453
Other tax recoverables (Note) HAth mT W Bl F3E (B E ) 49,818 -
Deposits Ze 212 645
Other receivables H A JE UK 3,854 2,386
77,803 24,484
Non-current portion FEREIT D
Rental deposits Heke 410 -
Prepayments for the acquisition of BB KEKEZEZ
property, plant and equipment SCENE- 38,182 33,951
38,592 33,951
116,395 58,435

Note: Other tax recoverables are mainly input value-added tax
arisen from the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

and purchase of materials.

Mz - ErRERET 2 REEDE BE R
R M B BB E R TR (B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are denominated in the following

25

24 AR -BEREMERR(E)

B e REMEMKEE BN T
SIS A EHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=-ZBA=+—8H
2021 2020
—EB=—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
RMB AR 115,381 57,534
us$ EPIv 4 4
EUR BT 414 5
Others HEMEE 596 892
116,395 58,435
ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 25 EHEE

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security
for bills payables (Note 27), loan from a related
company (Note 28) and bank borrowings (Note 29)

are:

V)

(ii)

(iii)

leasehold land and buildings: HK$194,288,000
(2020: HK$197,935,000) (Note 17);

plant and machinery: HK$38,760,000 (2020: Nil)
(Note 17);

pledged bank deposits: HK$195,867,000 (2020:
HK$84,308,000) (Note 26); and

land use rights: HK$62,323,000
HK$62,175,000) (Note 20).

(2020:
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ETEMERE TRNZR(ME27)
ke —RERRZER(ME28) RIR
TER(ME29) WiRE < BEREER:

(ii)

(iii)

HE L+ RIETF : B%194,288,000
TT(ZZE-ZF : %%197,935,000
To)(BEE17):

B M kes : E#38,760,0007T( =
TFF ) (KIEE17):

2IIIRTTER B #195,867,000
TT(—ZF = FF : 84,308,000
TT)(Mi7E26): K

+ 3 fsF A - 162,323,000 (=
T T FE : H162,175,0007T ) M
£120)°




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26 CEBRTER HBITEERES
BALANCES AND CASH
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) SIEFBITER

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+-—H
2021 2020
—EC-F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Pledged bank deposits B IPIRITFR 195,867 84,308
Pledged bank deposits represents bank deposits EERBRITERERAEENRITF
of the Group which were pledged to secure credit REBRUARA QB 2HB R FH
facilities on bills payables granted to subsidiaries BERME 2 ENEEREGEER
of the Company for the purchase of raw materials. B -AEBEDERFROREEIN
The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged ARKEEHE -
deposits were denominated in RMB.
As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest R—ZFE-_—F+=ZA=+—8"
rate on pledged bank deposits was 0.79% per BEEBETERANERFEN XA
annum (2020: 1.11% per annum). 0.79% (=T ="FF : 1.11%)°
(b) Bank balance and cash (b) RITEERES

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2021 2020
—F--F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERRS 73,487 93,262
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 26 SEARTER RITEERES
BALANCES AND CASH (continued) (%8)
(b) Bank balance and cash (continued) (b) RITEFERRAE(E)

The carrying amounts of bank balance and cash
were denominated in the following currencies:

RITEFLRBASORAEATIE
BEtE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8H
2021 2020
—EB=—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET I
RMB AR 46,746 49,425
HKD ik 2,721 3,157
Uus$ Sy 17,298 28,555
EUR BT 4,475 8,018
Others Hibh gk 2,247 4,107
73,487 93,262

As at 31 December 2021, funds of the Group
amounting to HK$64,421,000 (2020: HK$68,423,000)
were deposited in bank accounts opened with
banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds
is subject to foreign exchange control.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 were HK$73,410,000
(2020: HK$93,180,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest
rate on bank balances ranged from 0.01% to
1.15% per annum (2020: 0.01% to 1.15% per
annum).
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RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H 'K
%= B A H 564,421,000t ( =
— T4 : 5 %68,423,0007T ) 77 K
EHRBERARITRAARITERS
mABESNESEINEEH -

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8"
AEBNEAGFEERRABE
73,410,0007T( —E T F : BIK
93,180,0007T ) °

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8"
RITETFERFFNER0.01%=
115%( — T — T £ :0.01%%
1.15%)°




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

=

E_E-_—F+-_A=+—BItEE

REH

27 BENBER

RiEHttEARRA

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2021 2020
=B —-F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Trade payables (Note (a)) FET R (Bt aE(a)) 625,882 598,401
Bills payables (Note (b)) ANESEAC IR () 493,616 162,920
1,119,498 761,321
Other payables and accruals - HtENRRFERER - K&
current
Contract liabilities (Note (c)) aHaEHEC) 922 2,156
Accrued wages and salaries FERIENREG® 27,412 23,448
Other tax payables HAhpER R IE 8,645 10,370
Other accruals HiwiaieE A 7,762 4,239
Other payables (including payables HAENR(B2EDE  BE &
for property, plant and equipment) &2 FER ) 360,532 238,364
405,273 278,577
1,524,771 1,039,898
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 27 BENRARERE HiESREE
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) RERE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, REBENBRR - FEA =R R E b ER

bills payables and other payables and accruals are AR FERERAMEREEN T EBEHE:
denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—EB=—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BEET I
HKD ks 9,406 4,964
RMB AR 1,474,343 1,013,840
USs$ e 37,769 19,850
EUR BT 2,246 754
Others Hibh g 1,007 490
1,524,771 1,039,898
(a) Trade payables (a) EFERR

HER—RETAKBE0ENEE
R ENERAEZREHZAH
MRl REE DT 25T

The Group’s credit period granted by the suppliers
is 30 days. The aging analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as
follows:

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-—8H
2021 2020
—F--F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 30 days F%=30H 234,388 350,820
31 to 90 days 31£90H 200,353 93,568
91 to 180 days 91£180H 124,141 113,003
181 to 365 days 181%365H 60,457 35,646
Over 365 days %14365H 6,543 5,364
625,882 598,401

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES/OTHER 27 ENERIRERE HttENSRERE
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) RERA(E)
(b) Bills payables (b) EREE
The aging analysis of the bills payables primarily ENEZEERTERBEEZHHEGRT 2
based on invoice date was as follows: BRI 25T -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2021 2020
—EB=—-F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
Up to 30 days FZ%=30H 132,620 23,763
31 to 90 days 31290H 48,546 46,516
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 301,733 92,641
Over 180 days %1808 10,717 -
493,616 162,920
The bills payables of the Group are secured by REBZENERAEEIRRITF

pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note 25. KA T8 BT ) 1EEIR -

(c) Contract liabilities (c) EBREE

As at 31 December 2021, the contract liabilities R-ZEB_—F+-_H=+—H'#&
for the advanced payments received from the NEE 2 TBRE P IR E R
customers included in the other payables and R K TER & B A58 %922,0007T
accruals amounted to HK$922,000 (2020: ZTTF : #%2,156,0007T)

HK$2,156,000).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
December 2021 that was included in the contract FEEERANDEA  BEEHNEE
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year B F &R - HEHE¥2,156,0007T
amounted to HK$2,156,000 (2020: HK$1,586,000). T T F : $¥%1,586,0007T)°
The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy AEBEAE—FRERFRANR
the remaining performance obligations of these NEY NWBITLEREHNEENT
contract liabilities within one year or less. BBOEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

28 LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY 28 RE—BHAEARZER

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F T TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T PR T IT
Loan from South China REMEABEBREERR AT
International Leasing Co., Ltd. (TFAHEE ] 2ERFEE)
(“South China Leasing”) (Note) 24,570 -

Note:

On 31 May 2021, TESC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, had entered into the finance lease agreement
(“Agreement”) with South China Leasing, an associate of Shougang
Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang HK?”), whereby TESC
agreed to sell certain machineries and equipment (“Machineries
and Equipment”) to South China Leasing at the purchase
consideration of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,000,000) and South China Leasing agreed to lease back
the Machineries and Equipment to TESC for the lease consideration
of approximately RMB21,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,160,000), comprising the rental principal of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,000,000), the lease interest of
approximately RMB1,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,980,000) calculated on the basis of fixed interest rate of
5.5% per annum and the lease handling fee of RMB150,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$180,000), for a lease term of
eighteen (18) months.

As collaterals for the above financing, (i) TESC transferred the
ownership title of Machineries and Equipment to South China
Leasing; and (ii) the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
in favour of South China Leasing for the payment obligations of
TESC under the Agreement.

Upon discharging TESC’s obligations under the Agreement, South
China Leasing will return the ownership title of the Machineries
and Equipment to TESC for a nominal purchase price of RMB2,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,400). Despite the Agreement
involves a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted for the
Agreement as collateralised borrowing in accordance with the
substance of the Agreement.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED E{ERHEELEHRE AR

fia -

RZTE——FHA=+—8 BMEF(EX2
FINEEEENBAR)EE S AE(EMER
(BH)ERAR(TEEREEDHNBE AT
BEMESR(ER D Bt BNEFREIE
3 B R (B A R %20,000,0007T (185 7 4 8 1
24,000,0007T ) (& & F# 88 K =% 8 ([ # 28 &%
BEDTEFIHE TEHIRERSBHER
FEUHEERELHARE21,800,0007T (HHE R
#)7%%26,160,0007T ) B4R MNR 5 EF 6
EH e A2 AR 20,000,0007T (8 ERDHE
#24,000,0007T )+ 1% [E & F F £5.5% H 2
HE R B4 AR #1,650,0007T (185 R 478 &
1,980,0007T) M EF & E AR #150,0007T (48
ER4974%180,0007T ) FHIA+/\(18)E A -

fER LB EMEIR G - ()BEMRTT s KRR
B AREREGEETHEE  RIARBETLA
AAOHERZEANREER  ESBMETRN
B RIE N AARENREENER -

FEMNRARERBETHEBRTTRL @
HEBARBIEBEEARE2,000T(HERK
7B H52,4007T) i 28 KB O FT B R IR IR An e M|
RE-BEARFMEEREETA BEAEH
RIBARNAR KA AR BEBERER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

29 BANK BORROWINGS 29 RITERX
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—f —T-TfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Bank loans RITER 397,620 426,321
Discounted bills with recourse F:EREMNEBIREE
(Note 23(b)(i)) (Bt £E23(b) (i) 82,218 66,139
479,838 492,460
Non-current portion MBI D - -
Current portion mENEL D 479,838 492,460
479,838 492,460
Secured B 153,195 140,321
Unsecured Ese i 326,643 352,139
479,838 492,460

The Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as

AEBENRITERTIABEMNT ¢

follows:
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—H

2021 2020
—EB=-—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Within 1 year — R 479,838 492,460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z—Z—=—

29 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of fixed

rate borrowings is HK$479,838,000 (2020:
HK$492,460,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, bank

borrowings of HK$70,977,000 (2020: HK$74,182,000)
are secured by pledged bank deposits, leasehold land
and buildings and land use rights as disclosed in Note
25.

As at 31 December 2021, total undrawn facilities
amounted to HK$73,405,000 (2020: HK$191,000).

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contractual interest rates) on bank borrowings
are as follows:

29

FH-A=1T—"BLHFE

RITER(E)

RITERNRAERERAFERSE

RZE-_—F+_A=+—8 BEMEX
ERZREE A 479,838,000t ( —
T T4 H1492,460,0007T )

BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—HLHF
B AEERIRITEFE$70,977,000
TT(ZE-FF : ##74,182,0007T) =
NBEIFRITER HAEL REF R
I FAREVE BRI AT 253 75 -

RZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H" KEW
B A 48 %A BB 73,405,000 (ZE-F
£ : #B%191,0007T)°
RITERZEBRANE(IMBERITLF
R)NEEWNT -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF

Effective interest rate per annum: BERFFRE -
Fixed rate borrowings & E FEE R

0.65% to 5.66%
0.65%%5.66%

1.05% to 5.00%
1.05%%£5.00%

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

29 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29 MITERE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings AREBERTERNEBTDEN N Bt
are denominated in the following currencies: (=

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8H
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT

EUR BT 28,169 74,182

us$ EH 11,697 -

RMB AR 404,992 418,278

HKD Bk 34,980 -

479,838 492,460
30 FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE 30 ZEAFEFAERZERARE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

On 11 February 2019 (the “Issuance Date”), the E/\ —NF-A+—HT®TR]) K

Company issued convertible bonds in the principal ﬂﬁﬂ/‘? FERAER AR REZER])

amount of HK$150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) (BMEEARAR([EMEE] AT

to Jingxi Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings”), a wholly BEBEERFENZEERR)NZENES
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd AT EITAR £ ¥ AR %150,000,0007T

(“Shougang Group”, which is the substantial shareholder BRI AR E 2 ([ FIHRIRE S |) o AIHAR (&

with significant influence of the Company). The FHR(E A% #150,000,0007T ° A #2 A

consideration for the Convertible Bonds was BEHFRTFI%NEEAEGTE

HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds are interest

bearing at a coupon rate of 4% per annum.

The holder of the Convertible Bonds has: ARRESFHEARS :

(i)  the option to demand the Company to redeem the () RZZTZ=—F-A+—B(RHBEI
Convertible Bonds on 11 February 2022 (the “Original B A |) EskAR A FER100% 1 K E
Maturity Date”) at 100% of the principal amount BARSE S MEMER R FEE
outstanding plus any accrued and unpaid interest; B AR E S A& 2

(i) the option to convert the Convertible Bonds into (i) EBMBRE(BEBEEAIBRKRESZT
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion HAEARZR A EEHRA W
price derived on certain conditions at the date AETHRE)BAIRRESERAR
of conversion falling 6 months from the Issuance NEIEBRAERE &

Date and up to the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

30 FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE 30 EAFEFABEZZEREAR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(iii) the option to extend the Original Maturity Date
twice by one year each to the date falling on 11
February 2024.

The Convertible Bonds, together with the
abovementioned options, were designated as a
financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

The Convertible Bonds are initially recognised at the
fair value as financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss. The fair value of the Convertible Bonds as at
31 December 2021 was valued by the independent
and professionally qualified valuer, Greater China
Appraisal Limited (2020: same). The valuation was
determined using Black-Scholes model with Trinominal
Tree method (2020: same).

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Company
received from the holder of the Convertible Bond an
extension notice to extend the maturity date to 11
February 2023 and a conversion notice to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$24,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.33
per share. The conversion shares were issued on 7
February 2022.

The movements of the financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss during the year are as below:

(%8)
(i) ERRBIEBERMI GA—F=E
—TECNFE-A+—HIERERE-

Tiﬁ’%ﬁ# B LR E - BT AR
NHERABSZERAE-

AR ESFV S EAFERRAEEAT
Bt \BEzemBE RZ2F=—F
+-A=+—8 TBRREHFNAFER
BURBEEXERNGEMEETNESR
RAREMTHE(ZZEZZF : HR) %
HENETHEAMER TR R AT ER R
=XREE(ZE-_ZF : BR)-

W-_EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H% AR
AR E TR ESF A AT LT R
NAEREIBEE S -_=F A +—
H - WEKIERBNARRRELSS
BB 1D B E0.33 LB A S R A B K
24,000,0007T 2 A 2 f% & % - AR AR 15
RZBEZZF-_RAERA%T-

AFEERAFEFABRZ EBA RN
ZEHMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—E-—-F —T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

At beginning of the year F1) 168,482 152,944

Settlement (=X0) (6,000) (6,000)
Fair value loss recognised in EREBERNERZ AT EERE

profit or loss (Note 8) (frzE8) 20,796 21,538

At end of the year FR 183,278 168,482

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED E{ERHEELEHRE AR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

30 FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE 30 BAFEFABBZEMEE(E)

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note:

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(level 3)

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss are:

GEX

ERAEANELIBEGAHBETATERNE
(B=%)

RAZZ2EEBEH ABBNARATEF AR
HZEBMBER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
il % T ELDN Tt —g=—% —B-%F
Black-Scholes model with Trinominal Dividend yield 4.35% 4.50%
Tree method

ATy « HiRt M AT R AL B = XOK % B ez

Volatility 44.70% 46.10%

EIES

If the dividend vyield shifted upward by 1%, the impact on profit
would be HK$1,390,000 higher (2020: HK$973,000 higher). The
higher the dividend yield, the lower the fair value.

If the volatility shifted upward by 5%, the impact on profit would
be HK$3,801,000 lower (2020: HK$3,235,000 lower). The higher
the volatility, the higher the fair value.

WA B R EFH1% - HE 28 Inia s 5%
1,390,0007T( — = — = 4F : £ in 7 #973,000
L) RBMERYS  AFESEK-

WEBE EF5%  HE 2R BENBE
3,801,0007c( = Z = Z 4 : j§ 2 % #3,235,000
L) RBERME  ATFESS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 EEFESHIE
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H

2021 2020
—g=--§5 —T-Tf
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSTHIBEE (467) -
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEPMSHIAA G 23,448 20,339
22,981 20,339

The movements of deferred income tax during the year RIEFTEMIBRAFRE 28T :

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020

—EB=—-F —TFTF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT BT T

At beginning of the year F7) 20,339 25,853

Charged/(credited) to profit or loss i, (5t A)1Bzs 3,423 (6,370)

Credited to other comprehensive FFAHMmEE Y

income (1,208) (287)

Exchange differences e =% 427 1,143

At end of the year FR 22,981 20,339

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset finl 5 7 1A TE AT AT 2 BRI LA AT U [e]

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax MIRERE B Ha EHEE  MELEME

recoverable against current income tax liabilities and THIEEL (A — B DML A AR A RS - IRIEFTIS AR
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same HEERBERITAKE-

fiscal authority.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT




31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

—F A=t -ALEE

31 EEMBHREA(E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

EXFBRABERABRAFREZE

BT
ELEFIEHEEE

Provision for

Decelerated impairment Total
tax loss on trade Provision for deferred
depreciation  receivables Tax losses  tax assets

P R
RERX EEHE
REBBIE BE RBER EEAR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-A-H (15,202) (14) (1,983) (19,414)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 135, /(;t A) B3 497 (1,146) (6,003) (6,461)
Exchange differences (708) 4) (17) (860)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF+-A=+-H (15,413) (1,164) (8,003) (26,735)
At 1 January 2021 R-EB-—§$-A—H (15,413) (1,164) (8,003) (26,735)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss /(3 A) 182 2,162 1,165 (622) 2,755
Exchange differences (387) (30) (73) (551)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB--F+=-A=+-H (13,638) (29) (8,698) (24,531)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 31 EERBHE(E)
Withholding
tax on
distributable
profit of Total
Revaluation subsidiaries  deferred tax
of properties in the PRC liabilities
RAEMED R
Z Al D ERIE EEBIE
YIS ZTRBIEA aE8%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETE  BETR  BETR
At 1 January 2020 A—_E_ZEF—H—H 34,321 10,946 45,267
Charged to profit or loss MR B 5 86 91
Credited to other ST AHAM ZE KR
comprehensive income (287) - (287)
Exchange differences b 5 =58 2,003 - 2,003
At 31 December 2020 R=-Z-FTF
+=BA=+—H 36,042 11,032 47,074
At 1 January 2021 R=—ZB=-—%—H—H 36,042 11,032 47,074
Charged/(credited) to R (GEA) B
profit or loss 821 (153) 668
Credited to other FFAE M2 A
comprehensive income (1,208) - (1,208)
Exchange differences MEH ZHE 978 - 978
At 31 December 2021 R=-T=—%F
+=RA=+—H 36,633 10,879 47,512

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated unused

R-_E-—F+-_HA=+—H A£8H

tax losses of HK$45,948,000 (2020: HK$40,677,000) fhET R B) A B I B 18 57516 45,948,000

which shall expire in four to ten years (2020: three to (ZZE=Z 4 : #¥40,677,00070) B

five years) and estimated unused tax losses of HRMESTF(ZZE_TF: =ZhF)

HK$295,089,000 (2020: HK$318,770,000) are available Wi & *@Jﬁﬁ%ﬁélﬁﬁéﬁé%ﬁé}zgs,ow,ooo

indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits T(ZZEZF 4 : #%318,770,0007T ) A

of the companies in which the losses arise. ERAANEIEESNEFRNEEEEE
Z RN REIARRFERFIE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has deductible RZEZ—F+=H _‘f' El rEE
temporary differences of HK$165,950,000 (2020: B % %165,950,000C( —E =T F : B
HK$190,248,000) which no deferred tax asset has been #:190,248,0007T ) #) AT 1R 52 & 1t =
recognised, as it is not probable that taxable profit £ FRBEHETE R B ERD R AR T LA
will be available against which the deductible temporary W EERRIELERIBEE
difference can be utilised.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED E{ERHEELEHRE AR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

32 BERLEREXEY
E-_ZT-NFALA AKRECDKRLEESE
R BEREEEAVHEONTIRESE
Bomlt ERIEREXH M BRERR
BEEBSFMAGRMNBTENERE
HRAFSHBFAEFEZIFRBEERD
RIERERT |1 RERIEREXH2IIRN

32 DISCONTINUED OPERATION
In September 2019, the Group discontinued the
processing and trading of copper and brass products
business in the PRC. Accordingly, the financial results
of the discontinued business are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued
Operation”. The financial performance presented is for

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

FeEBRBRRMREEEKERT 27
MBRABBES
F+-A=+—BILFEE-

—E—F

7—_5'5&—7—7

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2021 2020
—BC--F it Sk 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Other losses, net HibEie - F8 - (120)
Expenses £H - (659)
Reversal of impairment losses on EMEERBERAER (H23(c))
financial assets (Note 23(c)) - 67
Finance income, net BBBA - FEE - 1
Loss before income tax BR 1S B AT B 1R - (711)
Income tax expense PRS2 i - -
Loss from discontinued operation RESRIEKEER BB - (711)
Other comprehensive income Hiv2EUk s
Exchange differences arising on ARE2INERMESLNELEZRE
translation into presentation currency 433 2,542
Total comprehensive income from REBRIEREEB 2 EWEEE
discontinued operation 433 1,831
Net cash used in operating activities KREEBBA 2R FE (15) (579)
Net cash generated from investing RERDEEZESFHE
activities - =
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEDBA RS FE - (35)
Net decrease in cash and cash RekAeEHEEAE
equivalents 2R FEER (15) (614)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 BA
Number of
Shares
BHEEE
Thousand HK$’000
T BT T
Issued and fully paid: EBITRBERA :
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_ZTF—H—H 1,922,901 1,191,798
Cancellation of shares EEEiliiah) (23,876) -
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H8xK
1 January 2021 —E2-_—%—HA—H 1,899,025 1,191,798
Cancellation of shares Eai)dm) (872) -
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+=A=+—H 1,898,653 1,191,798

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company repurchased 372,000 ordinary shares. All of
the repurchased shares were cancelled during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The total amount paid for
the share repurchase was approximately HK$104,000
and was charged to retained earnings within
shareholders’ equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company repurchased 20,086,000 ordinary shares.
Together with the shares repurchased during the year
ended 31 December 2019, a total of 23,876,000 shares
were cancelled during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The buy-back and cancellation were approved by
shareholders at last year’s annual general meeting,
and the payment was made out of the Company’s
distributable profits with no reduction of capital in
compliance with HKCO.

The shares were acquired at an average price of
HK$0.274 (2020: HK$0.209) per share, with prices
ranging from HK$0.247 to HK$0.290 (2020: HK$0.196
to HK$0.240). The total amount of HK$104,000 (2020:
HK$4,209,000) paid to acquire the shares has been
deducted from retained earnings within shareholders’
equity.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

34

COMMITMENTS 34 EiE

(@) Capital commitments

(a) BERERE

As at 31 December

W+=B=+-—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Commitments in respect of the  EEWX  BFE K&l & &
acquisition of property, plant
and equipment
— contracted for but not — BRI N ERARREGE 5
provided in the consolidated WG ELBHE
financial statements 59,132 223,163

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

(b) FEHAIHIE
rEEEDHEE
RBEEHR AEEERBFOEZ
ARREEYHSARRNT

As at 31 December

BR+t=—A=+—H

2021 2020

—B=-—F —E-FTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BETT

Within one year —FR 1,044 1,279
In the second to fifth year FEEZFRFR

inclusive 496 533

1,540 1,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations

GERERBRME
(a) REXBEMELEZRS

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BL%FE

2021 2020
—B--F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT AT
Cash flows from operating activities BETHELECHERE
Continuing operations FRICEET
Profit before income tax B P {5250 A48 7 89,709 145,911
Adjustments for: G
(Net reversal of impairment loss)/net YRR CRERBAERFE) ME
impairment loss on trade receivables BAFEE (7,396) 6,274
Reversal of provision for inventories, net ~FEEERER - F5 (911) (56)
Amortisation of land use rights THFERE#E 4,016 2,578
Bad debt written off AR 17 -
Changes in fair value of investment REMELNTELE
properties (2,650) 2,062
Change in fair value of a financial BRRTETABREZ
liability at fair value through profit or ERARATELE
loss 20,796 21,538
Depreciation of property, plant and 0¥ BERZEINE
equipment 104,668 88,588
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFREINE 1,217 1,152
Impairment losses on property, plant and  #1% - BiE k& EREERL
equipment 3,095 16,234
Reversal of impairment losses on land TifE AR RERKER
use rights - (46,867)
(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, LEME  BEREE
plant and equipment, net (W), B8 358 (660) 20,443
Finance costs BT RKAR 24,773 28,307
Finance income FERA (11,372) (10,819)
Operating cash flows before movements &1 & & & &2
in working capital RERenE 225,302 275,345
Changes in working capital: EEESEY
Inventories RE (205,944) 63,711
Trade receivables FEUTER X (128,820) (27,460)
Bills receivable EWEE 79,917 75,566
Prepayments, deposits and other BT ke REMEYR
receivables (52,240) 6,740
Trade and bills payables EHERRER 320,889 8,350
Other payables and accruals HEAHRERER 47,691 95,978
Cash generated from operations BesBnEL RE 286,795 498,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 HMEBRERERMIE(E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) REEBEMELEZRE(E)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, RIZEIREeRERT  HEYE .
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ME REE 7 FTEZRBEMT
equipment:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHEE

2021 2020
—B=-—F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations HEREEK
Net book amount R FE 4,505 26,230
Gains/(losses) on disposals of HEME  WEREEZ WS
property, plant and equipment (E18) 660 (20,443)
Proceeds from disposals of HEME  WEREEZ
property, plant and equipment Fr15 5008 5,165 5,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 GKERSRERME(E)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) HREZTHEENEEBZHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRFVNNAEEHRREZEELEDN
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BEZEE RIEESNIER S E
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities BoHmMELIHEANBEIERSE
arising from financing activities are those for RERE ARl REE RGN ARE
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will BiEcRenearREo B E 5
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated EXRERNAE-

statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Financial
Interest liability
payables at fair
classified value
under Loan from  through
Bank other  arelated profit or Lease
borrowings  payables  company loss liabilities Total

BEREH  KA-B  BOVE

EfNFET  BELR AR
BAEM MEARE  2EX  GRAE  HRAR ai
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BRI BRI BBTn A%t AkTn EETn

(Note 29) (Note 28)  (Note 30)  (Note 18)
(Fizt29) (Ftskos)  (MHaEs0)  (F3t1s)
At 1 January 2020 R-E-8%-F-H 610,702 1,198 57,644 152,944 1,609 824,097
Cash inflow BEMA 756,229 - - - - 756,229
Cash outfiow Rant 006767 (1,078 (58313  (6000) (1260  (993,418)
Exchange differences EXEH 30,703 36 (1) - - 30,738
Non-cash movement HRETY 1,593 20,232 670 21538 55 44,088
At 31 December 2020 RZB-BfF
t=R=t-H 492,460 388 - 168,482 404 661,734
At 1 January 2021 R-B--£-f-H 492,460 388 - 168,482 404 661,734
Cash inflow REmA 560,686 - 24,036 - - 584,722
Cash outflow Band (563,667 (18,131) (860) (6,000  (1310)  (609,968)
Exchange differences ERzE 8,970 19 429 - - 9,418
Non-cash movement E 3N 1,389 18,187 965 20,796 3,870 45,207
At 31 December 2021 RZBz-%
t=H=t-H 479,838 463 24,570 183,278 2,964 691,113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 UBRMHXZfAXZHZRS

A share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 7 June 2002. Under
the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”)
of the Company shall, subject to and in accordance
with the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and the Listing
Rules, grant share options to any eligible participant
to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
A new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was
adopted and the 2002 Scheme was terminated by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2012.

The 2012 Scheme became effective on 29 May 2012
upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting approval of the listing of, and permission to
deal in, any shares falling to be issued and allotted
upon the exercise of the share options granted.

The share options which have been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme remain
valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms
of issue.

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme (subsequently
replaced by the 2012 Scheme) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
for their contributions to the Group or potential
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the
2002 Scheme include any director (including executive
and non-executive), executive, officer, employee or
shareholder of the Company or any of the subsidiaries
or any of the associates or any of the joint ventures
and any supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent,
partner or business associate who will contribute or
has contributed to the Group.

AARBRRNR -_ET _FXALHET
CBERRBAFAREG EHEMN T EREE
(=T 58D - RE-ZTT &
ArelEEg((E5g ) ARBRIE
BT FEINGR R EMRAET
FREERATEREARERQRZ

Bfn e ARBEIBRREINR-—F——FFHA
TTHBERTZERAFASLEAT
MBRERE( 2 — =58 ) R&IE

TZZEZT—:tEl-

— ==

MERE P TR B EHLE R 2 A
BATEM A T EIT R B2 ARG £
MEEE T8RN =-F—=FA
A=th Elﬁ_i)dl ©

RIE-ZFZ_FEBETERKBERRT
BB AE R W AIRBEEITIR
KT AT

ARBRIL-_FZ_FE(HEK-F
— A EBR) e EER M ERBE BB A
THAKEMEL BRI ATREIEL 2
Rl — T2 GBI ZABBALEREAR
A kAT A B B~ R S EL R B & R
AR EEMAREFNEEZERNES(E
EMITRIERIT) TBRAR - BABE -
BEIBRRREMAERER T &7
A BE REA EBAXEBKREEA
T ZEREUERAEEELERZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 URBXNXZHZRB(8)

(continued)

Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include any
director (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive), executive, officer,
employee, shareholder of the Company or any of the
subsidiaries or any of the associated companies or
any of the joint ventures and any supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, agent, partner or business
associate, who will contribute or has contributed to
the development and growth of the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years from 29
May 2012.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the 2012
Scheme is 192,290,055 shares which represented
9.8% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the share
options to each qualifying grantee in the 2012 Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue under
the 2012 Scheme. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2012
Scheme may be accepted within 60 days from the
date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. An option may
be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme
at any time within 10 years from the date of grant of
the options or may be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its discretion.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

36 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36 URBXNXZHZRB(8)

(continued)

The exercise price per share in relation to an option
under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme shall be a
price to be determined by the Board and shall be no
less than the highest of (a) the official closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date on which the option is offered to an eligible
participant/a qualifying grantee, which must be a
business day; or (b) the official average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of option to an eligible participant/a qualifying
grantee.

Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme, share
options held by any eligible participant/qualifying
grantee will lapse automatically upon their termination
of employment but the Board is empowered to extend
the exercise period of the concerned share options at
its discretion. Relevant exercise period of share options
held by the eligible participant whose employment
terminated during the previous years was extended
and approved by the Board. Such change does not
constitute modification of the 2002 Scheme.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the 2002 and 2012 Scheme during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

B _ZTT_HER T ——FEIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37

BALANCES

The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang HK, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together with
its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) other
than the Group, will hereinafter be referred to as the
“Shougang Group”. Accordingly, the Group is
significantly influenced by Shougang Group, which is
part of a larger group of companies ultimately
controlled by the PRC government.

Apart from the transactions with Shougang Group, the
Group also conducts businesses with other PRC
government-related entities in the ordinary course of
business.

() Transactions and balances with PRC
government-related entities
(a) Transactions and balances with
Shougang Group

FEALZRE RER

ARRBEEFENTERRREELES
BEHEEERARULRBAEE
EEEEZESEREBCEALE)N
2EMBAR) BRAKESI BiKE
ERARMEBEAGRE ETRAE
FINTHREELSIERMER ] HiL - K
SEXENEEZEATE -EHEER
PR REIER 2 —RIRBELERYZ

—&BfD

RESZEEERENKS AKEERE
EXpiEh rREGHBERFREER
HEITER

() BEPERFBEEERIXIR
R ER
(a) HEHREZXGZRAEEH

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—B=-—F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations HEREER

Consultancy fees paid and EXfREMERE
payables 2,760 2,760
Proceeds from loan REERZFTSHIE 24,036 -
Settlement of convertible bonds &t AJ# A E A 6,000 6,000
Loans repayment EEEX - 50,000
Interest expenses on loans ERZHMEXZIE 784 670
Loan transaction costs ERRSHKA 181 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
() Transactions and balances with PRC
government-related entities (continued)

(a

(b)

Transactions and balances with
Shougang Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, amount due to
Shougang Group was approximately
HK$2,530,000 (2020: Nil). The balance was
interest-free, unsecured, repayable on
demand, and denominated in HKS$.

Transactions with other PRC
government-related entities
The Group has entered
transactions, including sales to, purchases
from and other operating expenses paid to
other PRC government-related entities. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
these transactions are considered as
individually insignificant to the operation of
the Group during the reporting period.

into various

In addition, the Group has entered into
various banking transactions, including
deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-
controlled entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

37 BMEATZXRERER(B)

() EFEBRFEEERZRZRK

+ B4 (425
,éﬁq /\‘\G/E'\/‘
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(i) Transactions and balances with non-PRC
government-related entities

(a

(b)

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT

Transaction and balance with a
shareholder

37 BMEATZXRERER(B)

(i) REFPEBRFHAEER XS
K & ER
(a) HE—UKRRHXEZ

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHEE

2021 2020
—B=-—F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Continuing operations FEREER
Royalty expenses BEHNEH 1,452 845

As at 31 December 2021, amount due to a
shareholder was approximately HK$697,000
(2020: HK$845,000). The balance was
interest-free, unsecured, repayable on
demand, and denominated in RMB.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The key management of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company,
details of their emoluments are disclosed in
Notes 10 and 39, and share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 36,
respectively. The emoluments of the directors
of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company
having regard to individual’s performance,
the Group’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

RZBEZ—F+=ZA=+—
H #&X—BRRZESENAE
B¥697,000C( —E =T F :
75 6845,0007T ) > i &R B R
B\ mmmEE R
AR RBEAL -

(b) TEEEANSZHMH

AEBZFEEBAEBER
RABERITES Hie &
RN EZRZH R GFIBE
2 B R B 5E10 K2 39E2 Bt 5£36
EEHEE - ARREZZHE
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ARE  AEBZEERAF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 AR BMBBMRRREHFE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the KA R BRI T
Company

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—-F T -EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Assets BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGNS Pl 2 1,734,023 1,565,718
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 3 & H fth fE U 3% 328 421
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE AP 1B A =) 3R IS 295,395 254,075
Bank balances and cash RITEF AR 8,513 23,122
Total current assets REBEEHTE 304,236 277,618
Total assets EEMATE 2,038,259 1,843,336
Equity and liabilities EEREaE
Equity attributable to owners of the REBR A QAT EE AER
company
Share capital A% A 1,191,798 1,191,798
Reserves e 622,551 480,728
Total equity RESaE 1,814,349 1,672,526
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z_-—F+-A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 AAQRMNHBBHRIRREE#E(E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Statement of financial position of the ARABMBERRE(E)
Company (continued)

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables and accruals Hh s kiR & R 5,652 2,328
Bank borrowing RITER 34,980 -
Financial liability at fair value through I AFETABEZ CRAE
profit or loss 183,278 168,482
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 223,910 170,810
Total equity and liabilities RN EEAE 2,038,259 1,843,336
The statement of financial position of the Company AARFBMRARER T -_—_F=H
was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March “t+hHBEEFeE YHIULTEER
2022 and was signed on its behalf: BERE
Su Fanrong Li Jinping
> IS E=&F
Director Director
E E
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

38 ALATMBMBRRRREE(E)

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves ARBBENEE
Capital  Translation Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
BEXfE EHfE RE R a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZF—-H—H 23,990 61,903 168,506 254,399
Comprehensive income 2HERE
Profit for the year AEFFE - - 193,276 193,276
Other comprehensive income  Eft1 2 E iz
Exchange difference arising on HBEZIEEMELNER
translation into presentation =8
currency - 56,326 - 56,326
Total comprehensive income for AFE 2 H Mz 258
the year - 56,326 193,276 249,602
Share repurchase B - - (4,209) (4,209)
Dividend paid BERRE - - (19,064) (19,064)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZTF+-A=+—H 23,990 118,229 338,509 480,728
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 AAQRMNHBBHRRRREEHE(E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves RATRENEE(E)
(continued)

Capital  Translation Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EXfRE E R REER &t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—A—H 23,990 118,229 338,509 480,728
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profit for the year AEEFHE - - 137,413 137,413

Other comprehensive income  Eft2ElE
Exchange difference arising on FHBREZIEEMELNER
translation into presentation =8
currency - 32,994 - 32,994

Total comprehensive income for AFE2EK = A

the year - 32,994 137,413 170,407
Share repurchase B i - - (104) (104)
Dividend paid BERRE - - (28,480) (28,480)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—F+-A=+—-H 23,990 151,223 447,338 622,551
Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the benefit MiaE : R R B2 B AR E ISR LARTF E W i —

of acquiring a shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder ME AR m— A ATREBARRER
upon the acquisition of a subsidiary in previous years. pdl &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZ_Z_—F+-A=+—HILFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39 EERARER (FHBQAMKM

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 (%£622%F) %383 AR (HEE
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ENZER) RO (F622GE) K
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES EHRARENEE)

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EBEzME
The emoluments of each director of the Company BRESZMEHEYNT :
is set out as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2021: B2 -_—F+=-_RB=+—HI1
FE -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREESZ(FRRARSLAIENEL DR BHCAARLNE

Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances  retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries in kind scheme Total
BHR  EIMEA

fig i BB BNTEER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BN BN BN BRTR BN

Executive directors UiiEs

Su Fanrong EAE - 2,641 33 18 2,602
Li Jinping (Note b) 2T (M) - - - - -
Ye Qian (Note ¢} £2 (M) - - - - -
Non-executive directors FurES

Liao Jun (Note d B8 (W) - - - - -
Adam Touhig (Note g) Adam Touhig (¥i%g) 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors BUFEHTES

Yip Kin Man, Raymond £RR 240 - - - 240
Lam Yiu Kin Higg 240 - - - 240
Feng Yaoling (Note ) ERE(Mt) 240 - - - 240

810 2,641 38 18 3,062
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZ—-Z—-—4+=H

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND LISTING RULES) (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

=t+—HLFE

39 EEwEARER(FEQAKRHA
(5£622% ) 583831k - N A (HEE
ENZER) RO (55622GE) &
EHRAUARENKE)(E)

(a) EBzME(E)
HE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—A801t
FE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES(MBREAALAZANELNZH BHENIELHE

Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries in kind scheme Total

AR EEIOER
g 2 EWRN BHEEER aif
HKE'000  HKS000  HKE'000  HK§000  HK§'000
EETL AMTT  A%Tn ARTn BB

Executive directors HTES

Su Fanrong AR - 2,642 30 18 2,690

Tang Cornor Kwok Kau (Note a) ek (Msta) - 1816 8 17 1,841

Li Jinping (Note b) 2T (M) - - - - -

Ye Qian (Note ¢} £2 (M) - - - - -

Non-executive director FurEs

Liao Jun (Note d B8 (W) 150 - - - 150

Independent non-executive directors BUFH{TES

Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERR 240 - - - 240

Law Yui Lun (Note e) EEB(Mite) - - - = -

Lam Yiu Kin Higg 240 - - - 240

Feng Yaoling (Note ) ERE(Mk) 240 - - - 240
870 4,458 38 35 5,401

None of the directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting
office as a director during the year (2020: Nil).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZ&LERR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B REME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE T - —4®+_-A=+—HIFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

39 EEwEARER(FEQAKRA
(5£622% ) 583831k - N A (HEE
ENZER) RO (55622GE) &
EHRAUARENKE)(E)

(CAP. 622G) AND LISTING RULES) (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Note:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Mr. Tang Cornor Kwok Kau resigned as an executive
director on 30 November 2020.

Mr. Li Jinping was appointed as an executive director
on 1 January 2020.

Mr. Ye Qian was appointed as a non-executive director
on 28 June 2019 and was re-designated as an
executive director on 1 January 2020.

Mr. Liao Jun resigned as a non-executive director on
15 January 2021.

Mr. Law Yui Lun resigned as an independent
nonexecutive director on 1 January 2020.

(a) E=
BisE -
(@)

(b)

©

@

©)

ZME(55)

BEREER-B-BF+— A
=+RBEHTEE

FEFEER-B-BE—A—H
BEEANTER -

EFEER-ZT-AFRNA-TN
BEZERINTESR RR-_F
—TE-A-ARBERRTES-

BEEENR-_E_—F—A+EHA
BHIFEIRITES -

BEEBEENR T -_TF—H—H
BHEBIFRITES -

()  Mr. Feng Yaoling was appointed as an independent fH BRELER-_Z-_FTF—H—H
non-executive director on 1 January 2020. BEZAERBIIENTES -
(@  Mr. Adam Touhig was appointed as a non-executive (9) Adam Touhigbft £ —F = —F —
director on 15 January 2021. A+HBEEZTAIEHNITES-
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and (b) EEERNKREANRERER
termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any FR-BEEECOLN B WEE

retirement benefits or termination benefits during
the year (2020: same).

MERARENHEREN( T =F
F AR -

(c) Consideration provided to or receivable (c) MEMEERBE=FZfF=2
by third parties for making available RE

directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company does not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2020: same).

BE-_T_—Ft-_A=1+—H1Lt
FE ARRYEREREERS
mEEFRE=TXNRE(ZT=
T R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE T - —4®+_-A=+—HIFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND LISTING RULES) (continued)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2021, there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2020: same).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in Note 37, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2020: same).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERRE AR

39 EEwEARER(FEQAKRA
(5£622% ) 583831k - N A (HEE
ENZER) RO (55622GE) &
EHRAUARENKE)(E)

(d)

(e)

RBUNES ZEES2XEH
FERREERRZIBAZE
FCEERREMRSZ 2EHR

R-ZB-—F+-A=+—H0 @&
NEE HZSEFCXIEHER R
BEERAXSAZER EEFHK
HRXZGEH(ZZE_FF : fHR)-

EERRZ REAEGHZERX
s
BRETEESTATIREE SN - AR RIBLE
RERBITLARRREFETOT
RAARELEEXEERBEX
HE 25 T 1O 4R AR AR O A R B D40 24
FRENEARS THKAN(ZF
—TF AR




SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REVERER

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group H&EEBR T - —F+—A=+—HEEZIX
as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: BYEFBFOT -
Group
interest
Properties Use AK&EEz Category of lease
LY ES A% Eiz HERHNER
1. House 5-18 and carport Residential 100%  Medium-term lease
District 5, Legend Garden Villas E= FHHTEERY

No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

PRC
PRI R™
SR B HRI5IE895%
EBRIERREE5ER
5-185% B E U
2. Workshop Nos. 16, 17 and Industrial and commercial 100% Long-term lease
18 on 12th Floor THEE REHERK

Honour Industrial Centre
No. 6 Sun Yip Street
Chai Wan, Hong Kong
BAEEROT
RHTEH L1218

16, 1718%

3. Apartment Unit 4-14-5, Level 2 Residential 100%  Medium-term lease
Block 4-8, District 4 F=x FHETHERL
Legend Garden Villas
No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

PRC
B R
%%Eé%%%%wﬁ
ERTERMNES4E
F4-8FE212
4-14-557 %
4. Unit 5E on Level 5 and Commercial and residential 100%  Medium-term lease
Car Park No. 39 on level 2 BELEE FHAFEE 34
Jinmin Building

No. 8 Zunyi Road South
Changning District, Shanghai
PRC

hE AT
REREEMHESN

HARE

51E5E%E

KRB E (1 F395%
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DEFINITIONS
e

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the fErARFFER  BXEREME: TJHR=ZEE
following terms shall have the meaning set out below: MRHE

“2002 Scheme”

[—EE=:8)

“2012 Scheme”

[ZZT— &8l

“Articles”

[Ei240R1

“BeijingWest Industries”

[RAET ]

“Bekaert”

[ Bekaert ]

“Bekaert Combustion”

[ Bekaert Combustion |

“Board”

[E=2
“Board Diversity Policy”

[BEFEXEBZTEBER ]

“COde"

SN

A share option scheme adopted and terminated by the Shareholders
at the annual general meetings held on 7 June 2002 and 25 May 2012
respectively
BREABIR-EZ_FNALAR_ZE——FRA-THARTZRRASF
R& FERA A& 12 BB R iRt &

A new share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2012 and became effective on 29 May
2012
BRERR-_Z-——FAA-_THBRTZRRAFASLRALN —T——F
TR+ hBRERZ FERETE

the New Articles of Association of the Company
RATFABEBERAL

BeijingWest Industries International Limited (Stock Code: 2339), a
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RAETBERARAF(RMHMRE:2339) RASHSTMKLZERAF]
HRMEBZFER LT

NV Bekaert SA, a company incorporated under the laws of Belgium, a
substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)

NV Bekaert SA ' BRIEFELFFERZEIMA L2 AR BEERR(REBEFHF R
HEGRIITER)

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Bekaert, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V. ' Bekaertz 2 &M B R BAEE
BRR(BREESMPEEIEE)

the board of Directors

ARAEEE

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Board Diversity Policy adopted
on 26 August 2013 and revised from time to time thereafter
BEMREERRARZESFENESTIEEREBE —T—=F/\A - +/XH
RN BEIR NEFHERT

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules

ETR RIS+ PO E 2K R EE AT A
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Companies Ordinance”

IANCIESE

“Company”/
“Shougang Century”

[ARDE L TEER R

“Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy”
[FERFERFBUR

“Conversion Price”

[ RE

“Conversion Rights”

[ |

“Conversion Share(s)”

[ A7 ]

“Convertible Bonds”

[ AR A& 25 ]
“Director(s)”
(&%

“Employment Ordinance”

K= SN

“EUR”

[BXT |

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB EDIE622F N El1EA

Shougang Century Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

BERMBREERAR —MREBTMAL 2 BR D F) R H RN HREE AP
ERE™

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Continuous Disclosure Obligation
Policy adopted on 28 March 2011 and revised from time to time
thereafter

BENMBAEEER AFZHERBEREEIREXE T ——F=A =+ /\BEMH
WA BER TRHERT

HK$0.33 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustment)
SRR IR (D % 0.33 T (] T %)

the rights to convert the Convertible Bonds into Conversion Shares

1 AT AR B S R R IR AR AR £ RO RE A

the Share(s) to be issued by the Company upon the holder(s) of the
Convertible Bonds exercising its/their Conversion Rights attached to
the Convertible Bonds in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the instrument constituting the Convertible Bonds
RRARRARRESFFE ARBER R ES T AN IRRRIREITER
%% AR AR B 25 M S O B HR A 12 78 T BT BV AR D

the 4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$150,000,000 due 2022 (extendable to 2024)
issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement
ARARBEABHHET T RAZRN A S A5 5%E%150,000,0007TH —
T _FIMAIERE T NF) 4% EERE TR SRR ES

the director(s) of the Company
RRAREE

the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BRBEBIESTERBIED

Euros, the lawful currency of the participating states within the European
Union

BT - B BB AR E R
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DEFINITIONS
B

“Fair Union”

[ Fair Union

“Finance Lease Agreement”
[REHESR ]

“Group”
[REH |

“HKD”/“HK$”
(BT T

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Internal Control Manual”

[AEREE e |
“JESC”

[ HERT7
“Jingxi Holdings”
[RAER ]

“Li Ka Shing Foundation
[FRHESE ]

“Listing Rules”

[ EfARAl

“Machineries and Equipment”

[ 28 N a8t |
“Model Code”

[#E2s7 Al

Fair Union Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
HK
Fair Union Holdings Limited ' B & &2 2 &K B XA A

the finance lease agreement dated 31 May 2021 between TESC and
South China Leasing
BNER G EESHER _E-_—FRA=T—RHIUMREHEESR

the Company and its subsidiaries
RAR RENE A A

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BRAEEHN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRITTHER

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s internal management and control
manual adopted in 1999 and revised from time to time thereafter
BEMREERR AR 2 NERE R REEES B — AN N FRALNEEER T

BT

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

RERSMEKARAR BREPBERIMNLZ AR BAR R Z EE
2 EMNBAR]

Jingxi Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shougang Fund

RAZERERAR —FRBEEBEFTMAINBERAR REHESH
2EM A A

Li Ka Shing Foundation Limited, a “charitable body” within the meaning
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
FEHESEARRE REBENE112EMBROIFAEZ [EEEE ]
REZBRR(REBEZFLACKITER)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 gz E AR Al

certain machineries and equipment primarily used by TESC for
manufacturing of steel cords

BEMIR T T 2ANREMERNE THRBLRE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

EHRBM S EMEITAESETESFRZNFRETRID)
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company”

[TRRARIEFHR
“PRC”

[ B

“Purchase Consideration”

[EERE]

“RMB”
[AR#]

“SCHL Code”

[EERESTA

“SCHL Corporate
Governance Code”

[BERXERE AT
“SFO”
[ 3855 R &R0 ]

“Share(s)”
[ 7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ARER

“Shougang Fund”

[EES

“Shougang Grand”

[E&my ]

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company adopted on 18 December 2018 and revised from time
to time thereafter
BEMBREERRARIZRAAANEZTERN - N\F+ A +/\B&EH
W BE & TERHERT

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report
shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Taiwan

PEARKNE  RAMEME - TREEE - ERPIEBITHERA S

the amount of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,000,000) payable by South China Leasing to TESC for the
purchase of the Machineries and Equipment pursuant to the Finance
Lease Agreement

EAAHERREREHECRABERSRREMEN TRMNRTHREAAR
#20,000,0007T (HHE 7 4775 ¥24,000,0007T ) & 52

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR HBEDEEE

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors and Specified Individuals adopted in 2004
and revised from time to time thereafter
BENREERRARZEEFREEALTETESFRFNELTAE _TT
PUFERA I P BE & NHERT

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Code on Corporate Governance
(revised from time to time)

BEMRREERARZEREETRI(TRER])

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BEREPIESTIEE S L AEIED

ordinary share(s) of the Company
PIN/NE e 3 1Y

shareholder(s) of the Company

RRBEZ R

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., a company established in the PRC
with limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Group
IREHESERAR —FARPEKINEREEAR AEHEENS
BHtE AR

Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 730), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BREA(RE)BRARRGMRS : 730) RERETMA L2 ERAF -
H IR B X P ER_E T
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DEFINITIONS
B

“Shougang Group”

R=FESEN
“Shougang HK”

[EEEE]

“South China Leasing”

[FnHE ]

“Stock Exchange”/“HKEX”

[ B8 22 FA7
“Subscription”
[REEE1E]

“Subscription Agreement”

[ REE W

“TESC”

[N BT

“TESC Phase Il Project”

[BeINZRTT —H#1E A |

“USD”
ESy

u%n
[% |

Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under the direct
supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission, established in the PRC), a substantial
Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
BMEEERAR(—HARFPREKIZIREEEEEEERZEREEE
BEZEARR) REIERR(BREZHFLAEHRIIEE)

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined
under the SFO)

BMZER(EB)BRAR REBIMULZARAR REERR(BEZ
HREEDIER)

South China International Leasing Co., Ltd., a company established in
the PRC and an indirect 75% owned subsidiary of Shougang Grand,
which is in turn held as to approximately 50.84% by Shougang HK.
South China Leasing is also held as to 25% by the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Shougang HK

EAREHEEERAT  —HRPEKZI2 AR WA—HBERESREE
AN ENMERAR MERMNFBEAEEBFEHS0.84%Em - EH
HETHEZEEEZAZEL2EMBATRFBE25%En

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERHMAERRAR]

the subscription for the Convertible Bonds by Jingxi Holdings pursuant
to the terms and subject to the conditions of the Subscription Agreement

ROZEBRRERBHZENGRALZ B RRBBE A RRES

the subscription agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered into
between the Company and Jingxi Holdings in relation to the Subscription
AR RRAERMRESEIIVHBRA - — \F+-A+/\BHRE
e

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

BRINER T MERBR AR RIBFPBUEZFIMA L2 RF] RARE ZHE
2EWMB LA

the construction project of production lines
HERERER

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

XL XBIZAEESR

per cent
Bkt
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